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 30 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 31 

Council convened at the Perdido Beach Resort, Orange Beach, 32 

Alabama, Wednesday afternoon, April 13, 2011, and was called to 33 

order at 3:30 p.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN BOB SHIPP:  Good afternoon, everyone.  I want to call 36 

to order the 230th meeting of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery 37 

Management Council.  My name is Bob Shipp and as Chairman of the 38 

council, I welcome you all.   39 

 40 

Members of the public will be permitted to present oral 41 

statements in accordance with the schedule published in the 42 

agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you desire to 43 

address the council.  Please give written statements to the 44 

council staff, who are sitting at the tables on the side. 45 

 46 

The 1996 amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all 47 

oral or written statements to include a brief description of the 48 



4 

 

background and interest of the persons in the subject of the 1 

statement.  All written information shall include a statement of 2 

the source and date of such information. 3 

 4 

It is unlawful for any person to knowingly and willfully submit 5 

to the council false information regarding any manner the 6 

council is considering in the course of carrying out the 7 

Fisheries Act.   8 

 9 

If you have a cell phone, pager, or similar device, we ask that 10 

you keep them on silent or vibrating mode during the council and 11 

committee sessions.  A digital recording is used for the public 12 

record and therefore, for the purpose of voice identification, 13 

each member is requested to identify himself or herself, 14 

starting on my left.  15 

 16 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STEVE BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Executive 17 

Director, Gulf Council. 18 

 19 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi Department of 20 

Marine Resources. 21 

 22 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi representative. 23 

 24 

MR. JOHNNY GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 25 

 26 

MR. JOE HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 27 

 28 

MR. DOUGLAS BOYD:  Douglas Boyd, Texas. 29 

 30 

MR. MIKE RAY:  Mike Ray, Texas. 31 

 32 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 33 

 34 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  Steve Branstetter, NOAA Fisheries 35 

Service. 36 

 37 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  David Cupka, South Atlantic Council. 38 

 39 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, from the great State of 40 

Louisiana. 41 

 42 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 43 

 44 

MR. ED SAPP:  Ed Sapp, Florida. 45 

 46 

DR. LARRY ABELE:  Larry Abele, Florida. 47 

 48 
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MR. NICK WILEY:  Nick Wiley and Bill Teehan, Florida Fish and 1 

Wildlife Conservation Commission. 2 

 3 

MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 4 

Commission. 5 

 6 

LCDR CARMEN DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard District 8. 7 

 8 

MR. BOB GILL:  Bob Gill, Florida. 9 

 10 

MR. KEVIN ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama. 11 

 12 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you and as tradition, we always introduce 15 

ex-council members, Dr. Russell Nelson and Bobbi Walker.  Thank 16 

you, all.  The next item is the Adoption of the Agenda, Tab A, 17 

Number 5.  Are there any modifications or additions to the 18 

agenda? 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I would like to add that we 21 

reconvene in closed session at a time of your discretion. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  All council take note of this.  We are going to 24 

reconvene in closed session at 8:15 tomorrow morning.  We should 25 

be finished by the scheduled agenda time of 8:30, but we will 26 

have a closed session at 8:15. 27 

 28 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have two items to add.  One is a 29 

brief discussion of the Gulf of Mexico Alliance and a second is 30 

on the app that we have for iPhones. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  That will be new business at the 33 

conclusion of the regularly scheduled agenda.  Any other 34 

additions or modifications to the agenda?  Is there a motion to 35 

adopt the agenda as modified? 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  Objections?  The agenda is 40 

adopted.  The next item is the Approval of Minutes, Tab A, 41 

Number 6.  Does anyone have any corrections or additions to the 42 

minutes? 43 

 44 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 45 

 46 

MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Page 136, line 48, the words are switched 47 

around, but the second and third word should be switched to read 48 
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“what this does” and thank you, Mr. Chairman. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is that the only correction?  Thank you.  Any 3 

other additions or corrections?  Is there a motion to approve 4 

the minutes? 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  Any objections?  The 9 

minutes are approved.  The next agenda item is listed as 10 

Fisheries 101, Dr. Bortone, but I think there’s been a slight 11 

shift. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp indicated that he would 14 

like to do an ICCAT 101 and that would be included in our 15 

handbook with the other fisheries lessons and so, Ed, if you 16 

would speak, please. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I will note that we will start public testimony 19 

immediately on conclusion of Mr. Sapp’s presentation. 20 

 21 

ICCAT PRESENTATION 22 

 23 

MR. SAPP:  Mr. Sapp will be fairly quick.  I’ll start by saying 24 

it was out of selfishness on my own part that I asked for the 25 

opportunity to do this ICCAT 101 presentation.  I’ve actually 26 

been representing the council at ICCAT meetings and at Highly 27 

Migratory Species meetings for two years now and basically we go 28 

for each of those different things. 29 

 30 

I go to two meetings a year in Washington, D.C. for about three 31 

days at a time and so I’ve been up to Washington for three-day 32 

stretches, four times a year, for the last two years now.  The 33 

problem is that I’m there representing this council, but I’ve 34 

never had any input from this council except on very few issues. 35 

 36 

You guys know me well enough to know that I don’t really mind 37 

talking when I’ve got the opportunity to have something to say, 38 

but I’ve felt pretty much like a wallflower at those events 39 

because I’ve never had any input from the council. 40 

 41 

It was towards that end that I thought it was a good idea to try 42 

to engage the council a little bit more on what happens in the 43 

ICCAT and the HMS processes and this was what I hoped would be 44 

the beginning of that engagement and teaching the council what 45 

happens within those processes. 46 

 47 

At this point, this will be my first and last opportunity to do 48 
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this and I hope that the council will find somebody else to 1 

represent the council to replace me that will carry on my notion 2 

of doing everything possible to try to get some input from you 3 

folks so that we have a say in how those processes work. 4 

 5 

With that, let me get started.  Over the next few minutes, I’m 6 

going to be covering quite a bit of ground and I’m going to do 7 

it pretty quick.  We’re going to learn basically what ICCAT is, 8 

how the U.S. is represented, and how we implement the 9 

regulations that they put in place. 10 

 11 

We’ll take a quick look at what the species are that ICCAT 12 

regulates and finally, we’ll look at some of the challenges that 13 

are faced by international fisheries managers and by ICCAT 14 

specifically. 15 

 16 

What is ICCAT?  ICCAT is the International Commission for the 17 

Conservation of Atlantic Tunas.  It was established back in 1969 18 

and it’s what they call a Fisheries Management Organization.  19 

For Larry Abele, that is an RFMO.   20 

 21 

RFMOs are defined as international organizations dedicated to 22 

the sustainable management of fishery resources in international 23 

waters or of highly migratory species such as tuna.  This is 24 

just one of several.  The other one that some of you may have 25 

heard of before is the Western Central Pacific Fisheries 26 

Commission.  The U.S. is a member of that.  Obviously it’s 27 

Pacific waters and it also regulates tunas the same as ICCAT 28 

does. 29 

 30 

Let’s talk a little bit about ICCAT and the convention.  There 31 

are forty-eight member nations and that includes the European 32 

Union and the European Union, as most of you know, is twenty-33 

some countries and so the total nations that are represented at 34 

ICCAT are probably in the neighborhood of seventy or so. 35 

 36 

The convention’s area is the Atlantic Ocean and adjacent seas 37 

and the adjacent seas include things like the Mediterranean and 38 

the Baltic and the Caribbean Sea and, of course, near and dear 39 

to us, it includes the Gulf of Mexico also, obviously. 40 

 41 

What’s the function of ICCAT?  In order to carry out the 42 

objectives of the convention, the commission is responsible for 43 

compiling fisheries statistics from its members and from all 44 

entities fishing for these species in the Atlantic Ocean; for 45 

coordinating research, including stock assessments, on behalf of 46 

its members; for developing scientific-based management advice; 47 

and finally, providing a mechanism for contracting parties to 48 
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agree on management measures.  The contracting parties are 1 

actually the member nations. 2 

 3 

The work of the convention is actually carried out by the bodies 4 

that make up the commission and the first one that you see 5 

listed up there is the SCRS and that’s the Standing Committee 6 

for Research and Statistics. 7 

 8 

To understand what they do, think in terms of how things work at 9 

our council here.  We get input from the Science Center and we 10 

have experts in the stock assessment process and then we get 11 

recommendations from our Science and Statistical Committee. 12 

 13 

If you combine all of those functions into one, that pretty well 14 

describes what it is that that Standing Committee for Research 15 

and Statistics does, that SCRS.  The one difference that I’ll 16 

point out is where we’re bound by the ABC recommendations that 17 

we get from our SSC, unfortunately ICCAT is not bound to follow 18 

the recommendations of the SCRS. 19 

 20 

Additionally, there is a Compliance Committee and they’re 21 

charged with conservation and management measures and then 22 

there’s the PWG, which is the Permanent Working Group for 23 

improvement of ICCAT statistics and conservation measures. 24 

 25 

The actual management is undertaken by four panels and they call 26 

them Panels 1, 2, 3, and 4.  The first panel takes care of all 27 

the tropical tunas and that includes yellowfin, among others.  28 

The second panel is responsible for the northern temperate tunas 29 

and that includes our western bluefin tuna. 30 

 31 

The third is southern temperate tunas and that fourth includes 32 

everything else and so that’s swordfish, billfish, sharks, 33 

turtles, seabirds, everything that’s not covered by the first 34 

three.  Those are how those panels are aligned as of right now.  35 

All indications are that those alignments will change at the 36 

next annual ICCAT meeting that happens in November. 37 

 38 

I put this slide up here not because I think you’re interested 39 

in who the people are that are involved, but I did it for a 40 

different reason.  I want you to take a look at the countries 41 

that are represented by the chair people of these different 42 

important committees. 43 

 44 

You’ll notice first off that the European Union is there in two 45 

different places.  We see Brazil and we see Canada and we see 46 

Japan and those are some of the big players or the heavyweights 47 

in ICCAT fisheries management. 48 
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 1 

If you’ll notice, you’ll also see that the U.S. is up there in a 2 

couple of places, too.  We’re up there at the head of the 3 

Compliance and we’re also up there in that PWG and remember that 4 

PWG that we just saw deals with conservation issues and so we’ve 5 

taken a prominent role in those two areas. 6 

 7 

Frankly, what I heard when I first got involved with ICCAT was 8 

the U.S. was just a bit player and that we’re just one of many 9 

and never had that much influence, but I think we’re seeing that 10 

influence starting to change, especially when we’re talking 11 

about issues that involve conservation. 12 

 13 

The implementing legislation is ATCA.  That’s the Atlantic Tunas 14 

Convention Act and that’s something that was passed by the U.S. 15 

Congress.  Under ATCA, the U.S. is required to implement any 16 

recommendations adopted by ICCAT and the way those things are 17 

adopted is they’re done through the National Marine Fisheries 18 

Service and they’re handled through the Highly Migratory 19 

Species, HMS, Division. 20 

 21 

How is the U.S. represented at ICCAT and how does that process 22 

work?  We have one main federal commissioner and Russell Smith 23 

is that person.  He’s actually new to the process.  He attended 24 

his first international meeting last November in Paris and his 25 

background is not in fisheries management at all. 26 

 27 

His background is in international negotiations and so we 28 

brought him in because we knew that was important to enhance our 29 

negotiations at ICCAT.  In addition to Russell, you’ll see that 30 

we’ve got a commercial commissioner and we’ve got a recreational 31 

commissioner and they actually accompany him and flank him at 32 

those meetings to provide input to him. 33 

 34 

The commission gets advice on what they should be doing from the 35 

Advisory Committee and I am a member of that Advisory Committee.  36 

There are actually twenty members and they’re appointed by the 37 

commissioners. 38 

 39 

The membership is pretty well split between commercial, 40 

recreational, the environmental groups, and science folks and in 41 

addition to those twenty, there are five that are members of the 42 

councils that border the Atlantic Ocean.  If you think about it, 43 

there’s the Gulf of Mexico, there’s the South Atlantic, there’s 44 

the Mid-Atlantic, there’s the New England, and there’s the 45 

Caribbean Councils. 46 

 47 

I’ve had people say to me, when they’ve heard that I represent 48 
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the council at ICCAT, so you’re one of those lucky guys that 1 

gets to travel to all the nice places for these meetings 2 

overseas and when Kay was representing us, I know that she made 3 

a trip to Monaco, if I remember right.  Last year’s meeting was 4 

in Paris and this year’s meeting is going to be in Istanbul I 5 

think is what I saw. 6 

 7 

The truth of the matter is that the U.S. sends a really small 8 

delegation.  They take applications from the Advisory Committee 9 

and they just go over with a small group and that group includes 10 

one council member and so the way the councils do it is they 11 

rotate that participation. 12 

 13 

The Gulf Council participation and opportunity to go to that 14 

two-week long meeting to some international big city some place 15 

comes about once every five years and I think that our turn will 16 

come up about two years from now, if I’m not mistaken. 17 

 18 

What are the species that ICCAT manages?  First off, it’s the 19 

tunas, but by definition, it’s actually all of the tunas and 20 

tuna-like species and you’ll see somehow the definition of tuna-21 

like species is pretty broad. 22 

 23 

The tunas are bluefin and that’s actually the fish that 24 

generates the most constituent and political interest.  There’s 25 

yellowfin, albacore, bigeye, and skipjack and curiously, 26 

blackfin, who I know some of us at least have some interest in, 27 

is not managed by ICCAT. 28 

 29 

Second-most important of the ones they manage are the swordfish.  30 

This one creates probably the most management controversy and if 31 

time permits when we go to the Other Business portion of our 32 

council meeting tomorrow, I’ve got a five-minute update on 33 

swordfish that I would like to present to the council.  34 

Basically, it lays out some of the challenges that the U.S. is 35 

facing in our swordfish management.   36 

 37 

Then we’ve got the billfish and that includes blue marlin, white 38 

marlin, spearfish, and sailfish.  We’ve got the sharks and in 39 

the last several years, ICCAT has actually taken an active 40 

management role in some of the ocean-going sharks. 41 

 42 

Back in 2004, they banned finning.  In 2009, they prohibited 43 

retention of bigeye thresher sharks and most recently, at this 44 

last meeting, they prohibited retention of oceanic white tips 45 

and hammerheads and that will be effective this summer. 46 

 47 

The other species, surprisingly, are turtles and seabirds and 48 
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this is one of the things that the U.S. has pushed, is better 1 

protection for these things.  At last year’s annual meeting, the 2 

U.S. was successful in getting a proposal adopted that will 3 

reduce the impact of fishing operations on sea turtles and 4 

mandate reporting of interactions with sea turtles within the 5 

ICCAT fisheries. 6 

 7 

What are some of the challenges that ICCAT faces?  We’ll talk 8 

about each of these issues a little bit more over the next 9 

couple of minutes.  Some of the critics jokingly refer to ICCAT 10 

as the International Conspiracy to Catch All Tuna and when you 11 

look at this next slide, you might think that possibly that’s 12 

true. 13 

 14 

I know some of you are going to have a little bit of trouble 15 

seeing it, but on the vertical axis on the left-hand side is 16 

metric tons of fish.  On the bottom, and I know you can’t see 17 

that, because I can’t, is years starting in 1950 through 2007 18 

and the fish that we’re looking at there, the orange on the top 19 

is skipjack tuna and the yellow is yellowfin tuna.  The green is 20 

swordfish and the dark blue is bluefin tuna. 21 

 22 

If you look, you’ll see that up until the early 1990s or so, all 23 

of the historical catch was on an uptrend and then virtually of 24 

the fish began a downtrend.  If you look closely at the last 25 

three or four years that we’ve got on that chart, you can see 26 

that all of those catches for all of those fish are basically 27 

falling off of that chart there. 28 

 29 

If we’ve got the SCRS that’s doing a good job of providing 30 

science for ICCAT to act on and everything that I hear is that 31 

they are providing really good science and good recommendations.  32 

If you look at the makeup of the SCRS, you’ll see that a lot of 33 

our best fisheries scientists are involved in that process. 34 

 35 

They contract out with universities and I guess private 36 

institutions to help them with that and so if the science is 37 

good, why isn’t the fisheries management good? 38 

 39 

The first problem is the problem of compliance.  Many of the 40 

parties don’t submit the data on a timely basis, especially 41 

catch size and catch by area, et cetera.  There’s lack of timely 42 

reporting for the assessments and there’s really poor 43 

implementation, pretty much ocean-wide, of quotas and other 44 

management measures, due to lack of capacity and other reasons. 45 

 46 

Allocations for the ICCAT group are even more contentions than 47 

the ones that this council has to deal with.  Who gets what and 48 
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do you favor the historical fisheries over the developing 1 

nations?  Who is responsible for overfished stocks?  Should you 2 

reward the responsible fishing parties, the ones that comply 3 

with the rules and implement ecosystem approaches?  Should they 4 

be rewarded and should the irresponsible fishing parties be 5 

penalized?  Those are all things that they deal with. 6 

 7 

Then you’ve got the issue of IUU fishing and so here’s another 8 

one for you, Larry.  IUU is illegal, unreported, and 9 

unregulated.  There are significant levels of IUU fishing in 10 

certain fisheries.   11 

 12 

Some of the solutions are to close the markets that purchase and 13 

deal in the legally caught fish to any of the places that still 14 

continue to purchase IUU catch and there are some severe 15 

problems with fish laundering during shipment and that’s issues 16 

where the fish are caught in one place and somehow between where 17 

they’re caught and where they’re landed, the type of fish that 18 

they are changes and the country that was fishing for them 19 

changes and from what we can understand, they actually change 20 

ships sometimes mid-ocean out there unexplainably. 21 

 22 

Another big problem that they deal with is the problem of 23 

overcapacity and if you think about some of these industrialized 24 

nations, not only do they depend heavily on their fisheries for 25 

incomes to their citizens, but they also depend on shipbuilding 26 

as industry. 27 

 28 

If you think about it, they’re facing a double whammy.  You’ve 29 

got a situation where not only are they not able to go out there 30 

and produce income and produce fish because the fish aren’t 31 

there anymore, but they’ve got entire industries that are 32 

shutting down that were shipbuilding that were supported by the 33 

increase in the fleet over the last thirty or forty years or so.  34 

 35 

What happens to those ships when they leave the fishery?  Well, 36 

in a lot of cases, we just don’t know.  You can see some of the 37 

issues up there. 38 

 39 

That basically gets me through the basics of how ICCAT works and 40 

with that, Mr. Chairman, if you want me to open the floor to 41 

questions, I’ll be glad to take them for a couple of minutes 42 

here. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Sapp.  Does anybody have any 45 

questions for Ed? 46 

 47 

DR. LARRY ABELE:  Does anyone know the size of the illegal and 48 
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unregulated fishery? 1 

 2 

MR. SAPP:  I wouldn’t know how to quantify that and I don’t know 3 

that anybody else has got that good of a handle on it.  All 4 

reports are that it’s pretty big.  I’m a little bit 5 

uncomfortable answering questions beyond the ICCAT 101 level.  6 

Russ Nelson is an ICCAT expert from many, many years of 7 

experience and so when you guys ask me a tough one, I’m going to 8 

send it over to him. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ed, I’ve got a question.  In the compliance 11 

area, is there a tendency for certain groups of countries, for 12 

example third-world countries, to not comply and is there a 13 

tendency for the more advanced countries to adopt and comply 14 

with regulations? 15 

 16 

MR. SAPP:  Yes and the U.S. is one of the main leaders in this 17 

whole compliance push, but I think that you could equate what’s 18 

going on in international fisheries to the situation that we 19 

were in in the Gulf of Mexico and in our U.S. fisheries maybe 20 

thirty or forty years ago. 21 

 22 

The compliance is something that’s going to be a slow, painful 23 

process.  There’s still opportunities for people to make money 24 

by staying outside the system and there are what they call 25 

artisanal fisheries, which are countries support their own 26 

citizens using their own small boats to harvest fish and they’re 27 

completely outside of the system.  There are a lot of issues 28 

with compliance and with reporting and with data gathering. 29 

 30 

MR. HENDRIX:  Along those lines, Ed, could you relate what’s 31 

happened with the swordfish industry in the United States and 32 

that program? 33 

 34 

MR. SAPP:  Joe, as long as Dr. Shipp will give me five minutes 35 

tomorrow afternoon, I’ll go through the whole issue, because 36 

it’s kind of a presentation that I want to make so that you can 37 

be aware of the problems that the U.S. is facing as we try to 38 

revitalize our swordfish fishery here in the U.S. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions for Ed?  That was super, 41 

Ed.  Thank you very, very much.  That was probably the best 42 

Fisheries 101 presentation we’ve ever had.  Thank you, Ed.   43 

 44 

We’re going to go into Public Testimony.  I had a couple of 45 

specific requests for people with certain time constraints and 46 

so I’ll do the best I can.  However, there’s just so much we can 47 

do in that respect. 48 
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 1 

We have quite a few cards and we will go as long as we have to 2 

go.  We have three minutes.  The light system on the podium, the 3 

first two minutes will be green and then yellow and then red and 4 

I am going to stop you within a few seconds when the red comes 5 

on and so it’s nothing personal, but we have to do that to get 6 

along. 7 

 8 

The Mayor of Orange Beach requested time, but I don’t think he’s 9 

here yet.  I don’t see him and so we’ll start off with Jim 10 

Clements. 11 

 12 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 13 

 14 

MR. JIM CLEMENTS:  I would like to talk about the interim rule 15 

and the 2012 gag TAC to be set in Amendment 32.  Most fishermen 16 

will tell you that gags have returned to the traditional eastern 17 

Gulf habitat. 18 

 19 

The gag stock assessment was started in 2008 and Amendment 32 20 

won’t be finished until this year and subsequent TAC won’t be 21 

implemented until 2012.  This is four years.  No wonder the 22 

status of the gag stock has changed. 23 

 24 

The 2010 gag rerun assessment specifies an annual catch target 25 

of 1.28 million pounds of gags for 2011 and 1.69 million pounds 26 

for 2012.  Due to the recent influx of gags, the 86 percent 27 

reduction of the 2011 annual catch targets for gags in the 28 

interim rule should be removed and the full 1.28 million pounds 29 

of gags granted to both sectors. 30 

 31 

This will give the commercial sector an additional 69,200 32 

pounds.  It’s not much, but it will help cut down on dead 33 

discards.  The TAC in 2012 and future years needs to be set at 34 

the full annual catch target, with no uncertainty factors built 35 

in. 36 

 37 

The SSC scientists have recommended this annual catch target.  38 

Please listen to them and don’t go any lower, or we will be 39 

throwing back dead discards that could be put on consumer’s 40 

plates. 41 

 42 

The next thing I wanted to talk about is size limits.  Like Dr. 43 

Crabtree in Action 5, in order to cut down dead discards, I urge 44 

this council to reduce the commercial size limit to twenty-two 45 

inches and select Alternative 5(a).  This will be consistent 46 

with the recreational size limit and will cut down considerably 47 

on dead discards and leave the larger, more productive gags to 48 
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spawn.  1 

 2 

The last thing is multiuse shares.  In Action 4, please create a 3 

new multiuse share for both other shallow-water grouper and 4 

deepwater grouper and increase the gag multiuse shares to 100 5 

percent. 6 

 7 

If you do this, you won’t need a bycatch quota.  Other shallow-8 

water and deepwater grouper are worth more money per pound than 9 

gags, deepwater grouper as much as a dollar.  If you have a 10 

thousand pounds of gag allocation, why not go out a little 11 

further and catch deepwater grouper and make a thousand dollars 12 

more? 13 

 14 

This will reduce the gag harvest and discards tremendously.  15 

Other shallow-water multiuse shares are in Amendment 32 already, 16 

but deepwater multiuse shares will have to be added to the 17 

amendment and voted on at the June council. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  I would ask council members to 20 

hold your questions to a minimum, because we really do have a 21 

lot of speakers today, but if it’s urgent, go ahead.  I will 22 

also call the name of the next person and the one following, so 23 

they’ll be ready.  Next is Tracy Redding, followed by John 24 

Schmidt. 25 

 26 

MS. TRACY REDDING:  My name is Tracy Redding and I own and 27 

operate AAA Charters, a charter booking service for boats along 28 

the Alabama coast.  I’m going to keep my comments today very 29 

brief. 30 

 31 

First of all, I want to thank the council and the staff for 32 

allowing me the opportunity to continue to testify.  I would 33 

like to see the council move forward with an amendment for the 34 

charterboats to receive their own ACL and accountability 35 

measures. 36 

 37 

I would also like to see, as soon as possible, us begin to 38 

utilize vessel monitoring systems and electronic logbooks that 39 

provide real-time data as soon as possible and so whatever we 40 

have to do through the APs and through the council process to 41 

keep those efforts moving as quickly as we can I believe is 42 

crucial to the survival of our charter fleet. 43 

 44 

Also, on one other note, I still am a strong advocate for the 45 

marine education program that’s been used up in the Northeast, 46 

up in Rhode Island.  It’s an incredible program for fishery 47 

education that reaches out to fishermen.  I’ve had the pleasure 48 
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to go and Mike Miglini recently also attended. 1 

 2 

There have been some efforts to bring that program to the South 3 

Atlantic and to the Gulf Council and I hope we get some support 4 

on continuing to bring that program to this area.  Thank you 5 

very much. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tracy.  Next is John Schmidt, 8 

followed by Michael Miglini. 9 

 10 

MR. JOHN SCHMIDT:  Thanks, everybody, for this opportunity.  I 11 

want to first thank the council and the Southeast Region of 12 

National Marine Fisheries.  This is a lot of hard work and a lot 13 

of headaches, really, to rebuild our fishery. 14 

 15 

I kind of feel personally that the worst is behind us and in the 16 

coming years that we’re going to have a lot to be proud of.  I 17 

think it was necessary and, again, we’ll have a lot to be proud 18 

of. 19 

 20 

I’ve got a few comments about Amendment 32.  My preference, 21 

personally, for commercial size limits is that there is no size 22 

limit.  I think with the quota program that it will be proven 23 

that the most conservation-oriented answer is to not have a size 24 

limit, so that if you have a dead fish, it goes against the 25 

quota.  However, twenty-two inches is the next best, but, again, 26 

my preference is no size limits. 27 

 28 

I also like the idea and believe it’s appropriate, the seasonal 29 

closure area between Madison-Swanson and Steamboat Lumps.  It 30 

makes sense to me, but also the part about reopening Madison-31 

Swanson and Steamboat Lumps for the eight months of the year. 32 

 33 

That makes a lot of sense to me.  I believe it’s the most 34 

rational solution and I don’t believe -- I also think it’s the 35 

most conservation-oriented solution.  I don’t think that making 36 

smaller areas to fish is really, in the long run, a good thing 37 

for the fishery. 38 

 39 

There’s been a lot of noise about dead gag discards recently and 40 

I’ve got our observer reports from the first quarter and they 41 

cover twenty-eight days of fishing and we had caught roughly 400 42 

pounds of gags and we had one dead gag discard and so it can be 43 

not quite as bad as you’ve heard and so the policies, I believe, 44 

really have given the gag rebuilding efforts a huge jump start. 45 

 46 

The other two things I want to comment real quickly about is I 47 

think that we need to eliminate the income qualification 48 
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requirements.  They’re impossible to enforce fairly.  They’re 1 

unnecessary and they’re burdensome.  I also think that we need 2 

to eliminate the crew size restrictions for the same reasons and 3 

that completes my comments. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, John.  Mike Miglini, followed by 6 

Steve Foust. 7 

 8 

MR. MICHAEL MIGLINI:  My name is Michael Miglini and I fish out 9 

of Port Aransas, Texas.  On the matter of crew size for dual-10 

permitted vessels, I feel strongly that there is no benefit to 11 

any crew size restrictions on dual-permitted vessels and there 12 

are many reasons it is not a good idea. 13 

 14 

I think it’s time for the crew size restriction to go away 15 

completely and I believe that any issues or most any issues that 16 

were intended to be addressed by the crew size restrictions are 17 

addressed in other ways now. 18 

 19 

On the matter of income qualification requirements, I support 20 

removing income qualification requirements from any fishing 21 

permits, specifically and starting with Gulf of Mexico 22 

commercial reef fish permits.  The income qualification 23 

requirements are out of date and largely ineffective at 24 

accomplishing their original purpose and stand in the way of 25 

some initiatives of the council. 26 

 27 

On the matter of amberjack, I support a fall recreational 28 

amberjack season and if having a fall amberjack season requires 29 

a closure during the red snapper season, then I support closing 30 

the recreational amberjack season during the red snapper season, 31 

in an effort to provide an extended recreational fishing season. 32 

 33 

I do not believe there will be a significant increase in non-34 

targeted species bycatch mortality with this plan, but there 35 

will be more valuable use of the resource while still meeting 36 

biological goals. 37 

 38 

On the issue of recreational gag grouper, I just flat out 39 

support a fall recreational gag grouper season.  On the issue of 40 

sustainable public access to our federally-managed recreational 41 

fisheries, I am again going to ask the council to realize that 42 

when the council placed a moratorium on federal charter headboat 43 

permits, the council created and separated the private boat 44 

owning recreational fishery from the recreational fishery which 45 

relies on hiring a boat. 46 

 47 

Whether at that time the council realized it voted for sector 48 
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separation or not does not change the fact that the council has 1 

brought about sector separation.  It is imperative for the 2 

council to move quickly in a manner which will allow non-boat 3 

owning private anglers to sustained access equivalent to those 4 

who own their own boats. 5 

 6 

Not doing so ignores the fact that allowing for the for-hire 7 

industry to die slowly is in fact reallocation of the fishery to 8 

a small socioeconomically privileged group of people. 9 

 10 

We need a separate fishery management plan for the separate 11 

sector the council created.  The term “bloody battle” was used 12 

yesterday and let’s not ignore the slow bleeding to death going 13 

on now. 14 

 15 

I am part of a growing number of charter operators who wish to 16 

call the question on whether or not the council will provide for 17 

our continued ability to provide recreational fishing access in 18 

a sustainable manner. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mike, your time is up.  Thank you.  Joe, do you 21 

have a question? 22 

 23 

MR. HENDRIX:  A quick question.  Would you support a May/June 24 

closure for recreational amberjack? 25 

 26 

MR. MIGLINI:  A May/June?  I would rather have something that 27 

runs concurrently with the red snapper season.  When that red 28 

snapper season is open, I’m booked and people are happy with two 29 

red snapper, or at least happier. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Steve Foust, followed by David 32 

Walker. 33 

 34 

MR. STEVE FOUST:  I’m Steve Foust and I’m owner and operator of 35 

the Charterboat Aqua Star in Orange Beach, Alabama.  The red 36 

snapper is the issue I would like to speak to, because our 37 

seasons are so short. 38 

 39 

I think I would be in favor of having a days at sea program, 40 

where I wouldn’t lose days to weather or because I don’t have 41 

customers on the boat.  I would be able to fish for snapper 42 

year-round that way, people that can’t just necessarily come in 43 

June and July. 44 

 45 

The amberjack, I think that the closure during the snapper 46 

season does have merit, because we would be able to offer 47 

something else in the fall besides just going tuna fishing, 48 
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which we’ll be able to catch some kind of a large fish then.  1 

That’s all. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Steve.  David Walker, followed by 4 

Jim Smarr.  Steve, hold on just a second.  We’ve got a question 5 

from Kevin. 6 

 7 

MR. ANSON:  Steve, thanks for coming today.  Do you have any 8 

thoughts on sector separation? 9 

 10 

MR. FOUST:  I think it would probably be a good thing.  The days 11 

at sea right now, I think a pilot program and we would know more 12 

about that kind of an issue after we had done something, to find 13 

out how it works. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Steve.  David, again followed by Jim 16 

Smarr. 17 

 18 

MR. DAVID WALKER:  I’m David Walker, a commercial fisherman from 19 

Alabama.  I would like to speak first on allocation.  I would 20 

not like to see the allocation reallocated in any way.  I would 21 

like to see the commercial fishery’s allocation stay for the 22 

nation’s resource. 23 

 24 

I also would like to speak on amberjack.  I would like to see a 25 

2,000-pound trip limit for amberjacks and finally, I would like 26 

to express my support for the sector separation.  I would like 27 

to see these guys be able to manage their own business and their 28 

own plan they develop.  Thank you. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  Jim Smarr, followed by Scott 31 

Hickman. 32 

 33 

MR. JIM SMARR:  For the record, my name is Jim Smarr and I here 34 

representing the RFA Texas.  First of all, the Florida governor 35 

and Texas governor and I’m not sure how many others have sent 36 

letters into this council asking for the additional million 37 

pounds of underfished snapper from last year. 38 

 39 

We have a crisis in the Gulf with our charter captains and 40 

headboats.  We had a meeting, because this AP, this LAPP AP, the 41 

previous last committee, I couldn’t believe that committee 42 

meeting, by the way. 43 

 44 

We had a meeting in Texas because a member of that committee 45 

said that they had spoken to a majority of the headboats and 46 

that they were going broke and had to have an IFQ.  Well, I have 47 

signed affidavits from a bunch of people across the Gulf that we 48 
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ask our state representatives to put in the record, and I guess 1 

they will tomorrow, but there is not a vast majority of people 2 

that want IFQs and the Texas boats and the other boats that I 3 

talked to personally weren’t very kind about their thoughts 4 

about an IFQ pilot program or an IFQ program. 5 

 6 

For them to not be represented and to not have their own AP 7 

didn’t make them happy either and so I think it is a total 8 

injustice with what I saw happen this afternoon with this 9 

council moving forward with a plan because somebody wants it 10 

that doesn’t even belong to that sector and to cram it down 11 

their throats. 12 

 13 

I think we need to revisit that.  I think there needs to be a -- 14 

The thing needs to die, because we have affidavits that say they 15 

don’t want it. 16 

 17 

Number two, if you’re going to do that, then have an advisory 18 

panel consistent with the subject matter being talked about 19 

there and if a person comes to an advisory panel that is 20 

appointed to an advisory panel and misrepresents material facts 21 

to that, they should be summarily thrown off, period. 22 

 23 

We travel a long distance to come to these meetings and spend a 24 

lot of money and to have people materially misrepresent facts 25 

that eventually get to you people, to this council, that’s not 26 

good.  I certainly hope that you all give some serious 27 

consideration tomorrow in full council to looking at this before 28 

you all spend another dime on an IFQ headboat plan.  Thank you. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a question.  Thank you, Jim.  I appreciate 33 

those comments and I agree with most of them.  How do you feel, 34 

if this council already happens to have 150 résumés or so, where 35 

they can go ahead and choose some headboat people so they can 36 

have their own AP and address these issues and put this matter 37 

to bed? 38 

 39 

MR. SMARR:  Ms. Williams, I think in light of what the 40 

affidavits that are being faxed to the council and the ones I 41 

have in hand, you have more than what it would take than a 42 

supermajority to even implement the plan.   43 

 44 

If you all want to spend more money in a tight budget and 45 

implement another committee and put people on it, I guess you 46 

could do that.  I would love to see it killed here and now.  If 47 

you do choose to go forward, it should be headboats only on that 48 
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committee.  Thank you. 1 

 2 

MR. RAY:  Jim, I am also in possession of some of those 3 

affidavits.  It looks like fifteen from Texas and five from 4 

Mississippi and three from Florida that I have on hand right 5 

now. 6 

 7 

Of course, I don’t have a real good feel for how that might work 8 

for some of the other states, but fifteen from Texas is what 9 

percentage of that particular fleet? 10 

 11 

MR. SMARR:  It’s all but three permits, active permits, that are 12 

counted in the study.  That’s a pretty strong percentage, 13 

fifteen of the eighteen. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Captain Scott Hickman, followed by Mike Eller. 16 

 17 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Thank you for hearing me, council, and 18 

giving me the opportunity to speak.  My name is Captain Scott 19 

Hickman from Galveston, Texas.  I do support the amberjack 20 

closure in the red snapper season.  21 

 22 

I do support the council’s option for a fall gag season.  I 23 

support moving forward with the charter days at sea program and 24 

the headboat IFQ pilot programs.   25 

 26 

I support a charter for-hire sector separation amendment and I 27 

support removing the crew size limit on dual-permitted vessels.  28 

I support removing income qualifier requirements on persons 29 

holding commercial reef fish permits.  I also wanted to thank 30 

the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission for going compliant on 31 

gag grouper, which will really help us.  32 

 33 

Last year in the Galveston meeting, the Galveston council 34 

meeting, we put together a big bunch of charter for-hire 35 

captains that wanted a 100 percent data collection program for 36 

our industry.  We’ve been begging for it and we’ve been 37 

demanding it and I wanted to know where we’re at on that. 38 

 39 

As far as the pilots go, from what I understand, a lot of -- 40 

I’ve talked to a lot of the headboat guys and we’ve got about a 41 

third of the headboat fleet that said they would like to 42 

participate in a headboat IFQ pilot program and in Texas, I’ve 43 

talked to a big majority of guys that said they would be 44 

interested in participating or seeing how a pilot program would 45 

test to see if it would work or not.  Maybe not to participate 46 

in and not to implement a pilot program for IFQs, but to see if 47 

it had merit or if it would fail, one way or another, but to 48 
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answer that question. 1 

 2 

The same thing with the days at sea program.  The charterboats, 3 

the six-pack boats, our seasons have been getting shorter and 4 

we’ve got a lot of guys that just make a living just off their 5 

boats and it’s gotten to the point now, with the regulations, 6 

that they can’t carry forward with it. 7 

 8 

My nine-year-old daughter told me about a month ago -- We were 9 

down on the boat and she said, Daddy, I would like to be a 10 

charterboat captain just like you.  I had to look her in the 11 

face and say with the current regulations, the chances are 12 

pretty slim by the time you get my age and that’s sad to say. 13 

 14 

Let’s move forward with these pilot programs and try some new, 15 

fresh ideas and see what will work to save this industry and 16 

America’s access to the reef fish complex in the Gulf of Mexico. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott.  Mike Eller, followed by Bill 19 

Tucker. 20 

 21 

MR. MIKE ELLER:  Dr. Shipp, I turned in a card to speak on 22 

behalf of my association and I also turned in a card to speak on 23 

behalf of my business, because our stance on a couple of these 24 

items are completely different, or somewhat different.  If I’m 25 

going to be allowed to, I just wanted to -- 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It will depend on the timing, Mike.  The ones 28 

that requested double presentations, it will depend on how much 29 

time we have at the end. 30 

 31 

MR. ELLER:  I understand and I’ll try to be quick and I’ll cut 32 

through a lot of it.  The Destin Charterboat Association, we 33 

have approximately a hundred boats, charterboats, in our fleet, 34 

in our harbor, both federally permitted and non-permitted.  In 35 

our association, we have approximately eighty charterboats and 36 

most of them are federally-permitted vessels. 37 

 38 

In the Destin area, we have seen a decline in the gag grouper 39 

landings in the last two to three years, three to four years, 40 

which followed a large increase in landings in 2004 and 2005 and 41 

so we have seen a decline and we’ve supported regulations on 42 

gags.  Even though they’re going to be hurtful and they’re going 43 

to hurt us, we are in what -- We want the stock to recover as 44 

quickly as possible, so that we can all be in a better place. 45 

 46 

We have continued to work with the Florida Fish and Wildlife 47 

Commission for state compatibility.  Our association did that 48 
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not because we were worried about losing our fall season and not 1 

because we were worried about somebody else gaining our fish, 2 

but we did that because our concern was the stock and we 3 

recognize that the stock has been in decline around our area. 4 

 5 

The good news is that since we’ve been fishing this spring, 6 

we’ve seen a lot of gag groupers and a lot of us have been 7 

talking about how many we’ve been seeing and so in our mind, it 8 

feels like we’ve actually already turned a little corner, just 9 

because we’re seeing so many fish. 10 

 11 

On the sector separation issue, our association has really -- 12 

Because sector separation started and it’s an evolvement of what 13 

was originally the SOS and because the SOS started with a lot of 14 

vitriol and a lot of really nasty emails, everything that came 15 

down the pike from that has been tainted. 16 

 17 

Our association really hasn’t had a chance to look at the sector 18 

separation presentation that Andy did.  When I talked to him 19 

about it and they understand the connection of where it comes 20 

from, a lot of them have an automatically closed mind. 21 

 22 

I believe that the numbers, on a piece of paper, are going to 23 

really open a lot of people’s eyes.  We’ve asked Andy if he will 24 

come speak to our association and lay it out for them clearly, 25 

because I just saw it myself a few days ago and a lot of them 26 

are going to have some questions. 27 

 28 

At that point, then we have some very strong moral questions to 29 

ask ourselves and the decision that our association takes is up 30 

in the air.  I don’t know what they’re going to say. 31 

 32 

For me personally, as I look at in my business, you have no 33 

choice but to look at the numbers and see it’s very clear, in 34 

black and white, where we’re going and so I also have some hard 35 

decisions.  I would probably, in the end, have to support it and 36 

I’ve heard quite a few charterboat captains in Destin say they 37 

would definitely like to take a look at it. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mike, your time is up. 40 

 41 

MR. ELLER:  Am I out of time?  I had lots more.  I had more on 42 

several other issues if you’ll let me come back up later. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If we have time, I will. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  Mike, does your association support the June/July 47 

amberjack closure? 48 
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 1 

MR. ELLER:  I’ll tell you, you’ve got to pick your poison and 2 

we’ve been doing that for years and that’s the way it works 3 

around here and we understand that.  We don’t like it, but if 4 

it’s going to get us to a fall season and if it’s going to help 5 

the stock and it’s going to help the fishery, then it’s better 6 

than having it -- We understand the reason to have it in June 7 

and July, because we get the most bang for our buck.  It’s going 8 

to be hurtful, but we support it. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.  Bill Tucker, followed by Tom 11 

Becker. 12 

 13 

MR. BILL TUCKER:  I’m Bill Tucker out of Dunedin, Florida.  I 14 

have just a few comments.  I want to support the idea of a 15 

sector separation.  We’ve got a group, as I’ve said before, a 16 

group of recreational fishermen or fishermen who take 17 

recreational fishermen fishing and they’re trying to develop a 18 

system whereby they can stay within their quota and count fish 19 

and be accountable and I think we ought to support that 20 

wholeheartedly. 21 

 22 

On some of these fisheries and some of these species, they 23 

account for a very large percentage of the recreational quota 24 

and they’re looking for a way to be accountable and we ought to 25 

give them that shot. 26 

 27 

These pilot programs that we’ve been talking about should be 28 

developed.  We should try this stuff out and we should test it 29 

and if these small boats float, maybe we can move it into bigger 30 

programs, but certainly test it on a small scale.  That’s the 31 

headboat IFQ pilot and the charterboat days at sea. 32 

 33 

For gag grouper, I think it’s a good idea to go with the twenty-34 

two-inch size limit.  I think most of your commercial landings 35 

are well above that.  We don’t really catch, in our operation, a 36 

lot of under twenty-four-inch fish, but for the few that do come 37 

up, if they’re not in great shape, it would be nice to be able 38 

to bring them back and count them rather than throw them back 39 

dead. 40 

 41 

On the allocation front, the Council Coordinating Committee is 42 

beginning the process of developing guidance on allocation 43 

reviews called for by the National Catch Share Policy.  I would 44 

urge that the council await the development of this guidance 45 

before we lunge headlong into lengthy reallocation debates.  46 

That pretty much concludes my comments. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill. 1 

 2 

MR. BOYD:  How do you feel about the additional territory that 3 

could be closed under seasonal closure that we talked about 4 

earlier, the Madison-Swanson area? 5 

 6 

MR. TUCKER:  I don’t fish in that area too much and so it really 7 

doesn’t affect my operation.  I think the idea of protecting 8 

spawning gag is probably a good idea if it works and so I don’t 9 

know if we want to do that forever, but it may be something 10 

worth trying. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Tom Becker, followed by Mike 13 

Jennings. 14 

 15 

MR. TOM BECKER:  My name is Tom Becker, President of the 16 

Mississippi Charterboat Captain’s Association.  Of those five 17 

that he spoke of that he had paperwork of, that is 100 percent 18 

of our multi-passenger vessels that fish out of Biloxi. 19 

 20 

The guys would look at a days at sea, but right now, with the 21 

data that they have, Mississippi would not get maybe two days 22 

anyway and so guess what?  They’re not happy.  Now, if it comes 23 

out better, it would be nice. 24 

 25 

The amberjack, we have some small boats.  The big boats don’t go 26 

target them.  As you know, we’re pushing for the red drum.  That 27 

is our main staple in our area, because of the numbers of them.  28 

The few that do go down to amberjack country and gag grouper 29 

country, they would probably like to have a fall season. 30 

 31 

The fall season in our area, a lot of times, turns into get the 32 

guns out and let’s go hunting time and so they’re very 33 

skeptical, but I feel that the captains would like that.  It’s 34 

something we will address to them, how they feel about it, but 35 

the charter captains of the recreational for-hire that are 36 

multi-passenger vessels definitely do not want sector separation 37 

or anything to do with catch shares for now.  Thank you.  Any 38 

questions? 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  Any questions?  Okay.  Mike 41 

Jennings, followed by Libby Fetherston. 42 

 43 

MR. MIKE JENNINGS:  I’m Captain Mike Jennings of Cowboy 44 

Charters.  I’m a charterboat operator out of Freeport, Texas.  45 

I’m the Vice President of the Charter Fishermen’s Association.  46 

I just wanted to say a couple of things. 47 

 48 
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The first thing is the CFA supports an amberjack closure during 1 

the red snapper open season and as an association, we support 2 

the fall gag grouper season. 3 

 4 

Those of us at CFA, along with many others, have been coming to 5 

the council since 2008, asking the council for a separate 6 

management plan or some kind of alternative management system.  7 

In meeting after meeting and public testimony after public 8 

testimony, we’re trying to convey the message that it’s time to 9 

bring the charter for-hire sector into the twenty-first century 10 

as a professional and sustainable industry. 11 

 12 

At the last meeting, sector separation was pulled out of the 13 

ACL/AM Amendment with the intention, or assumed intention, of 14 

moving it into its own dedicated amendment to further analyze 15 

that process and as an association, we feel it’s time to move 16 

that into that amendment and give these guys something tangible 17 

to work with and something to look forward to. 18 

 19 

We’re willing to work with the council to help develop this 20 

management process and one of the other options would be moving 21 

forward with the voluntary pilot programs and take these 22 

concepts and make workable solutions out of them, but we need it 23 

soon.  It’s down to the point to where the clock is kind of 24 

ticking. 25 

 26 

It was said yesterday in full council that this thing would turn 27 

into a bloody battle.  The truth of the matter is that the 28 

charter for-hire has been in a bloody battle for its own 29 

survival for quite some time and it’s been a long, painful 30 

issue.  Most of us in this room have watched it happen. 31 

 32 

This battle that we’re fighting has been due to regulations that 33 

apply only to our industry that was put on our industry by this 34 

council and we have some options and some ways to not ask you to 35 

rewrite the book and throw it out and start over or give us any 36 

kind of gifts.  We’re just asking for a way to work within that 37 

management system to keep these businesses viable. 38 

 39 

The solution is in our hands, so to speak, and we can do one of 40 

two things.  We can let the charter for-hire sector die on the 41 

vine or we can help preserve this industry and move forward into 42 

the twenty-first century.  Thank you. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Go ahead, Bill. 45 

 46 

MR. TEEHAN:  Captain, thanks for coming over and talking.  Is 47 

your association Gulf-wide or is it Texas? 48 



27 

 

 1 

MR. JENNINGS:  We’re four states. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Libby Fetherston, followed by 4 

Captain Jerry Anderson. 5 

 6 

MS. LIBBY FETHERSTON:  Good afternoon.  Thanks for the 7 

opportunity to provide some comments.  My name is Libby 8 

Fetherston and I’m here on behalf of the Ocean Conservancy.  I 9 

would like to start by thanking the State of Florida for their 10 

commitment to sustainable fisheries, as evidenced by their 11 

recent vote on gag grouper.  Mr. Wiley, welcome to the council 12 

process.  I would like to personally vouch for Mr. Teehan’s 13 

exemplary attendance record. 14 

 15 

We want to express our support for the gag interim regulations 16 

to end overfishing and the continued development of Amendment 17 

32.  We found the motion on Action 6 particularly welcome that 18 

extends the seasonal spawning Edges protection for spawning gag. 19 

 20 

I appreciated the healthy discussion in the Reef Fish Committee 21 

on the greater amberjack situation.  We look forward to the 22 

development of that fishery management plan and support the 23 

actions that that committee took and look forward to providing 24 

our detailed recommendations for how the council might 25 

incorporate the substantial management uncertainty into future 26 

amberjack regulations. 27 

 28 

In addition, we would like to thank the staff and the IPT, I 29 

think particularly Peter Hood, for the recent reconstruction of 30 

the accountability measures section of the annual catch limits 31 

document and we eagerly await the full council’s discussion of 32 

this section and then the approval of this document for public 33 

hearing in May and we will, of course, reserve our detailed 34 

comments for that time. 35 

 36 

Finally, we strongly support the NOAA General Counsel for a full 37 

verbatim transcript of the SSC discussions where particularly 38 

any ABCs are discussed and developed.  It seems like having that 39 

verbatim information for something as critical as annual 40 

biological catch setting would be a useful tool for the council 41 

and for the public.  Thank you all again for your time. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Libby.  Captain Jerry Anderson, 44 

followed by Jason Delacruz. 45 

 46 

MR. JERRY ANDERSON:  I’m Jerry Anderson from Panama City, 47 

Florida and headboats.  I grew up in the headboat sector.  My 48 
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father had headboats and my grandfather and now I’ve got 1 

headboats. 2 

 3 

We need different measures to look at.  We can’t sit here for 4 

fifty years and do the same thing over and over again.  To 5 

survive, we’ve got to have adaptability.  We’ve got to adapt to 6 

our customer base. 7 

 8 

I would like to ask the council to relook at or send it back to 9 

the AP, the headboat IFQ program.  This is a voluntary program 10 

for headboats and wherever they are, if they don’t like it, they 11 

don’t have to get in it.  That’s not a problem, but I haven’t 12 

seen any that I’ve talked to that are against it.  Most 13 

everybody I’ve talked to are all for it and all we want to do is 14 

look at it and have that option available. 15 

 16 

As far as the sector separation goes, I’m all for that, 100 17 

percent.  We’re a separate sector by our own existence.  We make 18 

a living doing this and we need our own separate management 19 

plan.  That’s all I’ve got and thank you. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you. 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ve got a question for Jerry.  Mr. Anderson, my 24 

understanding from your question is that you would just like to 25 

explore some pilot project and you may very likely come back if 26 

it doesn’t work for you and say hey, it doesn’t work and it was 27 

a bad idea and we don’t want it.  Is that right?  You’re just 28 

wanting a pilot and you want us to start now and not wait until 29 

later? 30 

 31 

MR. ANDERSON:  That’s exactly right.  Let’s just look at it real 32 

close and take your time and get some headboat people on the 33 

panel and let’s look at it.  Thank you. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Jason Delacruz, followed by Johnny 36 

Williams. 37 

 38 

MR. JASON DELACRUZ:  I’m Jason Delacruz from Seminole, Florida.  39 

Most of you all know me and there’s not a whole lot of things 40 

today.  As far as 32 goes, the only thing that I have a little 41 

bit of a question with is your Alternative 6 in Section 3(c), 42 

which was a preferred. 43 

 44 

I’m not real clear and maybe Roy can clarify this for me.  As 45 

long as we are getting something in closing that section of the 46 

Edges and we get some sort of reduction in catch or something 47 

that’s transferable, I suppose we could go along with it, but as 48 
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a general rule, we’re kind of closing a lot of things fast and I 1 

would like to slow down a little bit and so we’re kind of up in 2 

the air on that. 3 

 4 

It just makes me a little nervous and maybe if we could tie it 5 

in with opening some areas seasonally, that would be fabulous 6 

and that would be a change for once. 7 

 8 

As far as the income qualifier, it’s kind of made its time 9 

through the system and the other side to that is we ended up 10 

with an IFQ where a lot of people only got small amounts of IFQ 11 

and by default, if they want to fish this IFQ, you have them 12 

under an income qualifier and they almost can’t earn money any 13 

other way because of it and so it seems kind of counterintuitive 14 

that with an IFQ that we would hold on to that income qualifier.  15 

Maybe give these people a chance to fish some of these fish, 16 

because small operators aren’t a bad thing.  Sometimes they’re a 17 

good thing in the fishery. 18 

 19 

I also think the sector separation -- I think we need to do 20 

anything we can to get the recreational fishery, to get some 21 

solid counting in the recreational fishery.  At least if we 22 

tried something in there and learned something, it would give us 23 

a forward momentum in that area and so I’m completely for that. 24 

 25 

As far as the headboat pilot IFQ, again, it’s the same scenario.  26 

At least let these guys try.  I know they’re arguing and split 27 

on it, but give them an opportunity to put themselves in a room 28 

and work it out and see if they can figure out what they need to 29 

do and do something, because I know I certainly couldn’t run my 30 

business at all if you only gave me sixty days to do it.  Thank 31 

you. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jason.  Johnny Williams, followed by 34 

Buddy Guindon. 35 

 36 

MR. JOHNNY WILLIAMS:  Johnny Williams with Williams Party Boats, 37 

Incorporated.  I’m a third-generation party boat operator out of 38 

Galveston, Texas.  After I got my Master’s in Business 39 

Administration at SMU University up there in Dallas, Texas, I 40 

became a full-time party boat operator. 41 

 42 

I would like to ask the folks here at this panel here, who here 43 

thinks that the federal government or they can operate my 44 

business better than I can?  If there’s anyone here, I would 45 

appreciate it if they would show their hands.  Exactly.  I think 46 

pretty much everyone in this country could operate their 47 

business better than the federal government can.  All I’m asking 48 
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is for the chance to do so. 1 

 2 

If we had sector separation, I think that this could be 3 

accomplished, but first, I think we need to get a pilot program.  4 

We need to get information and I agree with Ed Sapp.  We need to 5 

vote this thing up or down to see if it works or doesn’t work. 6 

 7 

I wasn’t 100 percent sure this is going to work, but I’m about 8 

99 percent sure and I would at least like to have the 9 

opportunity to see, because I firmly believe that I can operate 10 

my business better than the federal government can. 11 

 12 

I’ve got two party boats.  I’ve got the Texan 2 and the Captain 13 

John and they’re both federally permitted.  As far as this 14 

meeting that was taking place in Texas, I can’t really speak 15 

about it.   16 

 17 

I guess I’m one of the two or three permits that weren’t invited 18 

to the meeting.  I don’t know if they lost my phone number or 19 

what, but I guess I was inconveniently or conveniently not 20 

invited to attend to basically give my side of the story. 21 

 22 

I also think that we should include gag grouper in a pilot 23 

program for the headboats, because these folks are getting ready 24 

to go through the same process that we’ve been going through the 25 

last three or four years when we’ve had very, very short 26 

seasons, about two months.  I would like to see the gag grouper 27 

included in the pilot boat program as well. 28 

 29 

I would like to see this get on as quickly as possible.  As Kay 30 

mentioned, she’s got a number of people that are in the party 31 

boat industry that are available.  They’ve submitted their names 32 

and I’m not one of them, but there are a number of them, Kay 33 

said, in this pool and so I think that what we should do is get 34 

a new panel made up of partyboat operators and let them 35 

participate in this program and at least give us a chance to 36 

explore what the possibilities are. 37 

 38 

I don’t know how anybody can make a determination if they don’t 39 

like or do like a program unless they see the parameters that 40 

are involved and so let’s get this moving forward and let’s set 41 

up a new panel and let’s get everyone in there to have the 42 

opportunity to hear some of the possibilities and give us a 43 

chance to save our businesses.  44 

 45 

Andy gave a presentation yesterday and showed how we’re in dire 46 

straits and there’s going to be fewer and fewer of us around 47 

next year if something isn’t put in place soon.  Thank you. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Johnny.  Buddy Guindon, followed by 2 

Herb Malone. 3 

 4 

MR. BUDDY GUINDON:  I’m Buddy Guindon with the Gulf of Mexico 5 

Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  I’m a commercial fisherman, 6 

fish house owner, and President of the Mosquito Fleet.  You’re 7 

probably not aware of that.  It’s a shrimping organization in 8 

Galveston. 9 

 10 

The reason I tell you all those things is because I want you to 11 

know I’ve been doing this my entire adult life and I’ve seen 12 

what’s happened in Galveston with the party boat and the 13 

charterboat fleet. 14 

 15 

I’ve watched friends disappear left and right and so I support, 16 

first of all, sector separation so that the bleeding can stop 17 

and so they can quit losing their share of participation in 18 

their fishery, so that they can continue to be in business.  I 19 

work right down the street from Johnny and I would like to see 20 

him stay there. 21 

 22 

I also support the headboat IFQ.  I would like to see them be 23 

able to prosecute their business the way I’ve been able to 24 

prosecute mine.  When we were fishing that derby, it was a tough 25 

time.  We worked very hard for very little. 26 

 27 

Since that time, we’ve been able to make a very decent living 28 

and have crews that have a sustainable lifestyle and a 29 

sustainable job and I would like to see that for other folks in 30 

that business. 31 

 32 

I support the charter days at sea program for a pilot, so they 33 

can test it out and see if that’s going to work for them, so 34 

they can spread their business out a little more and get some 35 

customers that they won’t normally get if the season is kept the 36 

way it is. 37 

 38 

I support all that because it’s going to promote accountability 39 

and accountability is something that’s missing in the 40 

recreational fishery.  We need to have more accountability so 41 

that we can actually know what’s out there in the Gulf of Mexico 42 

as far as the stock of fish. 43 

 44 

The commercial sector has got their accountability.  If we can 45 

spread it to the for-hire fleet, we can get it up to 75 or 80 46 

percent and then we’ll work on the rest from there.   47 

 48 
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I also support the preferred alternatives in Amendment 32.  I 1 

would like to see the fishermen given something back for what 2 

they’re going to give up.  They’re willing to give it up.  3 

They’re willing to say close these areas if it’s going to be 4 

good for the stock of fish and it can recover, but think about 5 

what it is they’re giving up and how that’s going to affect the 6 

stock and its recovery and that’s all I have to say. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Buddy.  Herb Malone, followed by 9 

Kenneth Doxey. 10 

 11 

MR. HERB MALONE:  Thank you, Dr. Shipp, and welcome to all you 12 

members of the council and staff and guests and what have you.  13 

Welcome to Orange Beach and Gulf Shores.  I am Herb Malone and 14 

I’m President and CEO of the Gulf Shores and Orange Beach 15 

Tourism and have been in that role for some twenty-odd years of 16 

leading the tourism business here in Baldwin County. 17 

 18 

Our tourism industry here generates about four-and-a-half 19 

million visitors like you and who leave behind, when you go 20 

home, $2.3 billion each year.  That supports 40,000 jobs 21 

locally. 22 

 23 

These fishermen sitting around this room, these charter captains 24 

and what have you here and the recreational fishermen, are a big 25 

part of those numbers and I’m here basically to speak in support 26 

of them. 27 

 28 

I’ve been involved in this a little bit on the side, on the 29 

perimeter, as an observer.  I was asked to serve on the Red 30 

Snapper AP and I’ve done it for several years, to bring a 31 

tourism perspective to that.  I do not pretend to be a fishery 32 

management person.  That’s your job and I think you do a great 33 

job of it, but there’s got to be some more flexibility. 34 

 35 

The thing I’ve heard these gentlemen say over and over today and 36 

I’ve been hearing for several years now, in many ways and many 37 

different terms, is the need for flexibility and the need for 38 

adaptation. 39 

 40 

These are changing times and these are tough times and I worry 41 

each year when this short-term sixty-day or whatever it is or 42 

shorter snapper season ends, by fall, how many more of our boat 43 

captains have had to sell their boats to keep from losing their 44 

homes and things like that.  If they days at sea gives them that 45 

flexibility to be able to manage their business on an individual 46 

basis, it sure sounds like it makes sense to me. 47 

 48 
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I recall those days and I think the gentleman before me 1 

mentioned the derby days in the commercial fishing industry.  It 2 

didn’t take many years to learn that that doesn’t work.  One 3 

size does not fit all. 4 

 5 

These forty-five to sixty-day snapper seasons, to me, is just 6 

like the derby fishing.  I, again, just urge you to prioritize 7 

the pilot programs that are being discussed and help these 8 

ladies and gentlemen who have invested their livelihoods in 9 

their equipment and their boats.  They have mortgages to pay and 10 

children to raise and families to take care of and if we don’t 11 

give them some flexibility, unfortunately a lot of them won’t be 12 

in business much longer.  That’s the only comment I have.  Thank 13 

you. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Herb.  We’ve got a question, Herb. 16 

 17 

MR. GREENE:  Herb, thanks for coming.  Just one question and not  18 

a species-specific question or anything else, but can you give 19 

the council an idea, from a tourism director standpoint, of what 20 

last fall was like in this area for the industry, with the 21 

fishing trips and the snapper being open and the amberjack being 22 

open, in comparison with the last couple of years? 23 

 24 

MR. MALONE:  2010 was such an anomaly year with the oil spill 25 

that it’s just a very, very unique situation to itself.  I know 26 

the fall snapper season was an added benefit.  Frankly, in my 27 

opinion, the tourists and guests who normally may have come had 28 

written us off by then. 29 

 30 

The oil spill had scared them and all the concerns about that 31 

and I heard someone say earlier, and I agree with it, that a lot 32 

of people that fish also hunt.  We’ve got a strong spring 33 

tourist season that really are being denied a lot of fishing 34 

opportunity and a lot of opportunity for people to take them 35 

fishing and make money. 36 

 37 

In a normal year, we’re seeing about 70 percent of our tourists 38 

are here during June, July, and August.  Using greater fishing 39 

opportunities in fall and springtime would help us spread that 40 

out and not be so dependent on those three summer months. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Herb.  Kenneth Doxey, followed by Jim 43 

Zurbrick. 44 

 45 

MR. KENNETH DOXEY:  I’m Kenneth Doxey and I operate Paparada Rey 46 

Charters located in Freeport, Texas.  I represent four permitted 47 

vessels today and sixteen captains. 48 
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 1 

Yesterday, I asked a question for the workings, the nuts and 2 

bolts, the gears, of how sector separation would benefit the 3 

commercial for-hire industry.  I was told that there are no 4 

actual workings.  I find that incredible, since we were shown 5 

how the commercial for-hire industry would benefit in almost 6 

every way from this, but there were no specifics. 7 

 8 

The presentation was dazzling for the commercial for-hire sector 9 

separation crowd.  The baffling portion, for me, was a total 10 

lack of specific numbers.  For instance, a recreational effort 11 

increase shown in a presentation versus the United States Fish 12 

and Wildlife Service numbers showing an 18 percent decrease in 13 

recreational saltwater effort and the State of Florida showing a 14 

huge decrease in saltwater fishing as well. 15 

 16 

There was no explanation for the discrepancies in those numbers.  17 

Johnny Greene said yesterday that the commercial for-hire 18 

industry is a platform for the recreational angler to access the 19 

snapper quota.   20 

 21 

With that in mind, the simple and inescapable facts are that 22 

every snapper caught on any commercial for-hire vessel is caught 23 

by a recreational angler.  The commercial for-hire industry has 24 

no right to call dibs on any portion of the recreational quota.  25 

It just does not belong to us. 26 

 27 

Finally, the economic impact of removing tens of thousands of 28 

recreational boat owners and anglers from accessing the snapper 29 

quota is unconscionable.  Recreational fishing-based businesses 30 

that are already financially stressed would see the loss of 31 

customers dwindle dramatically and that’s due because one 32 

commercial for-hire vessel cannot replace tens, if not hundreds, 33 

of private boat owners when it comes to spending money at their 34 

businesses. 35 

 36 

The four permits I represent, the sixteen captains that I 37 

represent, are firmly against sector separation at this point.  38 

That’s all I have. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Jim Zurbrick, followed by Russ 41 

Nelson. 42 

 43 

MR. JIM ZURBRICK:  Thank you for allowing me to speak here.  I’m 44 

Jim Zurbrick and I live in Steinhatchee, Florida and this 45 

process, especially this public testimony, reminds me of the 46 

buffet that my wife Patty and I went to and she said don’t put 47 

all that on your plate and you can go back again. 48 
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 1 

There’s so many issues here and so it’s kind of like a yes or 2 

no, but twenty-five years in the charter business, and I 3 

commercial fished some during that period of time, and I think 4 

it’s long overdue for the dual permit owners to go to more than 5 

three. 6 

 7 

As I’m sixty years old and I put two divers down, because that’s 8 

what I do, is commercial spearfish, more than anything, on my 9 

personal boat, on my commercial spearfishing boat, something 10 

could happen to me up on the top.   11 

 12 

You get to be sixty and you start thinking about things like 13 

that.  You should be two down and two up top and so it’s going 14 

to help the commercial spear fishermen.  We brought this up 15 

years back and it never went anywhere and thank God it finally 16 

is now. 17 

 18 

The income requirement, the point was made about the IFQ and 19 

that’s the majority of what the dollars are in the Gulf.  It’s 20 

managed under an IFQ and I think it’s important for the small 21 

guys to not have that requirement.  There’s people mowing yards 22 

and then trying to fish and so I think it helps and I would like 23 

to see that income requirement go away. 24 

 25 

Sector separation, of course, I was involved with this a few 26 

years ago when I was charter fishing more.  It just seems 27 

inevitable that any group that wants to be accountable and wants 28 

to put a VMS on their boat, like we do in the commercial sector, 29 

who wants to walk the line, you need to give them an 30 

opportunity.  Any pilot programs, especially the days at sea, 31 

that goes a long ways to help this industry. 32 

 33 

Amendment 32, in the 1990s, late 1990s, selling twenty-inch 34 

fish, I don’t think Bob gave me anything less for a twenty-inch 35 

fish whether it was a twenty-eight-inch fish if it was a gag.  I 36 

don’t think that twenty-two-inch size limit is going to have any 37 

effect on what we’re getting for our fish. 38 

 39 

I think the gags are so sought after as far as economically -- 40 

That’s the fish a lot of people want to buy for the restaurants 41 

and I think we’ll be fine there. 42 

 43 

I think the area closures are important.  We’ve been hearing it 44 

from a lot of experts, that if we close the areas where they 45 

spawn -- We try to do the best we can with it and I think that’s 46 

important.   47 

 48 
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Now, there’s a limit to how big that area can be, obviously.  If 1 

you start shrinking up the area, nobody is catching fish, but I 2 

think that if we know -- If we think it’s going to help, at 3 

least it’s worth a trial.  I know that trial basis is going to 4 

be a long time, because these kinds of things, you don’t get the 5 

data back in a couple of years.  Thank you. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  Russ Nelson, followed by Tom 8 

Ard. 9 

 10 

DR. RUSSELL NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is 11 

Russell Nelson and I’m a fisheries scientist here as a 12 

consultant to the Coastal Conservation Association and their 13 

75,000 members in the Gulf of Mexico. 14 

 15 

The Coastal Conservation Association opposes sector separation, 16 

opposes proceeding forward with any pilot programs looking at 17 

IFQ or days at sea programs within the for-hire industry.  We 18 

have been opposing sector separation and I think yesterday when 19 

you saw Andy’s presentation, it became clear why we did. 20 

 21 

Nobody is going to be able to fish more in the red snapper 22 

fishery in the Gulf of Mexico unless there’s more fish to be had 23 

and so you saw presentations that showed under a number of 24 

scenarios that the for-hire sector could get some more days to 25 

fish if they in turn reduced the days being fished by the 26 

private boat sector. 27 

 28 

Different scenarios could have been with different allocations 29 

and would have shown different results, but then you were faced 30 

with that and I think Ed and some others reacted to it.  Here we 31 

have a situation where we can pull one way or we can pull the 32 

other way, but what you don’t have yet is the kind of 33 

information you need to think objectively and critically about 34 

what the impacts of those decisions are. 35 

 36 

You have now embarked on an allocation endeavor, both in red 37 

snapper and with grouper, an endeavor I would add is backed up 38 

by the new catch shares policy that NOAA has released.  You 39 

could feel you are a representative of the private boat 40 

recreational sector or representative of the commercial sector 41 

or a representative of the charter sector, but you are in fact, 42 

under the Public Trust Doctrine, the board of directors for 43 

these resources that are owned by all the people of this country 44 

and importantly, by all the people within your states. 45 

 46 

In order to make informed critical decisions about the future of 47 

these fisheries, about sector separation or other things, you 48 
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need to understand what will happen and you need to have a 1 

common currency to be able to engage in these decisions with. 2 

 3 

I suggest and we suggest that you proceed ahead with your 4 

allocation discussions.  You will ultimately be given 5 

information, economic information on net present value, 6 

certainly information on the impacts of different gears, social 7 

considerations, but you will be given a context in which you 8 

will have facts to weigh these changes or shifts in allocation 9 

with. 10 

 11 

We would suggest that before you jump into any other endeavors 12 

that you go through the allocation process and you look at the 13 

economic data you get and you develop a common currency that 14 

will allow you to measure what your decisions will leave behind 15 

and use that as a guide for the future of the fisheries and I 16 

thank you. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Russ, I have a question.  As a 19 

long-time fisheries scientist in the measurement of fishing 20 

mortality, which method do you think is better, by weight or by 21 

numbers? 22 

 23 

DR. NELSON:  I know what you’re talking about, Bob, and I’ve 24 

been saying this before.  The council process has always used 25 

quotas as a surrogate for fishing mortality.  Assessments come 26 

back and they say here’s a level of fishing mortality and it’s 27 

above or below your goal and so you adjust harvest. 28 

 29 

You look at a snapshot in time and say if we can increase 30 

fishing mortality, we can increase it by -- Let’s use a 31 

percentage of the current harvest.  If we have to decrease it, 32 

we use a percentage of the current harvest and use pounds. 33 

 34 

If you’re in a situation where you have a pretty stable fishery, 35 

that’s not a bad surrogate.  It’s not a bad proxy, but when 36 

you’re in a situation where you have fisheries increasing or 37 

fisheries decreasing, that period of time that you take as your 38 

snapshot to set a quota at is going to affect how successful or 39 

unsuccessful your quota management is. 40 

 41 

Look at red snapper.  We had several years in a row where red 42 

snapper ACLs were exceeded.  The ABCs were exceeded 43 

substantially and yet the next assessment showed that 44 

overfishing had ceased.  That’s because we had a population that 45 

was increasing. 46 

 47 

On the other hand, we have gag, where the ABCs weren’t being 48 
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taken for a number of years and the assessment showed that 1 

overfishing was going on and so we suggest, I suggest and a lot 2 

of people in my profession would suggest, that in the twenty-3 

first century that we move from simply weighing the number of 4 

fish that are coming in and develop what the National Marine 5 

Fisheries Service has been doing for the menhaden fishery for 6 

thirty-some years, an adequate sampling every year of fish by 7 

size, by age. 8 

 9 

You look at the age information and the numbers of fish to 10 

develop an estimate of fishing mortality for that year and then 11 

you’re really telling what’s going on with the stock.  You’re 12 

not underestimating or overestimating and so that’s my answer. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Corky, did you have a question? 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  Russ, I agree.  We certainly could use lots of 17 

additional information and then make better decisions with that 18 

additional information, but you made a comment relative to 19 

economic information and then we could make our decisions.  Are 20 

you implying that we use economics alone? 21 

 22 

DR. NELSON:  Did I not say, Corky, that we also look at the 23 

social effects on communities and the conservation effects of 24 

different gear?  I’ve been there in your seat, Corky.  I don’t 25 

anticipate that any council is ever going to use solely the 26 

economics, but I think -- 27 

 28 

MR. PERRET:  That’s all I wanted to know and thank you. 29 

 30 

DR. NELSON:  I think that being able to understand how many jobs 31 

you could generate and how much more you could boost the 32 

economies of the Gulf Coast States would help you come to those 33 

decisions as an important component. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Russell.  Tom Ard, followed by Harold 36 

McMillan. 37 

 38 

MR. TOM ARD:  I’m Tom Ard and I have the charterboat Fair Water 39 

2 and Boll Weevil.  I’ve been fishing here in Orange Beach my 40 

whole life.  I’m going to go through some of these things pretty 41 

quick. 42 

 43 

I am for sector separation.  We are one sector.  I’m for a pilot 44 

program for days at sea.  I will volunteer at least one of my 45 

boats for this pilot program and maybe both.  Flexibility in our 46 

fishing seasons -- This is the toughest thing I have to do right 47 

now, is answer the phone and try to tell people what kind of 48 
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seasons we’re going to have this year. 1 

 2 

Right now, we don’t really have a red snapper season in the 3 

books and we don’t know when it’s going to really end.  We know 4 

when it’s going to begin, but not really end.  Amberjack, we 5 

don’t know.  It’s mid-April and the phone is ringing and I don’t 6 

know what to tell them and so it’s very hard to book charters 7 

and for these people trying to plan vacations coming down here, 8 

it’s hard for them. 9 

 10 

I’m for some sort of program for the recreational guys to be 11 

accountable, maybe a tag program or something.  We’ve got so 12 

many recreational guys going out here fishing and you ain’t got 13 

a clue what they’re catching really, some sort of something and 14 

come up with it, a tag program or whatever, but I don’t know. 15 

 16 

I’m not really against like a fall snapper season on the 17 

weekends.  I have to admit that I ran trips last year on it.  I 18 

would much rather have it in the spring.  Spring is when 19 

everybody wants to go fishing and fall is when everybody wants 20 

to go deer hunting and footballing. 21 

 22 

I’m on the Board of Directors for the Orange Beach Fishing 23 

Association.  Last year I was the president and I want to read a 24 

little bit of a letter from one of our board of directors 25 

meetings that’s dated October 26, 2010. 26 

 27 

We basically voted on this, our board of directors.  We desire 28 

to be accountable in our fishery.  We agree to sector 29 

separation.  We are in favor of a definite number of days at sea 30 

and we agree that there is a need for electronic data collection 31 

and request that such equipment be provided.  That’s all I have 32 

and thank you. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Harold McMillan, followed by Ricky 35 

McDuffie. 36 

 37 

MR. HAROLD MCMILLAN:  Good afternoon, guys.  I appreciate you 38 

letting us come up here and make comments.  I’ve been in the 39 

charter industry for about thirty-two years.  I’ve watched it 40 

thrive and I’ve watched it fall. 41 

 42 

You are truly looking at an industry that is going to be a 43 

dinosaur if sector separation is not given.  The United States 44 

is getting bigger.  It’s not getting smaller and please do the 45 

math and I would like to see -- On another comment, I would like 46 

to see the amberjack season run straight through and thank you 47 

very much. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Ricky McDuffie, followed by Bill 2 

Staff. 3 

 4 

MR. RICKY MCDUFFIE:  I’m Ricky McDuffie with Sea Hunter 5 

Charters.  I’ve got a headboat and a multi-passenger 6 

charterboat.  I’ve been in business starting my thirty-fifth 7 

year. 8 

 9 

We used to run 180 full-day trips per year or 190 and sometimes 10 

200 and not double half days, but full-day trips.  Now we’re 11 

down struggling to make seventy-five or eighty trips and so as 12 

far as the amberjack, I would like to see it just run through 13 

until it closes.  If it’s through snapper season, that’s fine, 14 

because my customers in the fall now, we’re restricted so much 15 

that they’re not coming.  They’re going hunting and football, 16 

like he said.  I’ve got to try to fish them in the spring when 17 

people are gung-ho and so I would say let it run. 18 

 19 

Sector separation, I’ve got to be for it, because we’re not 20 

getting anywhere as we are and so I’m for sector separation and 21 

a pilot program on days at sea also. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ricky.  Bill Staff, followed by Mike 24 

Colby. 25 

 26 

MR. BILL STAFF:  I’m Bill Staff and a lot of you all know me and 27 

some of you don’t.  I’ve been charter fishing for thirty years.  28 

I started with Ricky in 1981.  He and I have a lot in common and 29 

we share a lot as far as the grief that we’re going through. 30 

 31 

I bought the Sea Spray six years ago.  I had been running it for 32 

a man for fourteen years.  The boat is twenty years old.  Six 33 

years ago, it seemed like it was the American dream and now it 34 

seems like it’s the American nightmare and it’s all due to -- Of 35 

course, the economy is not helping, but these fishing 36 

regulations, we can’t make any money and we can’t run our 37 

business. 38 

 39 

My winter tuna business, which I’ve had to develop because of 40 

the short snapper fishery, was off 35 percent this year from 41 

last year.  I go to Fourchon every year and fish out of there. 42 

 43 

With that having already been known and my projected bookings, 44 

I’m going to see a 50 percent reduction from 2007 to 2011.  I’m 45 

going to like Ricky.  I’ve run like 202 days before and I’m 46 

going to be very lucky to break a hundred this year and if you 47 

can’t pay your bills -- The boat note keeps coming and the house 48 
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note keeps coming. 1 

 2 

If it weren’t for the VOO Program, I don’t know what 90 percent 3 

of these people in this room would have done last year and this 4 

year.  We need sector separation for the charter for-hire 5 

industry yesterday.  I support a pilot program and days at sea.   6 

 7 

My business is very similar to Johnny’s, as is Ricky’s.  Mr. 8 

Harlon Pearce, he spoke very well yesterday for what we need.  9 

It’s hard to run a business not knowing when your season is 10 

going to be and how long it’s going to be. 11 

 12 

I’m kind of hoping that since I’m already seeing such a 13 

reduction in my business that with the high fuel and the low 14 

effort that I would like to see amberjack season run straight 15 

through.  I feel like the effort won’t be there and I hope we 16 

could get it through September and maybe even into October. 17 

 18 

Snapper, I don’t know.  I doubt there’s a chance of getting the 19 

million pounds back, but if we don’t go over our quota, the fall 20 

season was great last year and I would be for a weekend opening 21 

in October.  That’s about all I’ve got to say. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill. 24 

 25 

MR. GREENE:  Bill, thanks for coming.  We’ve talked about a 26 

million things lots of times and we agree on some and disagree 27 

on others.  One question I had is if you were to move the 28 

opening of snapper season up, what would be the ideal month?  29 

Would you open it up May 15 or May 1 or would you prefer to 30 

leave it as June 1? 31 

 32 

MR. STAFF:  Johnny, I guess I’m pretty happy with it as it is.  33 

I would like to say though, since you brought a thought to my 34 

mind, that I would look at one snapper per person to lengthen 35 

the season.  If it’s only one-and-a-half times or one-and-three-36 

quarter times, we could sell that.  We can’t sell anything in 37 

May and I would probably then look at the May 15 or earlier 38 

opening and be for that. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mike Colby, followed by Billy Archer. 41 

 42 

MR. MIKE COLBY:  My name is Mike Colby and I am a headboat 43 

charter operator out of Pinellas County, Florida, out of 44 

Clearwater.  I’m President of the Clearwater Commercial Marine 45 

Association.  Again, thank you, Andy, for the presentation 46 

yesterday. 47 

 48 
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I know our operators in the marina, we -- I talked to them 1 

almost individually about this presentation before I came here 2 

and they’re going to have a lot of questions and that’s a good 3 

thing.  They’re adamantly in support of a constructive 4 

management plan through sector separation that will keep their 5 

businesses going. 6 

 7 

They’re pretty smart guys and they’re going to be anxiously 8 

awaiting a report on this and so, Andy, I may be knocking -- I 9 

may be knocking on Andy’s door before I do this, for a little 10 

brush-up on it.  It certainly has some information that we can 11 

all kind of wrap our arms around and I’ll be more than happy to 12 

present it to our operators, which I think they’ll respond to 13 

positively. 14 

 15 

On another comment, I noticed during the motion and substitute 16 

motions on the alternative for red grouper, taking three to the 17 

bag limit, there’s an operator here from the CCMA that’s with us 18 

today and we talked about this earlier. 19 

 20 

A lot of our operators have tooled their businesses around a two 21 

fish bag limit.  We have a great mackerel and king mackerel 22 

fishery and a great white grunt fishery and they -- I think they 23 

would be happy with a two fish bag limit.  Would they take 24 

three?  Yes, but if it was left at two, it wouldn’t be a 25 

contentious item with any of our fishermen. 26 

 27 

I say that because I know they’re starting to run red grouper 28 

trips right now and I think that we’re going to see -- I think 29 

Dr. Crabtree mentioned this, if I’m not incorrect, that you’re 30 

going to see an effort shift, particularly with gag closed. 31 

 32 

I think you’ll see an increase in landings in spite of staying 33 

at two fish in the bag, because I know a lot of operators from 34 

our area south are going to be doing targeted red grouper trips 35 

because gag is closed down.  Thank you. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Billy Archer, followed by Tom 38 

Hilton. 39 

 40 

MR. BILLY ARCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Billy 41 

Archer and I’m from Panama City, Florida.  I’m a third-42 

generation fisherman and I would like to explain to you why I am 43 

supporting sector separation. 44 

 45 

In 2007, when the bag limit changed to two fish, my business 46 

crashed.  Our people were spoiled to the four fish and all that.  47 

Anyhow, we started rebuilding it and people started getting used 48 
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to the bigger fish and that was great, amberjack and snapper and 1 

grouper all in one little time slot.  It worked out real, real 2 

well. 3 

 4 

Prior to that, we were not quite as ambitious as our friends 5 

from Orange Beach, but we run 170 or 175 days in a row, all 6 

twelve or fifteen-hour trips, and it was fantastic.  This time 7 

of the year, I would have over a hundred days booked, starting 8 

on April 21st and running past the 4th of July, with repeat 9 

customers, some that fished with my grandfather and father. 10 

 11 

Today, I have not a trip booked.  I have one six-hour trip 12 

booked on Friday and I cannot tell these people what we’re going 13 

to catch.  My reason for supporting sector separation is to 14 

change what’s happening to us now. 15 

 16 

If we continue down this road, I’ll be gone and there’s nobody 17 

paying my bills.  It’s me.  I’ve been fortunate and I raised my 18 

family and I got my kids through school and I own my house and I 19 

own my boat, but I’ve got to have income and I’ve got to have 20 

maintenance and that’s why I’m supporting sector separation. 21 

 22 

Also, I would like to say that I would like to see the amberjack 23 

season run straight through.  Amberjack is a big component to 24 

our fishery.  We catch some snapper, catch our two snapper, and 25 

we go catch a big jack.  We catch some hundred pounders, some 26 

nice, nice jacks.  There’s a lot of jacks where I fish, just 27 

like there’s a lot of snapper. 28 

 29 

The gag grouper thing, Roy, you’ve got a hard job to do, but if 30 

it helps you to open up in September, then I can’t argue with 31 

that.  I thank you all for your time and I thank you for 32 

everything you’ve done for us so far. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Billy.  Next up is Tom Hilton, followed by 35 

Bob Zales. 36 

 37 

MR. TOM HILTON:  I’m Tom Hilton and I’m a private fisherman in 38 

Houston, Texas.  I’m representing myself, but I’m actually 39 

fighting for every single recreational fisherman in the Gulf, 40 

whether they’re on a private boat or on a charter for-hire or on 41 

a headboat. 42 

 43 

I support the five Gulf governors in asking you all to put the 44 

one-million pounds of unused allocation into this year’s fish.  45 

I support freezing the commercial allocation as it is right now, 46 

at about three-and-a-half million pounds, and any further 47 

increases to the allocation to put into the recreational sector. 48 
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 1 

I believe NOAA Fisheries should be focused on improving the data 2 

process, first and foremost, before you try to implement any AMs 3 

or ACLs that’s not mandated by Congress.   4 

 5 

The data collection process was mandated by Congress to be put 6 

in place and functional by January 1, 2009, yet here we are 7 

today and it’s still not in place.  You all have no idea how 8 

many recreational fishermen are actually fishing offshore and 9 

you really don’t have much of an idea of how many fish are 10 

actually swimming in the ocean. 11 

 12 

I would ask that NOAA Fisheries focus more on the data 13 

collection improvement process and less on implementing new 14 

types of regulations, such as sector separation or catch shares. 15 

 16 

I’ve sent some of you all some information regarding how sector 17 

separation is setting the stage for recreational catch share 18 

pools.  It’s on the NMFS site and it’s kind of troubling, 19 

because it’s very clear that the intent of the creation of these 20 

pools is to exclude anglers from these pools. 21 

 22 

The way that they describe that on this is that they’re going to 23 

provide stamps, an annual stamp.  Any angler that wants to come 24 

onto a charter for-hire vessel or a headboat vessel or private 25 

vessel would have to have a stamp and they also very clearly 26 

state in the presentation that the idea behind the recreational 27 

catch share pool is to exclude anglers from the pool.  If you 28 

don’t have a stamp, you’re going to be excluded from fishing and 29 

I disagree with that very much. 30 

 31 

I’ve also sent you all an analysis using NOAA Fisheries numbers 32 

of the allocations, the fish sizes that are growing every year 33 

through 2015, going to seven pounds per fish, and I noticed that 34 

the presentation yesterday had no specifics, but I would 35 

appreciate it if you all would take a look at this.  Just very 36 

quickly, if you go to days at sea, it’s twenty-four days for the 37 

next five years for charter for-hire. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Tom, your time is up.  Thank you.  Hold on, 40 

Tom.  We do have some questions. 41 

 42 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Hilton, thank you for your testimony, but I’ve 43 

got a couple of questions.  Who owns the fish in the Gulf? 44 

 45 

MR. HILTON:  Every American in the United States. 46 

 47 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s exactly right. 48 
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 1 

MR. HILTON:  That’s exactly right and that’s in the Public Trust 2 

Doctrine and if you try to -- 3 

 4 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s correct.  That’s correct.  How do the people 5 

that don’t own a boat or have a friend that owns a boat get 6 

access to those fish, to their fish?  How do they get access to 7 

their fish? 8 

 9 

MR. HILTON:  If you’re going to make our fish into a 10 

privatization of a commodity -- 11 

 12 

MR. PEARCE:  Answer the question, please.  I want to know how 13 

they get access to their fish. 14 

 15 

MR. HILTON:  You have to have a boat to get out on the water, 16 

yes, sir. 17 

 18 

MR. PEARCE:  No, they get access to the fish through the 19 

commercial sector and through the for-hire sector that provide 20 

those citizens access to that fish that they own.  If you’re 21 

going to give the quota not to that commercial sector or to the 22 

for-hire direction, you’re going in the wrong direction, because 23 

you’re taking fish away from the people that own it. 24 

 25 

MR. HILTON:  On yesterday’s presentation, they had five months 26 

to put this presentation together regarding sector separation 27 

and they had twelve scenarios.  Eleven of those twelve scenarios 28 

showed a negative impact on the private recreational sector.  I 29 

went ahead and did an analysis of my own this morning, using 30 

their Excel spreadsheet, and if you give the private 31 

recreational sector 55 percent of the allocation and 45 percent 32 

to the charter for-hire, guess what?  You have pretty much an 33 

even keel. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  Did I say anything about sector separation?  I 36 

didn’t.  I want to know who owns that fish and how they have 37 

access.  They don’t have access if they don’t have a boat or a 38 

friend that has a boat.  They have access from Johnny in the 39 

corner over there and they have access from the commercial 40 

fishermen in this room.  That’s how they get access. 41 

 42 

MR. HILTON:  That’s right and that’s who I’m supporting.  I’m 43 

supporting every charter for-hire fisherman and every headboat 44 

fisherman in this room. 45 

 46 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 47 

 48 



46 

 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do you still have a question, Kay? 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  I actually still have a question, believe 3 

it or not.  We have capped the commercial industry.  We have 4 

capped the charter for-hire headboat sector.  The reason we’re 5 

having a problem is because the private recreational sector is 6 

growing and no one else is.  They’re being constrained.  How can 7 

you help us constrain the private recreational so that those 8 

that like to fish can fish without going in and trying to take 9 

from those that we’ve capped? 10 

 11 

MR. HILTON:  You raise a good point, because the presentation 12 

yesterday showed a juxtaposition of the charter for-hire going 13 

down and the private recreational are going up.  What was not 14 

mentioned was that actually what is seen on the water is that 15 

the private recreational sector is paralleling the charter for-16 

hire sector. 17 

 18 

All of us are experiencing a reduction in effort.  I have 19 

presented a plan to the council regarding how you can account 20 

for every single private recreational fisherman in the Gulf, 21 

whether you’re fishing on a private recreational boat or a 22 

charter for-hire or a headboat, using today’s technology with a 23 

text message or however, but basically just texting that hey, 24 

we’re going out of this port on this day and just identifying 25 

the number of offshore anglers is enough for right now. 26 

 27 

You all have no idea how many anglers are fishing and that would 28 

be a really big help for you all to be able to make informed 29 

decisions regarding the fishery. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for that suggestion. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  Bob Zales, followed by Bart 34 

Niquet. 35 

 36 

MR. BOB ZALES, II:  Bob, are we doing grouper and then also for 37 

other things or are we doing them -- How are you doing that? 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Have you got two cards? 40 

 41 

MR. ZALES:  Yes. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Speak on your favorite topic and if we have 44 

time at the end, we’ll get you back. 45 

 46 

MR. ZALES:  I wanted to hit the red snapper under the other, but 47 

clearly we’re for rolling that over.  I’m Bob Zales, II, and 48 
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like I told the people at the FWC meeting I went to last week on 1 

this issue of grouper, I’m going to speak for myself, because 2 

our association has not taken a position. 3 

 4 

Like I told them, I don’t think they had an option and whatever 5 

they do, clearly I think because of the fact that the commercial 6 

sector is tied to this and they don’t get their 330,000 pounds 7 

unless you do the two-month thing, you’ve got to do it, because 8 

clearly that impact from the commercial fishery would just be, 9 

in my mind, too devastating to the economy, especially in the 10 

State of Florida. 11 

 12 

I have serious issues with the assessment and those kinds of 13 

things and clearly we’ve requested and we continue to request a 14 

full-blown assessment, just as soon as you can do it, on gag 15 

grouper. 16 

 17 

Nick is here from the State of Florida and for those people in 18 

the crowd that don’t know, the State of Florida, because several 19 

of us went to Washington and got some money given to the state 20 

to do some research, they have an excellent program now.  They 21 

put observers on charterboats and they do tagging work on 22 

charterboats and in other situations and their preliminary 23 

information, from what we’re hearing, in gag, especially when it 24 

comes to discards and discard mortality, is pretty good. 25 

 26 

What it’s showing, it’s showing some stuff that we’ve known, 27 

some of us anyway, over time.  It’s that the numbers you see of 28 

grouper caught is not necessarily reflective of individual fish.  29 

It’s reflective of one fish being caught multiple times and this 30 

is anywhere from tag results.  I’ve got personal tagging data 31 

that shows this. 32 

 33 

They’ve got some that some of these fish are caught two or three 34 

or four or five times.  That number, in my mind, is inflated.  I 35 

don’t know what the difference between half and the top is on 36 

this, but your release mortality figures are clearly based on 37 

that total number and so we would argue that that number is 38 

probably somewhat less than what’s out there and that the total 39 

number is clearly somewhat less than what’s in the assessment 40 

and that this could make a significant difference in the status 41 

of that grouper stock.  I’m sure Nick could answer some of that 42 

for you. 43 

 44 

Getting past that with thirty seconds left and, Kay, if you’ll 45 

ask me what we can do to help the private recreational people, I 46 

would be more than happy to tell you. 47 

 48 
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The red snapper situation, I want to thank Nick and Commissioner 1 

Barreto at their meeting, because they gave Pam Anderson some 2 

accolades on this.  Pam has worked real hard.  She brought this 3 

snapper issue to the Commission back in February. 4 

 5 

We got together and we’ve spoken to the Governor and we’ve got 6 

the thing rolling to get this million pounds rolled over.  We 7 

think it’s an excellent idea.  We think it can be done under 8 

emergency and we would request that you all do that.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bob.  Any questions?  Bart Niquet 11 

and Donnie Waters is next. 12 

 13 

MR. BART NIQUET:  I’m Bart Niquet.  I’ve been fishing several 14 

ways for several years.  As I told you at the last meeting and 15 

last year, everybody was talking about the lack of gag grouper 16 

and I told you there was going to be a big difference in them 17 

this year and there already is.  There’s a hell of a lot of gag 18 

grouper out there and nobody seemed to realize it. 19 

 20 

Those fish don’t bite all the time and they move and when you 21 

fish the same places every time, you’re going wind up with no 22 

fish and pretty soon those places are going to either be fished 23 

off or the fish are going to leave. 24 

 25 

We’ve caught more gag grouper accidentally this year, in the 26 

first three months, and released them than we caught all of last 27 

year.  Bonnie has had an observer on my boat every time I go.  28 

Random sampling has wound up seven straight quarters and so they 29 

should have a good idea of what we’re catching. 30 

 31 

We’re catching a lot of red grouper, more than usually we do, 32 

but you’ve cut the TAC down on the allowable catch on the red 33 

grouper as well on the gag grouper and about the next month or 34 

so, it’s really going to start affecting all the fishermen in 35 

the Gulf and the fish houses and the restaurants and everybody 36 

else that’s got anything to do with the grouper.   37 

 38 

There’s plenty of snapper, but that’s not grouper.  Not 39 

everybody has got enough allocation to fish the rest of the year 40 

and I really think you need to return the gag grouper to our 41 

fishermen.  Thank you. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bart.  Questions?  Donnie Waters, 44 

followed by Wayne Werner. 45 

 46 

MR. DONALD WATERS:  Good afternoon.  My name is Donald Waters.  47 

I’m a commercial fisherman and owner and operator of the 48 
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Commercial Fishing Vessel Hustler.  I fish out of Pensacola, 1 

Florida. 2 

 3 

I don’t really have a whole lot to argue about today.  4 

Allocation is going to be a hot topic when we get there.  In my 5 

opinion, the commercial fishery has made a lot of steps to 6 

preserve their heritage and made a lot of sacrifices and bought 7 

up a lot of boats. 8 

 9 

I basically started this fishery with an IFQ and when I started 10 

our IFQ fishery, we had a 9.12-million-pound TAC.  I would like 11 

to at least get back to that number, where we entered this, 12 

before we could sit down and talk about any other kind of 13 

allocation splits that may be for future allocations that comes 14 

out. 15 

 16 

I don’t see where we should even be talking about freezing a 17 

commercial TAC at three-and-a-half-million pounds, because, like 18 

I said, I bought into this fishery and I bought other vessels 19 

and other boats and we’ve shrunk the fleet.  There might only be 20 

a handful of us, but I don’t get to take one fish home. 21 

 22 

These fish do belong to the public and we’re putting these meals 23 

on the table for you to enjoy and I hope you can find someplace 24 

locally here to have some of our fish on the table and I hope 25 

you enjoy them.  I do my best to bring a product in that we all 26 

can enjoy. 27 

 28 

With what I’m seeing in the amberjack fishery, a couple of us 29 

fishermen have kind of said we would like to keep these fish 30 

better and fresher and slow down the harvest and give the 31 

consumer a better product.   32 

 33 

To do that, I would support a 2,000-pound trip limit on 34 

amberjacks and basically use them as a bycatch while we catch 35 

other fish.  That way, you don’t have one big huge boat going 36 

out there derby fishing a small TAC.  You start putting some big 37 

boats on a small TAC, it creates another derby. 38 

 39 

I’m sure I’ve got a lot more to talk about than I can in the 40 

last six seconds.  I hope you all have enjoyed your time here in 41 

Alabama and thanks for letting me speak tonight and I’ll talk to 42 

you soon. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Donald.  Wayne Werner, followed by 45 

Mike Nugent. 46 

 47 

MR. WAYNE WERNER:  Wayne Werner, owner and operator of the 48 
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Fishing Vessel Sea Quest from Alachua, Florida.  The first thing 1 

I would like to say about sector separation is I’ve supported it 2 

since day one.  These guys make a living on the water and they 3 

need to go ahead and continue to make a living on the water. 4 

 5 

I would like to say something about the amberjack.  I guarantee 6 

you that you’ve had a bit of a derby, because I’ve been one of 7 

them that’s been running in it.  I went pretty hard last summer.  8 

All you have to do is look at my trip tickets and I went really 9 

hard after them and I would have done the same this summer and 10 

so I would support a 2,000-pound trip limit also. 11 

 12 

As far as the overages, I don’t know how somebody could get up 13 

here and say that they want to be accountable and then take the 14 

overages and look at them when you’ve been over eighteen out of 15 

twenty-one years.  If you want to pay back overages or underages 16 

from last year’s harvest of red snapper, then let’s take back 17 

overages the next year.  Let’s do it right if we’re going to do 18 

it right. 19 

 20 

As far as the income qualifier, which came up, I would just like 21 

to say that it should remain in place.  I still feel that if I 22 

have to go cut grass, like I heard earlier, then maybe it’s time 23 

for me to get off my boat, because I’m no longer a commercial 24 

fisherman.  One last thing is allocation, just like Donnie said, 25 

we’ll fight that battle when it comes.  Thank you very much. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Wayne.  Next is Mike Nugent, 28 

followed by Mayor Tony Kennon. 29 

 30 

MR. MICHAEL NUGENT:  My name is Michael Nugent and I want to go 31 

back real quick to the meeting in Gulfport, the last meeting, 32 

when I came up here and I asked you all to think about sending a 33 

letter of concern into MMS and I’m here asking again, because 34 

our problem is not going away and if you sent one, thank you and 35 

if you didn’t, I’m still begging you to do so. 36 

 37 

They’re yanking platforms up off our coast right and left and we 38 

need help.  The addendum to the Rigs to Reef Program of 2009 is 39 

what’s killing us and it needs to be addressed and so I’m asking 40 

for that still. 41 

 42 

The Port Aransas Boatmen also encourage the council to look at 43 

supporting those states that are asking to get the underage from 44 

last year put into the 2011 red snapper stock and we support 45 

that. 46 

 47 

We also, because in our part of the coast because of the 48 
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weather, we have a lot of tournaments in July and we would be 1 

opposed to a July closure for amberjack.  That’s when our small 2 

boats can go out and fish for them and this year is our seventy-3 

sixth Deep Sea Roundup and we would like to be able to keep 4 

amberjack in it. 5 

 6 

One of the other things I would like to mention that strikes me 7 

as interesting and again, I’m not the sharpest pencil in the box 8 

and Harlon might yell at me, but the curious thing to me is 9 

before the Florida state meeting the other day, I saw an email 10 

from Gary Jarvis and he was righteously indignant, and well may 11 

he be, about those fish that were being threatened to take away 12 

belonging to people in Iowa and people in Nebraska or whatever. 13 

 14 

I agree, but on the other hand, he turns right around and he 15 

supports leasing these same fish that belong to Iowa and 16 

Nebraska back to the recreational fishery and so it’s starting 17 

to look to me like maybe when the fish are free that they belong 18 

to Iowa, but when you can make a profit on them, maybe they 19 

don’t belong to Iowa no more.  Maybe I’m being simplistic, but 20 

that’s the way it looks to me.  Thank you very much. 21 

 22 

For the record, I was the member of the AP that objected to a 23 

headboat IFQ without any headboat representation and I’m not a 24 

headboat guy and I’m asking you to please consider getting some 25 

representation on there before it goes any further for 26 

headboats. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Michael.  Hold on.  Harlon wants to 29 

yell at you. 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  Mike, I would never yell at you and I appreciate 32 

all your comments.  You come here all the time and you make 33 

sense when you talk and I’m never against people that make sense 34 

when they talk. 35 

 36 

MR. NUGENT:  You’re going to yell at me later, aren’t you? 37 

 38 

MR. PEARCE:  No, never.  There’s always fights for another day, 39 

but not today.  Thanks for coming and I appreciate all your 40 

comments, as always. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mayor Kennon, welcome and thank you for coming. 43 

 44 

MR. TONY KENNON:  Thank you and I would like to welcome you to 45 

Orange Beach and tell you how much we appreciate you being here.  46 

Believe me, we really appreciate you being here.  I will be 47 

brief and because I’m not a very good politician, I can be 48 
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brief. 1 

 2 

I want to reiterate the effect of the resource management on our 3 

economy and an economy that’s much more widespread than just the 4 

City of Orange Beach.  I do have a selfish interest in the fact 5 

that I grew up here, to some degree, fishing here since the 6 

1960s and from just the resource and the limitations, it strikes 7 

home. 8 

 9 

Just looking at pure dollars and cents and common sense, it has 10 

an impact that goes all the way to Huntsville and to the state 11 

line in every direction. 12 

 13 

We are a tourist destination, but a tourist destination is truly 14 

a tourist experience.  There will be people that will come to 15 

the beach and stay on the beach and there will be people that 16 

will come here to fish and will fish and go home and there will 17 

be people that will come here for the restaurants, but the 18 

majority of folks that come to the beach come for the 19 

experience. 20 

 21 

They spend a few days on the beach and a few nights in the 22 

restaurants or every night in the restaurants.  They fish and 23 

they golf and they do a little bit of everything.  What makes us 24 

special and what makes a tourist town special is the number of 25 

amenities that you can present to create a much larger 26 

experience. 27 

 28 

If any number of those amenities are diminished, the overall 29 

experience is diminished.  If we diminish our charter fleet and 30 

recreational fishing or all fishing, in any way, it takes away 31 

from the experience. 32 

 33 

If you take away from the experience, you reduce numbers.  It’s 34 

real simple and if you reduce numbers and you reduce volume, you 35 

reduce dollars and cents collected.  If you reduce dollars and 36 

cents collected going to Montgomery, then somewhere somebody in 37 

the state has to make up that reduction in tax dollars going to 38 

the general fund or going to whatever fund that might be. 39 

 40 

The one silver lining of the oil spill is the rest of the state 41 

knows they don’t need to take us for granted anymore.  It’s so 42 

important that we connect the dots and see that fishing is 43 

intertwined with everything we do down here and essentially 44 

affects everybody throughout the state, when it comes to their 45 

wallet, if we see a diminishing return on diminishing volumes 46 

visiting our resort towns. 47 

 48 
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I appreciate you all, again, very much and I hope you understand 1 

and I think you do.  I’m sure that you’ve heard it all, but 2 

managing the resource goes much, much further than just the 3 

resource and so thank you very much. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tony.  Next is Pam Anderson, 6 

followed by Robert Spaeth. 7 

 8 

MS. PAM ANDERSON:  Dr. Crabtree, Dr. Shipp, and council members, 9 

I am Pam Anderson with Captain Anderson Marina in Panama City, 10 

PCBA, Bay County and Panama City Beach Chambers of Commerce.  I 11 

would like to comment on a few of the issues before the council 12 

today. 13 

 14 

Even after the presentation for sector separation, I believe it 15 

will not be good for the fishery.  Anything that divides 16 

citizens against each other and causes one group of citizens an 17 

advantage over the other is not good.   18 

 19 

An issue like this has already caused a great deal of angst.  It 20 

will not improve the resource and it will not provide a secure 21 

future for those in the for-hire industry.  No law or measure of 22 

control over an industry will do that.  It may help some 23 

businesses, but it will hurt others. 24 

 25 

What will help is to continue getting the data corrected so 26 

there is less uncertainty, which will provide more fish to 27 

harvest.  The additional stock assessments are crucial.  We ask 28 

that you work with the states to get more specific data on 29 

private anglers and the state-licensed for-hire boats who are 30 

fishing for reef fish. 31 

 32 

In Florida, the proposal for the reef fish endorsement will do 33 

that with very little cost and very little intrusion into the 34 

anglers’ lives.  It is important as we go forward in developing 35 

programs for private anglers that we remember to keep the 36 

experience fun and the paperwork simple or we will lose the 37 

positive economic impact we have from them in our communities. 38 

 39 

Also, instead of limiting an economic resource by using the 40 

assumption that the natural resource of fish is so limited that 41 

it cannot support a growing industry, why not look for new ways 42 

to increase the resource? 43 

 44 

We need to increase the habitat so that all these fisheries we 45 

are rebuilding will have thriving reefs to live on.  In the 46 

Natural Resource Data Assessment meetings, they are asking for 47 

ways to make the Gulf whole again.  What better way than to 48 
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combine the need to repair the damage that BP has done to the 1 

fishery and help provide for a better fishery in the future than 2 

to increase the fishery habitat across the Gulf? 3 

 4 

Artificial reef programs have been very successful in the red 5 

snapper fisheries in northwest Florida, Alabama, and Mississippi 6 

and there could be many more. 7 

 8 

For the red snapper season, I would request that you reconsider 9 

the non-use of overage from 2010 and add to the 2011 season.  10 

The fishing industry needs a break.  We need to see something 11 

truly positive come from our losses.  Those fish have already 12 

been included in the ACL, but since they have been in the Gulf 13 

an extra year, they have had extra reproduction cycles that will 14 

help the fishery.  Now we need to help the economic recovery in 15 

the Gulf.  Opening weekends starting at Labor Day would be best 16 

for us. 17 

 18 

I have one last comment.  You’ve asked me before if the red 19 

snapper are larger, in general, each year.  I said yes, because 20 

they are getting larger, but Ken, my husband, pointed out a very 21 

important point. 22 

 23 

On his ten-hour trip that targets red snapper in season, there 24 

are larger six to fifteen-pound fish that come in, but only a 25 

very few that are that large, maybe five or six.  Most of the 26 

others are more in the three to five-pound range. 27 

 28 

If you take forty passengers out and they all limit out, six 29 

ten-pound fish are caught and the other seventy-four average 30 

four pounds and the overall average is only 4.5 and not six 31 

pounds. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Pam, can you wrap it up? 34 

 35 

MS. ANDERSON:  In reality, six pounds may not be the true 36 

overall average.  Ken is against IFQs, VMS, and sector 37 

separation for his boat and I hope that’s helpful.  Thank you. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Bob Spaeth, followed by Chris 40 

Niquet. 41 

 42 

MR. BOB SPAETH:  Bob Spaeth, Southern Offshore Fishing 43 

Association.  Thank you for letting me comment today.  I have a 44 

document here that we started on June 1, 2005.  It’s on the 45 

reallocation issue.  I want to read a little bit to you and I 46 

believe there’s a lot of records that Roy probably has back when 47 

we went through this fight back then.   48 
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 1 

Most of the fish sought by both professional commercial 2 

fishermen and sport fishermen are already reserved for sport 3 

fishing.  For instance, sport fishermen get 100 percent of the 4 

redfish, 68 percent of the king mackerel, 73 percent of the 5 

amberjack, 100 percent of the billfish, 90 percent of the mahi, 6 

61 percent of the gag.  In state waters, which we’re from 7 

Florida, they get 98 percent of sea trout, 100 percent of the 8 

snook, tarpon, permit, and bonefish, which have been made game 9 

fish through legislation. 10 

 11 

The fish belongs to all the people and not just those who have a 12 

boat and the time and the desire to go fishing.  The facts 13 

concerning the allocation issue, we never talk about the 14 

consumer.  Where is the consumer here at this table? 15 

 16 

He’s standing here at this podium, because actually all I am is 17 

a taxicab for people that don’t have boats and that like to eat 18 

fish in restaurants.  Other than that, that’s what we do and I 19 

would hope that the council would really take this into some 20 

heavy, heavy consideration before we get in this dragged out 21 

fight over this reallocation and it’s going to be dragging the 22 

consumers in and I think it’s going to become quite a spectacle 23 

before we get done.  That’s all I have to say on that issue and 24 

thank you. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bobby.  Any questions?  Chris 27 

Niquet, followed by Chad Haggert. 28 

 29 

MR. CHRIS NIQUET:  I’m Chris Niquet from Panama City, Florida.  30 

I’m a commercial fisherman and I’m going to talk to you today 31 

about several things, but the main thing I want to talk about is 32 

this discussion with the reallocation amongst the private for-33 

hire sector and the recreational sector. 34 

 35 

We’ve heard people on both sides of the argument.  Some of them 36 

just say it won’t work and it ain’t no good and it’s going to 37 

put them out of business.  Others seem to think it’s real good 38 

and it’s going to work and be a great thing for them. 39 

 40 

To the people who don’t think it’s going to work, present 41 

another plan that will if you can’t go along with the best plans 42 

that you people can come up with.  That’s all I’ve got to say 43 

and I’ll take any questions. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Captain Haggert, followed by Troy 46 

Frady. 47 

 48 
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MR. CHAD HAGGERT:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m Captain Chad 1 

Haggert.  I am owner/operator of Double Eagle Deep Sea Fishing, 2 

which is a headboat business in Clearwater, Florida.  It’s been 3 

there since 1967.  I am a board member of the Charter 4 

Fishermen’s Association as well as a member of the CCMA. 5 

 6 

I would like to start off by reading a couple letters here from 7 

customers of mine that could not attend today.  The first one 8 

says, “Dear Gulf Council, I wanted to write to let you know that 9 

deep sea fishing aboard the Double Eagle fleet out of Clearwater 10 

is a very important part of our family vacation.  We have been 11 

going out on the Double Eagle for years and catching grouper and 12 

other fish.  It wouldn’t be a complete vacation to Florida 13 

without deep sea fishing.” 14 

 15 

The next one says, “Please keep alive the thrill of recreational 16 

fishing for all concerned parties.  It has been a tremendous 17 

privilege to fish Florida’s waters, especially the Gulf of 18 

Mexico.  Please don’t close the window of opportunity for me.  19 

It’s all I have known all my life since I was five years old.  I 20 

am now forty-nine.” 21 

 22 

For these two people is the exact reason why I support sector 23 

separation wholeheartedly.  Andy’s presentation showed, I 24 

believe, a 2 percent annual reduction in the for-hire fleet each 25 

year.  Not only is this a reduction of the fleet, but it’s a 26 

reduction of access to the Gulf of Mexico for people just like 27 

these, from Colorado, from Pennsylvania.   28 

 29 

Members of the CCMA in Clearwater have taken the opportunity to 30 

provide our customers with a brief description of the current 31 

management plan, along with what we are proposing with sector 32 

separation.  I have with me here 775 letters from the average 33 

American angler that use the charter for-hire industry to access 34 

the Gulf of Mexico.  35 

 36 

I absolutely support a headboat IFQ pilot program.  Let me 37 

reiterate two words there, a pilot program, meaning if it 38 

doesn’t work, don’t write it into law, but give us the 39 

opportunity to try it.  It’s also a voluntary program.  Those 40 

headboat operators that don’t want to participate don’t 41 

participate, but allow the ones that do the opportunity to show 42 

you that we think it will work and that it could very well work. 43 

 44 

I also ask that that motion be put back to the LAPP AP to let 45 

them discuss it and give the headboat operators representation 46 

on the panels.  Ms. Williams commented that there was 150 47 

applications.  I am one of those applicants and would be willing 48 
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to give my time. 1 

 2 

I also support a fall amberjack season and that is all I have to 3 

say.  I would like to submit these letters to the secretary for 4 

you guys to read.  It also has a copy of the letter which my 5 

customers read, showing what they were signing on for.  Thank 6 

you for your time this afternoon. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Chad.  Troy, followed by Joe Nash. 9 

 10 

MR. TROY FRADY:  Good afternoon and thank you for being here.  11 

My name is Troy Frady and I’m in my ninth year of business here 12 

in Orange Beach, Alabama and I’m a charterboat operator.  I run 13 

a six-pack operation and I would like to speak to you today on a 14 

couple of topics, one of them being the sector separation and 15 

the pilot program, along with a couple of the fish dates. 16 

 17 

I’m concerned about the future of the Gulf of Mexico and the 18 

fishery.  I’m willing to sacrifice today to ensure that we have 19 

a good future for tomorrow. 20 

 21 

I want to make sure my children and grandchildren are able to 22 

fish for these fish like I’ve been able to since the 1960s and 23 

1970s and on up through today.  I urge you to look hard at 24 

sector separation as a way to protect those Americans who use 25 

charterboats to access the fish. 26 

 27 

There are a lot of people in America that know nothing about 28 

fishery management and its politics and procedures like coastal 29 

residents do.  It is your responsibility as fishery managers to 30 

take this into consideration when deciding on a touchy subject 31 

like sector separation. 32 

 33 

I urge you to do the right thing for the fish and for all those 34 

who use the resource.  At this time, I see sector separation as 35 

nothing more than issuing a federally permitted charterboat an 36 

initial allocation of fish so we may become responsible for our 37 

own future. 38 

 39 

As a charterboat captain, I’m nothing more than an access point 40 

to the fish for those who don’t own their own boats.  I do not 41 

own the fish, nor do I own or control a portion of them.  I 42 

don’t want to own a portion at this time. 43 

 44 

The American people own those fish and should have the privilege 45 

to access them via charterboats or via friends who own their own 46 

boats.  Being from the south, each of you knows someone who has 47 

been in the cattle business. 48 



58 

 

 1 

It is common knowledge that in order to have a better herd that 2 

you have to separate the cows from the bulls and the heifers 3 

from the steers.  To me, sector separation is nothing more than 4 

taking a group of cattle and putting them in their own pastures 5 

so they can be managed to their fullest potential. 6 

 7 

By separating the cattle into different pastures, a farm manager 8 

can look out and see which areas need work and which areas can 9 

continue without interference.  It is far easier to manage 10 

people or cattle when they’re in smaller groups. 11 

 12 

I fully support continuing to look at the pilot programs and 13 

explore days at sea.  I would like to have amberjack beginning 14 

after red snapper ends, because I do not hunt and those people 15 

who do not hunt still want to be able to go fishing and so 16 

please open the amberjack after red snapper closes. 17 

 18 

The red snapper quota for 2010, any additions should be put in a 19 

bank and should not be added to this year’s allocation, because 20 

I don’t want to go over our quota and have to pay them back.  21 

Thank you. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Joe Nash, followed by Bryant Thompson. 24 

 25 

MR. JOE NASH:  My name is Joe Nash.  I’ve been in the charter 26 

business now for this will be my twenty-fourth year.  I support 27 

sector separation, because that’s all we have to look at right 28 

now. 29 

 30 

You give us a couple of alternatives and it’s like choose your 31 

medicine and that’s it right there.  I sure would like to see 32 

the old days again, but as I was told last year, it will never 33 

happen. 34 

 35 

With all our seasons and such, a little insight, if you could 36 

look at it.  Just look at sixty of your days.  You get a 37 

paycheck and we opt to work for ourselves, but take sixty of 38 

your days and just realize that you have to work every one of 39 

those sixty days and it’s kind of hard to go to a birth of maybe 40 

a grandchild or a child or maybe a wedding or heaven forbid if 41 

somebody dies in your family.  You may have a breakdown or 42 

whatever.  It’s sixty days and that’s all we’ve got. 43 

 44 

What’s happening with my charters is that they want the biggest 45 

bang for their buck and so they’re all waiting for June and July 46 

to go fishing, because they want to catch amberjack and snapper. 47 

 48 
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I used to have an excellent business and my May was usually 1 

booked up for twenty-five out of the thirty days we have in May.  2 

Right now, I have one six-hour trip next month and that’s it.  3 

It’s tough on me, because you’ve got swallow your pride a little 4 

bit and say hey, you know what, I’ve got to change a little bit. 5 

 6 

We don’t mind changing a little bit, but just think of that when 7 

you’re making these rules and regulations, that it affects the 8 

everyday person.  When you’re sitting at home and you say the 9 

next sixty days I won’t be able to go to a wedding and I might 10 

not be able to go to a funeral or a birth of a child or a 11 

ballgame or whatever, because I have to work twenty-four hours a 12 

day, if you have to.  That’s basically all I have to say.   13 

 14 

I would rather see the amberjack run right on through, because 15 

we don’t know what the fall is going to bring.  We have no idea, 16 

but that’s all I have to say. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Joe.  Bryant Thompson, followed by 19 

Randy Boggs. 20 

 21 

MR. RANDY BOGGS:  Bryant Thompson was the guy that was with me 22 

and Bryant is not here.  He left a letter.  The letter that 23 

Bryant asked me to read, I don’t think I can read, because he 24 

talks about me in it and I’m not comfortable doing that.  I’m 25 

just going to move on. 26 

 27 

My name is Randy Boggs and I’m a headboat owner/operator here in 28 

town.  I have a couple of headboats.  According to what I just 29 

found out, I got picked to sit on the Limited Access Privilege 30 

Program.  I heard that there’s been a lot of things said and 31 

some of them true and some of them not true. 32 

 33 

There’s been a lot of things that was told to the council today 34 

that’s not exactly accurate.  The State of Mississippi, there’s 35 

eighty-four boats in the Gulf of Mexico that are headboats 36 

listed on the Beaufort Headboat Survey.  There’s fourteen of 37 

them in Mississippi.  Mississippi did that because they don’t 38 

have a data collection system and so there’s fourteen of those 39 

boats that I’m not sure they’re actually true headboat. 40 

 41 

I don’t understand.  I’ve talked to almost fifty boats Gulf-wide 42 

myself personally on the phone and a lot of people want to know 43 

what’s in the program. 44 

 45 

There’s been a lot of meetings that have been held and a lot of 46 

people talking about what’s going to be in the headboat program.  47 

As far as I know, I’m the first person that’s been appointed as 48 
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a headboat owner/operator to the Limited Access Privilege 1 

Program to help develop this and so there’s a lot of 2 

misinformation spread among the community. 3 

 4 

A lot of people are saying that they’re against something that 5 

doesn’t even exist.  There’s a lot of false information out 6 

there.  I know that’s not a popular thing to stand up here and 7 

say, but there’s a lot of mistruths being spread around the 8 

community, especially about the headboats.  There is a lot of 9 

interest. 10 

 11 

I know of twenty-five or twenty-six boats right now that would 12 

love to sign on for the program, but they’re just like me.  They 13 

want to see it designed and they want to see what’s in the 14 

program and what it can do for them. 15 

 16 

I heard somebody say that the headboats are starving.  We’re not 17 

starving, but we’re certainly feeling the effects of the economy 18 

and the effects of the fishery.  We need to maximize our earning 19 

potential on a headboat when we go fishing. 20 

 21 

I had a guy that wrote an article and I had a big thing I was 22 

going to say and I’m just going to kind of wing it.  I had a guy 23 

who wrote an article and he called it “The Good Old Days Are 24 

Back”. 25 

 26 

He went fishing on my boat and I charged him $85.00 to go.  He’s 27 

a writer from Birmingham.  He caught two red snapper and one of 28 

them weighed a little over ten pounds and one of them weighed 29 

eleven pounds.  He had eight vermilion snapper and two 30 

triggerfish. 31 

 32 

He took these fish and we very carefully weighed them on a set 33 

of certified scales and he went back to Birmingham and went to a 34 

local seafood market.  If he would have purchased those fish, 35 

those fish would have cost him right around two-hundred-and-36 

something dollars in Birmingham, yet he caught those fish on my 37 

boat for $85.00 and he wrote about the good old days when you 38 

could sell fish and pay for your trip and come away very well. 39 

 40 

That should tell the council right there that snapper are being 41 

devalued, because when the season is open, it’s easy to go catch 42 

the snapper.  You get on the boat and you can actually over 43 

catch people for their money’s worth. 44 

 45 

The snapper being sold at the rate I’m selling them at are 46 

certainly worth a lot more in the market in other words and a 47 

headboat IFQ program where I could voluntarily limit it to one 48 
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fish per person and fish more days would certainly make the fish 1 

more valuable. 2 

 3 

I heard somebody talking about looking at the economics of the 4 

recreational versus the charter for-hire.  Ten years ago, we 5 

voluntarily put ourselves under a moratorium and no control was 6 

put on the recreational fleet.  If you had let the charter for-7 

hire fleet grow without it being under a moratorium, there would 8 

be hundreds, if not thousands, more charterboats and you would 9 

see the economic line stay pretty much the same. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Randy, thank you. 12 

 13 

MR. BOGGS:  The last thing is I was asked to remind the council 14 

that there’s food and stuff across the street at the Steamer 15 

tonight.  Somebody sent an email out. 16 

 17 

MR. GRIMES:  I just want to tell you that you can submit your 18 

colleague’s letter and it will become part of the official 19 

written record of the meeting. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Chad Hanson, followed by Alex McDuffie. 22 

 23 

MS. HOLLY BINNS:  Chad Hanson had to take off.  He’s got a very 24 

new baby here and his wife couldn’t take care of her by herself 25 

anymore.  Is it okay if I give his comments for us instead? 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 28 

 29 

MS. BINNS:  My name is Holly Binns and I represent the Pew 30 

Environment Group.  First, we wanted to extend our appreciation 31 

to the staff and the council and everyone involved for helping 32 

to move this Generic Annual Catch Limit Amendment along. 33 

 34 

We would like to urge you to take some time when you get to full 35 

council to walk through the accountability measures section of 36 

the document, because I think that’s the last remaining item 37 

that really has some stuff that needs to get settled before you 38 

send the amendment out to public hearing. 39 

 40 

In general, we are supportive of many of the specifics in this 41 

amendment and how they’re coming together, but we’ve got a 42 

couple of concerns with a couple of components that I just 43 

wanted to highlight for you and hope that maybe they could get 44 

addressed during full council. 45 

 46 

The first is that we would recommend that the council utilize 47 

biological information and other considerations like 48 
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vulnerability in addition to that 15,000-pound level of landings 1 

to determine whether you’re going to remove species from the FMP 2 

and we would also urge the council to direct staff to work with 3 

the Southeast Regional Office to actively monitor all of these 4 

species and fisheries in federal waters, even those that you 5 

take out of the FMP in order to analyze any emerging trends. 6 

 7 

The reason for that is that there are likely going to be some 8 

shifts in fishing behavior and what species folks are targeting 9 

and reporting and all that could take place and if you’re sort 10 

of at a low level of monitoring this stuff, then you can 11 

identify emerging trends and detect any potential problems 12 

before they get out of hand and you could take corrective action 13 

ahead of time so that it doesn’t have to be something really 14 

sort of severe.  Just basically get out ahead of the curve is 15 

all we’re saying here. 16 

 17 

Then, finally, we just wanted to flag for you a concern that 18 

removal of some species, particularly something like mutton 19 

snapper, from the Reef Fish FMP could create a loophole that 20 

would potentially allow some out-of-state vessels that are 21 

outside the purview of Florida’s authority to allow these ships 22 

to target some spawning aggregations that occur in federal 23 

waters.  I wanted to flag that as one other small concern and so 24 

that’s sort of our summary of our issues on the Generic ACL 25 

Amendment. 26 

 27 

We’re supportive of the interim rule for gag and we wanted to 28 

thank the FWCC and Mr. Wiley and Bill Teehan for the consistency 29 

so we can have a fall season this year. 30 

 31 

We are concerned about using just 2009 landings data, because I 32 

think that’s just one data point.  The 2006 through 2008 data 33 

stream of landings we think is a better baseline to start with 34 

and it gives you sort of a fuller picture of where things are 35 

at, but also I’ll just remind you that some of the data on the 36 

effort shifting that occurred in the red snapper recreational 37 

fishery when that season length was truncated was a lot higher 38 

than what is being assumed right now for gag and so particularly 39 

I just wanted to urge you guys to be cautious and make sure 40 

we’re using some good assumptions here, so that we get the 41 

recovery plan right and we don’t have to go back in and go 42 

through all of this again. 43 

 44 

I’ll wrap it up there and we’ll give you some more extensive 45 

comments in writing, but thanks again for all your hard work on 46 

these two amendments and we appreciate it. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Holly.  I want to make a couple of 1 

announcements.  First of all, we still have several cards left 2 

and so we’re running well over time and we won’t be able to hear 3 

those folks that wanted to testify twice. 4 

 5 

However, for those of you that do want to testify or did want to 6 

testify twice, if you want to turn in written comments in lieu 7 

of your testimony, we certainly would welcome that.   8 

 9 

MR. TEEHAN:  I just wanted to thank Holly and Libby for their 10 

kind words about me, but it was Nick Wiley that did all that 11 

stuff. 12 

 13 

MR. WILEY:  Oh, please. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Like I say, we still have a number of folks who 16 

have not had a chance to testify.  Alex McDuffie, followed by 17 

Tom Steber.  He must have left.  Tom, are you ready?  Tom will 18 

be followed by Steve Tomeny. 19 

 20 

MR. TOM STEBER:  I think Alex left with his dad.  I’m Tom 21 

Steber, here representing the Alabama Gulf Coast Chamber of 22 

Commerce, Zeke’s Landing, Marina, and fleet.  As you know, most 23 

of our issues continually revolve around bad data or lack of 24 

better data. 25 

 26 

We need good data.  We need a timely season and we need more 27 

days to fish.  You need better data so you can make better 28 

decisions.  The problem still is the slow and poor data.  All of 29 

you must know by now that the snapper are abundant and they’re 30 

bigger and they’re back.  We can’t hardly catch anything else 31 

and so that should tell you that. 32 

 33 

You want better data and we need more days.  We continue to get 34 

cut, cut, cut and it’s hard to market a business when you don’t 35 

know when your season is over with.  You know when it’s going to 36 

start, but we’ve got to know that and I know that you’re in a 37 

situation where it takes a long time to turn this big wheel. 38 

 39 

The for-hire sector can afford to get you better data if we can 40 

have better days.  We can afford to have VMS and we can afford 41 

to have electronic logbooks and observers, but we need more days 42 

to do so. 43 

 44 

Just about every guy that’s stood up here talked about how they 45 

were fishing 120 or 200 days and now they’re down to sixty to 46 

ninety.  It’s hard to survive that way and when we moved snapper 47 

season from April to June, at my marina alone we lost a million 48 
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dollars worth of sales to our tourist business because it just 1 

disappeared. 2 

 3 

When we lost April and May, we gained nothing in June and July.  4 

We ran eight years in a row, with the exception of last year, of 5 

the same basic volume we did every year for eight years in June 6 

and July. 7 

 8 

By continually cutting days, the average person will not be able 9 

to enjoy fishing in the Gulf of Mexico, because the average 10 

person does not own his or her own boat.  They depend on the 11 

for-hire sector of boats to give them access to that Gulf. 12 

 13 

Lastly, I said at the last council meeting and one thing that I 14 

really think you all need to consider -- I know you keep saying 15 

it’s too hard to do that, but it would be so much easier for you 16 

all if you separated the Gulf into three quadrants.  You have 17 

Texas, you have south Florida, and then you have us in the 18 

middle that are catching most of the snapper. 19 

 20 

It would be much easier on you all if you would come up with a 21 

way to segregate that Gulf and you wouldn’t have the conflict of 22 

when to catch this fish or that.  Thank you very much. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  I’ve got one question real 25 

quick.  I assume from what you said that if we ever had a little 26 

bit of surplus and we could go to some weekends that you would 27 

rather have them in the spring than the fall.  Is that right? 28 

 29 

MR. STEBER:  Without a doubt. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Steve Tomeny, followed by John Fitzgerald. 32 

 33 

MR. STEVE TOMENY:  Good afternoon.  I’m Steve Tomeny and I run 34 

two large charterboats out of Fourchon, Louisiana.  They both 35 

have been in the Beaufort Headboat Survey since 1990, the early 36 

1990s on one and 1990 on the other. 37 

 38 

We’re still here plugging away trying to get some sector 39 

separation.  We think we need our own fisheries management plan 40 

and we need some flexibility.  I would like to see -- I know 41 

that we need to get this real-time data and electronic 42 

reporting.  We’re all for it.  Put VMS on us or whatever we need 43 

to make things work better so that we can end up, in the long 44 

run, with a better fishery. 45 

 46 

I would like to see this headboat pilot program going.  My boats 47 

have been in the headboat study the whole time and it would just 48 
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give us some flexibility, just something.  Like right now, like 1 

you’ve heard it already today, I was on the phone earlier and 2 

you can’t tell people when they can have a red snapper and it’s 3 

a big deal to them. 4 

 5 

We need to know some starting or stopping times or know how many 6 

days that we can kind of calculate what we’re going to be able 7 

to do ahead of time.  That would help us out quite a bit. 8 

 9 

If the amberjack have to be closed, there’s no good medicine, 10 

but I guess closing it in June and July would leave me something 11 

to fish for in the fall, what little fall business we have left.  12 

I’m like the others that you’ve heard.  My business is down from 13 

150 trips a boat to -- Last year I didn’t count, but 2009 was 14 

horrible, forty-five or fifty trips a boat. 15 

 16 

I just need some help and we want to keep these pilot programs 17 

alive and we’re willing to do whatever we can do providing data, 18 

quick data, electronic observers on the boats, anything we can 19 

do to give us a little more time.  Thank you. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Next is John Fitzgerald, followed 22 

by Russell Underwood.  Is John gone?  Russell, you have the 23 

honor of being our last speaker. 24 

 25 

MR. RUSSELL UNDERWOOD:  The first thing is I’m Russell 26 

Underwood.  I live in Panama City, Florida.  I fish off of 27 

Louisiana, out of Leesville.  I’ve been fishing for about forty 28 

years and for the new council members that don’t know me, the 29 

last twenty-five years, I’ve been part of this process and I 30 

really care a lot about the resource and the fishery and our 31 

jobs and our livelihood. 32 

 33 

The first thing I would like to talk about this afternoon is 34 

amberjack.  A new little problem has developed.  I think we need 35 

to stop this derby fishing.  When I heard the figures, the 36 

numbers, on the amberjack on the commercial side, there’s only I 37 

guess about -- I’m not sure of the quota that we have in the 38 

western Gulf, but the bottom line is that all my boats, my five 39 

or six boats that we run, we depend on amberjacks to help out, 40 

to fulfill, to make a complete bottom trip. 41 

 42 

None of my boats go chase nothing but red snapper or nothing but 43 

grouper or nothing but amberjacks.  In the hallway, I talked to 44 

a few of my fellow fishermen and they said, well, Captain 45 

Russell, you didn’t know and I said, my boats didn’t catch these 46 

amberjacks last year.  They might have caught a few, but not the 47 

whole quota and especially not 189,000 over. 48 
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 1 

The bottom line is we’re stewards of this fishery and I’ve been 2 

through this derby for about fifteen years and we don’t need to 3 

start another amberjack derby.  I recommend let’s go to a 2,000-4 

pound trip limit. 5 

 6 

You will have better quality fish.  Remember these fish are not 7 

real high dollar fish.  They’re about $1.25 or $1.35 at the 8 

most.  No fish house wants no 10,000 or 15,000 pounds of greater 9 

amberjack at one time and I think that’s what’s happening in the 10 

western Gulf.  I don’t know the name of the boats, but it’s 11 

going on and I guess it’s just a new fishery that’s developed 12 

here lately. 13 

 14 

Another story is I believe we need to go to a 2,000-pound trip 15 

limit to make this fishery stretch out so that everybody could 16 

get the benefit of these amberjacks. 17 

 18 

Another thing I would like to speak on today is about the 19 

charterboats and the recreational fishermen.  That’s where I 20 

came from thirty years ago, from the headboat industry.  It is 21 

time for the headboats and the charterboats to step up to the 22 

plate and you all need to decide what to do to keep this fishing 23 

industry going. 24 

 25 

It’s a way of life in Panama City, Florida, where I came from.  26 

I loved it and I still love it.  Half my friends are in that 27 

business and they need to step up to the plate.  I don’t need to 28 

decide what they need.  They need to decide and step up to the 29 

plate and save their livelihood.  It’s getting shorter seasons 30 

every year. 31 

 32 

Another thing is on the red snapper, on the fish that the 33 

recreational did not catch last year, I personally agree that if 34 

they had a shortage and they did not fulfill their quota, what’s 35 

fair is fair.  The red snapper fishery is not a payback fishery. 36 

 37 

I know over the past few years they’ve gone way over.  I support 38 

giving the charterboat and recreational industry -- They don’t 39 

need more fish, but they need more time to fish to make a living 40 

and I support that and thank you. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Russell.  That concludes our public 43 

testimony.  I appreciate everybody for sticking within their 44 

time limits.  Again, those of you who wanted a second shot, 45 

we’re over, but you can turn in a written statement and for 46 

council members, a reminder that we start tomorrow morning in 47 

closed session at 8:15. 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ve heard, Steve, that we have to be out of this 2 

room completely by 4:30 tomorrow and is that -- I think we’re 3 

behind and we have a lot of work to do tomorrow.  Would it be 4 

possible for us to work through lunch and have lunch come in? 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Most assuredly we need to do that.  Let’s 7 

everybody plan on that.  We’ll revise the agenda and we’ll work 8 

through lunch and somehow or other get something delivered here. 9 

 10 

MR. PERRET:  Do we want to keep working through tomorrow 11 

evening?  We’ve got to get out at 5:00? 12 

 13 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mr. Chairman, Nick and I would like lobster and 14 

steak, please, for lunch tomorrow. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Sure.  Give me your deposit. 17 

 18 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 6:15 p.m., April 13, 2011.) 19 

 20 

- - - 21 

 22 

April 14, 2011 23 

 24 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 25 

 26 

- - - 27 

 28 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 29 

Council reconvened at the Perdido Beach Resort, Orange Beach, 30 

Alabama, Thursday morning, April 14, 2011, and was called to 31 

order at 8:45 a.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re going to do the presentations first, as 34 

per the agenda, but then after that, the consensus is that we 35 

need to finish the Reef Fish Committee Report, especially 36 

addressing the requests from the Gulf States governors regarding 37 

the red snapper underage.   38 

 39 

We will do that and then we’ll just see where we are.  As I told 40 

you earlier, we’re going to work through lunch and we have to be 41 

out of here sometime between 4:00 and 5:00 and we’re trying to 42 

find out specifically what.   43 

 44 

Without further delay, let’s go ahead into the presentations.  45 

The first one is Agenda Item Number VI(a), Fishery 46 

Independent/Dependent Sampling, and Dr. Sean Powers. 47 

 48 
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FISHERY INDEPENDENT/DEPENDENT SAMPLING PRESENTATION 1 

 2 

DR. SEAN POWERS:  Thanks, Bob.  We were asked to come here to 3 

talk about a program that we’ve started off Alabama, in 4 

cooperation with the Marine Resource Division, to try to design 5 

a survey first that provides data that’s necessary immediately 6 

for some of the stock assessments, and in particular the red 7 

snapper stock assessment, to fill some of those holes. 8 

 9 

Secondly, we were asked and designed a study to start to link 10 

different fisheries-independent datasets to get ready to move 11 

more towards ecosystem assessment and get the datasets necessary 12 

that will do that type of assessment. 13 

 14 

What I’m going to show you is kind of the first couple of years 15 

of the program we’ve run.  We think that we’ve done a fair 16 

amount of the standardization practices, along with SEAMAP.  17 

Louisiana has also been involved in some of the standardization 18 

talks and we think that this can be easily exported to other 19 

states and obviously scaled up from the relatively modest 20 

coastline of Alabama. 21 

 22 

Our goals, again, are to have a program that improves current 23 

stock assessments and I’ll talk about the ways that we want to 24 

improve those or the data needs that we think there are and also 25 

to merge single species assessments into multiple species 26 

assessments or ultimately ecosystem-based assessments. 27 

 28 

Our objectives for the short term, and these are the ones we’ve 29 

largely finished, for the most part, was determine selectivity 30 

patterns of the gears, decide the gears we’re going to use, and 31 

adopt standard practices and do all those essentially tedious 32 

and boring comparisons of gear and selectivities of hook sizes 33 

and all of those things that we desperately need but is 34 

relatively boring to do. 35 

 36 

Our mid-term objectives, the two to three-year window, which is 37 

the window that we have secured funding for, is to assess reef 38 

fish assemblages in coastal Alabama to support the SEDAR stock 39 

assessments, in particularly red snapper, and our long-term, 40 

again, is to establish this ecosystem-based fisheries-41 

independent sampling program. 42 

 43 

Why do we need improved -- Everybody has heard about the data 44 

limitations and the need for more data and obviously what we 45 

mean by more data is we obviously need the more appropriate 46 

data.  We have a lot of data, but we still have some holes and 47 

so identifying those holes and making sure those are filled in 48 
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the future. 1 

 2 

We’ll use red snapper as an example.  The current model is 3 

heavily weighted towards the fisheries-dependent data.  That’s 4 

landings data and age-based analysis of the landings data.  The 5 

model is in particularly obsessed, for lack of a better word, 6 

with the age composition of the commercial landings and you can 7 

see here what’s driving the model, for the most part, and this 8 

is just hand line from 2000.  All these figures are from the 9 

actual assessment report. 10 

 11 

This is the observed pattern, the frequency, the bars here.  12 

Don’t worry about the scale too much, but you can see the 13 

pattern.  Essentially you don’t have many older fish in the 14 

population.  You essentially have three and four-year-old fish 15 

and after that, the fish, the older ages, are gone.   16 

 17 

The model must interpret that, because of the vulnerability and 18 

selectivity schedules that’s imposed on, as heavy mortality.  19 

That’s the most conservative interpretation and that’s the one 20 

we use. 21 

 22 

That is a very high fishing mortality, but we need to know, is 23 

that a true age composition of the population?  We know that’s 24 

the true age composition of the landings.  We don’t know if 25 

that’s a true age composition of the population and so a lot of 26 

our data is structured to get at that question and in fact, if 27 

you remember, you saw lots of three and four-year-old fish and 28 

then less older fish and if you look at the hand line east ratio 29 

right here, essentially it’s this line right here and what the 30 

current vulnerability schedules say are you should be catching 31 

five, six, and seven-year-old fish. 32 

 33 

The fact that you’re not catching those is not dependent on the 34 

gear.  It’s the fact that those older age classes are not 35 

present because of heavy mortality. 36 

 37 

The bottom longline dataset that NMFS has offered some insight 38 

into the fact that there are older age class fish in the 39 

population.  Again, this is red snapper and you can see that 40 

essentially the bottom longline samples the larger fish.  This 41 

essentially is a 15/0 hook and so it’s sampling the larger fish, 42 

but the larger fish are in the population. 43 

 44 

The problem is that there’s a very low sampling size for red 45 

snapper.  This survey was never designed for red snapper.  It 46 

was designed mainly for sharks and so we want to see what 47 

happens when we link some of these gears together in our 48 
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assessment. 1 

 2 

The bottom line is the effects of this uncertainty -- These are 3 

the model runs, the different model scenarios, essentially, from 4 

the current red snapper update.  You can barely see those 5 

numbers, but essentially it’s a family of eight models and the 6 

models group into two different categories. 7 

 8 

There’s the lower directed harvest.  This is directed harvest 9 

and this is the ones that allow higher directed harvest.  What’s 10 

driving this disparity is the age composition and how much 11 

weight you put on that age composition. 12 

 13 

Again, most of our age samples, the vast majority of our age 14 

samples, are from the landings data and so it’s essentially 15 

driving the model down because it thinks there’s heavy fishing 16 

mortality. 17 

 18 

These right here, we’ve relaxed that condition a bit and said 19 

don’t take -- Essentially we dropped the effective sampling size 20 

down to down weight that age composition.  The reality is the 21 

differences in 2013, you could have six-million pounds of 22 

directed harvest or you could have twelve-million directed 23 

harvest.  That’s a huge amount of uncertainty associated with 24 

essentially something that we feel we could resolve with better 25 

data. 26 

 27 

As a member of the SSC, to a large degree, we would love that 28 

number to be up there, but if the number is really down here, 29 

then that’s the number that we need to tell you, but right now 30 

what we chose is a path kind of in the middle, because of the 31 

uncertainty. 32 

 33 

What are we trying to do to fix this?  The first thing with a 34 

fisheries-independent sampling is you want a random and unbiased 35 

sample or at least you want to control your biases.  One of the 36 

advantages we have with Alabama is obviously we have a 37 

relatively modest coastline. 38 

 39 

We can grid our whole coastline and this is actually the 40 

artificial reef zone in the system.  We can grid it all into 41 

about 800 two-kilometer-by-two-kilometer grids.  All of these 42 

grids are then stratified by depth and so the blue is the sixty 43 

to 120 feet and yellow is 120 to 180 and then 180 and deeper. 44 

 45 

Then what we do is we randomly select twelve grids, and we do 46 

this three times a year.  Those twelve grids we proportionally 47 

allocate and so there’s six in the shallow areas, four in the 48 
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mid-depth, and two in the deeper areas. 1 

 2 

What we do in those grids is the first thing we do is we take a 3 

side scan and we map the whole area.  Critical to this is full 4 

knowledge of the system and all of the structured and 5 

unstructured habitats.   6 

 7 

Again, we knew that we had to include structured habitats in 8 

that.  We know that that’s a relative weakness and in the 9 

current assessments, the current fisheries-independent, 10 

essentially they don’t include a lot of the structured habitats 11 

and particularly, they do not include any of the artificial reef 12 

habitat. 13 

 14 

A little bit of that is because obviously they want to stay 15 

consistent with the past and they need to do that and not 16 

change, but a lot of it is essentially those structures are 17 

unknown.  Those structures provide an opportunity for gear 18 

entanglement and a variety of problems and so if we have a good 19 

map, we can control a lot of those and actually be able to 20 

extrapolate our numbers to a higher level. 21 

 22 

We then use an ROV, a remotely-operated vehicle, with an HD 23 

camera and lasers to map and this is a small handheld ROV.  It’s 24 

relatively inexpensive compared to some of the big ones. 25 

 26 

We then trawl vertical longline, which is bandit gear, and then 27 

bottom longline.  This vertical longline is the efforts we’re 28 

making with Louisiana and other states through the SEAMAP 29 

program to standardize those techniques, especially on 30 

structured habitats. 31 

 32 

We then do stable isotope analysis and gut contents to tie all 33 

of these things together.  The key is we’re going to do this 34 

synoptically.  We’re going to do it all in the same grid, 35 

roughly about the same time.  We’ll do it all within a week, 36 

sometimes in the exact same day. 37 

 38 

What you get is this is a two-kilometer-by-two-kilometer grid.  39 

This is the side scan image and you can’t see it very well, but 40 

essentially all of these green dots and all of the red dots are 41 

structures.  Those are positive hits and this is shallow enough 42 

and that’s all artificial reef structures in Alabama.  Just that 43 

little bit in a two-kilometer-by-two-kilometer grid I think 44 

gives us 120 contact points. 45 

 46 

We then randomly choose two of those to do vertical longline on 47 

and so we have random grid selection and then we randomize 48 
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within that for that and so we choose two of those structures.  1 

We have the side-scan image and so we know what those structures 2 

will look like and I’ll show you in a second. 3 

 4 

We then randomly choose the location for our bottom longline and 5 

then our trawl survey and then where we do vertical longlines, 6 

we also do ROVs.  We have a lot of data, a lot of gear 7 

comparisons that we can make, as well as the opportunity to get 8 

samples. 9 

 10 

That’s one of the problems with video, is that at most you can 11 

only get length.  It is difficult to get age from length, 12 

especially for the larger fish, and so we still need the actual 13 

samples. 14 

 15 

Here’s some of the imagery that we get.  We do get some natural 16 

reef off of Alabama.  It’s mainly in that 180-plus depth bin.  17 

This is part of the pinnacles.  That’s about fifty meters 18 

across, for scale.  This is more typical.  These are reef 19 

pyramids and you can actually even see the little windows in the 20 

reef pyramid and this is all generated by the side scan. 21 

 22 

We know the structures and we know the relative distribution of 23 

those structures.  We get a density from the ROV and we can 24 

actually back calculate a true independent number of fish in the 25 

system.  Some of the larger structures show up, obviously, very 26 

impressively, the Swingle Reef and the Anderson Reef.  All of 27 

these that are randomly in our grid, we will choose those 28 

structures at random. 29 

 30 

The main gear we use for a lot of the SEAMAP work that we’re 31 

funded to do on a pilot project is the vertical or bandit gear 32 

and we’ve looked at hook size and whether we attach or detach 33 

the gear and a variety of the issues, but I won’t get into those 34 

details. 35 

 36 

Essentially, we know the absolute coordinates for the pyramid or 37 

the structure and so we’re going to go right up to the reef and 38 

we’re going to see what the catch is and what the age 39 

composition is.  This is just the effort in 2010. 40 

 41 

We started all of this in March of 2010, before the spill, and 42 

were able to carry this through, along with some additional 43 

sampling, during and after the spill as well.  Normally, we do 44 

three times a year, March for a baseline, right before the red 45 

snapper season opens in May, and then whenever the red snapper 46 

season closes.  Obviously this year we didn’t get that last 47 

sampling until November. 48 
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 1 

As far as the species contribution on the vertical longline, you 2 

see it’s dominated by red snapper.  We’ve gotten over a thousand 3 

and all of these have been aged.  MRD ages half and we keep half 4 

and ours, all of those are aged according to the Gulf States 5 

protocols. 6 

 7 

We get a fair number of gray triggerfish and once you get down 8 

to vermilion, you start getting lower and lower.  One of the 9 

things we can tell from the ROV is is this a gear selectivity, a 10 

behavior issue, or that is the population distribution. 11 

 12 

The first thing we have to do is we also have a non-structured 13 

system, because we want to be able to compare our datasets with 14 

NMFS.  All of our bottom longline, our trawl, vertical longline, 15 

we’ve made every effort to keep whatever standard practices 16 

SEAMAP and NMFS have, so we can augment their datasets, if 17 

possible, and also compare them as well. 18 

 19 

This is structure versus unstructured.  This shouldn’t surprise 20 

anybody, but essentially with the exception of one site where we 21 

had heavy fish on a non-structured site, essentially we caught 22 

no red snapper when we were away from structure. 23 

 24 

In fact, one of the things we keep on talking about is it costs 25 

us a fair amount of money to do this and why do we keep on 26 

sampling the non-structured habitat when we keep on getting 27 

zeros and more importantly, our age composition is all coming 28 

from the structured habitat.  Right now, we’re keeping the non-29 

structured, but eventually we might have to revisit that. 30 

 31 

What is the catch per unit effort?  This is red snapper per hook 32 

per five minutes and you can see where did March, May, and 33 

November were our basic ones.  These other time periods were 34 

supplemented either by the state or the university to go out for 35 

oil spill work and we can see that essentially the population 36 

stayed relatively constant. 37 

 38 

This is the fishing season here.  We expected to see maybe a 39 

drop and we really didn’t see a large drop in the vertical 40 

longline.  That was the recreational fishing season. 41 

 42 

One of the things we discovered, getting back to this bias, is 43 

that we can essentially control the size of fish that we catch, 44 

the average size of fish, by playing with hook size and bait 45 

type.  This obviously is nothing new to the commercial guys.  46 

They know that. 47 

 48 
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Essentially, if we use an 8/0 hook, we catch a lot smaller fish 1 

than an 11/0 hook.  This is 400 millimeters.  400 millimeters is 2 

sixteen inches, for the most part.  We see a drop, obviously, 3 

from eleven to eight.  It’s not that big of a difference between 4 

three and eight and we also have nine and we also have a 15/0 5 

hook that we’ve added, because Louisiana was very interested in 6 

going with a larger hook size. 7 

 8 

We have a series of hook sizes and so we lose about an inch from 9 

11/0 to 8/0.  If we use squid compared to mackerel, we also drop 10 

it by another inch and so we can catch smaller fish if we use 11 

squid and an 8/0 or 9/0 hook.  Again, that’s not reflected in 12 

the vulnerability schedule and so that’s really important 13 

information that we have. 14 

 15 

This just shows you the size distribution and, again, sorry for 16 

the small font.  Essentially, this is the red and this is the 17 

sixteen-inch line.  It just shows you the 11/0.  Most of your 18 

fish are on this side of the sixteen-inch line.  As you go to a 19 

smaller hook size, you obviously start shifting to the smaller 20 

fish.  That sounds pretty basic, but believe it or not, that is 21 

critical information that we need to know. 22 

 23 

What is the size range?  That’s one of the things we wanted to 24 

emphasize, is we are catching -- In that two-kilometer-by-two-25 

kilometer grid, we’re catching every life stage of red snapper.  26 

We catch the small ones in the trawl and so this is fifty to a 27 

hundred millimeters and then they fall off. 28 

 29 

Then on the vertical longline, we catch essentially the 200 to 30 

300 ones and then they fall off and then the question is, is 31 

that because there’s no older fish in the system, or larger 32 

fish, or is that a gear issue? 33 

 34 

When we look at the bottom longline -- Again, we’re doing it 35 

synoptically, in the same area as well, and you can see we do 36 

get the older age class fish or in this case, the larger size.  37 

I’ll show you that they’re older age classes in a second, the 38 

larger size. 39 

 40 

We have essentially a very different picture than we would get 41 

with any single gear.  The ROV, which is our really independent 42 

assessment, shows essentially that all of the gear -- It 43 

overlaps with most of the gear.  It’s showing some larger fish 44 

and it’s also showing some sixteen-inch fishes and below and so 45 

the ROV helps us to even everything and compare everything. 46 

 47 

These are some of the ROV type videos that we get.  Obviously we 48 
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chose the ones on a good day, where visibility is good.  The 1 

lasers are four inches apart.  We see red drum as well and you 2 

can see on the bottom longline -- I forgot to mention that we do 3 

catch a lot of red drum and so we’re hoping to get an index with 4 

those. 5 

 6 

One of the questions is what do we catch versus what do we see?  7 

When we drop the ROV, and this is the ROV right here, what we 8 

catch on the vertical longline is red snapper.  Every now and 9 

then you’ll get a rock seabass, essentially, but you have gray 10 

triggerfish, you have tomtate, you have eels, high-hats, other 11 

things that are not reflected on the vertical longline. 12 

 13 

Again, here, red snapper.  We have gray triggerfish, lane 14 

snapper, gray, vermilion snapper.  All you’re getting is red 15 

snapper on the vertical longline and so any index based on 16 

vertical longline is adequate for red snapper and it’s probably 17 

not a good assessment, at least in these few ROV runs, for the 18 

other species. 19 

 20 

This is just more showing you that red porgy, when you go 21 

deeper, actually is collected in a fair concentration on the 22 

vertical longline, but, again, we’re missing most of the species 23 

and is this because red snapper is much more aggressive for the 24 

hooks or it some other behavior? 25 

 26 

This is the bottom longline and what I want to show you is, 27 

again, bottom longline we catch lots of sharks around the reefs.  28 

That’s not surprising.  Again, that’s also an area that NMFS 29 

currently doesn’t sample right now. 30 

 31 

We catch lots of red snapper and we catch gaff-top catfish and 32 

the smaller in the more shallow areas and that could be an 33 

important predator in our system.  Red drum, we have a high CPUE 34 

for red drum and we’re hoping to use the longline as an index as 35 

well. 36 

 37 

That’s the distribution that you saw, but more importantly, this 38 

is the age composition.  This is the vertical longline and then 39 

the green is the bottom longline and it reflects what we saw in 40 

the size pattern.   41 

 42 

Essentially, not surprisingly, we’ve been able to reproduce 43 

almost exactly the pattern in the stock assessment for the 44 

vertical longline.  Again, it’s dominated by threes.  We have a 45 

little more fours than the assessment says we should have, but 46 

it tapers off very much. 47 

 48 
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In that same area where the bottom longline is, those older age 1 

class fishes are there.  They’re obviously there in a lower 2 

relative density and the question is do all those proportions 3 

work out and how can we combine these to get a better mortality 4 

estimate, but the older age class fishes do appear there.  We 5 

just need more data to make sure that they’re appearing in the 6 

relative frequencies that we think they should be. 7 

 8 

This shows you an idea of why we need selectively data.  This is 9 

a drop camera on the vertical longline.  Again, you’ve got 10 

twelve hooks.  We just drop it.  First comes up all the 11 

triggerfish.  It’s just a swarm of fish and red snapper are 12 

below and you can see that the triggerfish are just working the 13 

baits and pulling it off and not getting hooked very well. 14 

 15 

Nobody is hooked yet and nobody is -- There we’ve got a hook-up 16 

of triggerfish and then we get a few more hook-ups.  We don’t 17 

catch everything.  That was a snowy grouper that we did not 18 

catch on the vertical longline.  It seemed kind of pissed off 19 

that we were there. 20 

 21 

This is another here.  The first one you see in the beginning is 22 

a red grouper and this is another type of structure.  Again, we 23 

start to see red snapper coming into the picture in the back and 24 

other reef fish that we see and the question is -- The lasers 25 

are hitting it.  Again, the lasers are four inches apart. 26 

 27 

The good thing about using an ROV as opposed to the fixed camera 28 

arrays is that essentially we can drop the ROV and get our fixed 29 

position.  We can see it in real time and then we can fly around 30 

and get more size frequency information.  It’s all dependent on 31 

where the lasers are hitting. 32 

 33 

What we saw was obviously we saw the red grouper and we saw red 34 

snapper, gray triggerfish, and vermilion snapper.  All we caught 35 

was red snapper.  Obviously here you’re seeing a lot of tomtate 36 

at first.  Again, that’s kind of a typical smaller structure off 37 

of Alabama.  There’s lots of fish, lots of red snapper. 38 

 39 

What we get from that, obviously, is we have red snapper, gray 40 

triggerfish, vermilion, and, again, all we’re getting is red 41 

snapper on the vertical longline and so we’re very much 42 

interested in whether this is because red snapper are more 43 

aggressive and this is a behavioral thing or if it’s a hook size 44 

issue.  We don’t think it’s a hook size issue.  We think we had 45 

enough hook sizes and different baits down there. 46 

 47 

In particular, this is a concern for gag grouper and we actually 48 
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have a MARFIN that’s directed at this issue and essentially, the 1 

question is -- In these two graphs, what they’re showing you is 2 

this is NMFS video datasets from their fisheries-independent 3 

data and they go up to 2007 and 2008.  This is 1995 to 1997. 4 

 5 

What you see here is this is gag grouper from the video surveys 6 

and you see a decreasing trend in gag grouper up to 2007 and 7 

2008 and you see an increasing trend in red snapper and so the 8 

question is, and it’s been brought up by a lot of fishermen, is 9 

are the gag there and essentially the red snapper are 10 

outcompeting them for the hooks. 11 

 12 

Right now, our crew is vertical longline sampling as we speak, 13 

from here to Florida, looking at this question and the idea is 14 

if you remove the red snapper, if the red snapper are more 15 

aggressive, the gag will still be there and you essentially are 16 

just harvesting the red snapper and are leaving the gag. 17 

 18 

Obviously the ROV will tell us if this is the case and so a lot 19 

of the comparisons we can make and a lot of the species 20 

interactions that we need for ecosystem-based management can be 21 

resolved by using these multiple gears. 22 

 23 

This is going to show you the results of using multiple gears.  24 

This one is a little dark, but what you’ll see in a second is 25 

obviously those are red snapper.  They can’t see in the red, 26 

apparently, and so the lasers don’t bother them. 27 

 28 

This is a two-pyramid structure and he’s already done his thing 29 

and then he saw something swimming on the video and so he’s 30 

going to go back there to try to get a length estimate for that 31 

gag.  He got the length estimate for the gag and so what we saw 32 

on the video was red snapper and gag grouper and what we caught 33 

on the vertical longline was red snapper, red porgy, and then 34 

yellowedge grouper, which we did not see on the video.  We also 35 

didn’t see any red porgy and we think these are off reef fishes 36 

that are coming off or at least have greater excursions. 37 

 38 

On the bottom longline, we get red snapper and we get the gag.  39 

In fact, we got that specific gag that we saw.  Everybody was 40 

there at the exact same time and in fact, the length works out 41 

and that is that gag that we have. 42 

 43 

Clearly we have selectivity and we have behavior issues.  44 

Essentially all of these datasets can be combined to resolve 45 

some of these issues and at its heart is a randomized backbone, 46 

which we think is important. 47 

 48 
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Amberjack, we obviously saw that there is no current fisheries-1 

independent data for amberjack.  This is the ROV data footage 2 

from a reef.  There’s lots of amberjack.  Obviously this is just 3 

one sample site and we’re not meaning anything about the current 4 

status of amberjack.  What I’m trying to show you here is the 5 

fact that, again, on the vertical longline and I can’t remember, 6 

but I think we did collect a couple on the bottom longline and 7 

we didn’t show it here. 8 

 9 

We see essentially no amberjack and so hopefully you see why we 10 

need to use multiple gears.  The fact that we can do this in a 11 

relatively cost effective manner -- I think it works out to be 12 

about $8,000 a grid to do, which isn’t a trivial amount of 13 

money, but considering side scanning and all of the vertical 14 

longline and bottom longline, that is a relatively modest amount 15 

of money, although I do have to raise it every year. 16 

 17 

We have funding for another two years for this project through a 18 

combination of the state, the SEAMAP program, as well as some 19 

NMFS funds. 20 

 21 

What we want to point out is that you can integrate these 22 

sampling devices and the fact that synoptically doing this, you 23 

can get a lot of information.  You have to include, obviously, 24 

structured habitat into the system.  To do that, you need 25 

accurate habitat maps.  Side scan technology, multibeam 26 

technology, has come a long way.  You can get that type of 27 

information. 28 

 29 

Structured habitats have higher CPUE than unstructured, but 30 

obviously we won’t get a Science or Nature publication out of 31 

that one, but it’s important to emphasize.   32 

 33 

Multiple gears must be used synoptically to get the most and 34 

here, sometimes, like on the gag, we were there essentially all 35 

in sequence and most times we’re there within the same week 36 

timeframe.  Video alone is not sufficient.  The age composition 37 

data, we must collect fish to get that true age composition.  38 

With that, Dr. Shipp, I will turn it over to you. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Sean.  Questions for Dr. Powers? 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  Actually, I’ve got several, but thank you very 43 

much.  It was very interesting.  Pre and post-Deepwater Horizon, 44 

any measurable differences in any of your work? 45 

 46 

DR. POWERS:  Most of our indices, for example the longline for 47 

sharks, for example, went up a lot.  We were seeing 200 or 300 48 
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percent increases in tiger sharks just before and after. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  Following Deepwater Horizon? 3 

 4 

DR. POWERS:  Following Deepwater Horizon and longline, I should 5 

mention, we have back to 2005 and so we’ve been doing longline 6 

for a while and so we have a long dataset on that.  The vertical 7 

longline we just have before and after within the year.   8 

 9 

We don’t have the historic cases and we did not see an increase 10 

in red snapper, but we didn’t see a decrease either.  We saw 11 

relatively no change, which was a bit surprising in that you 12 

didn’t have fishing activity and we thought that you would still 13 

see more and more recruitment to the reefs. 14 

 15 

The trawl surveys, for the most part, haven’t shown any 16 

difference between the small individuals last year and the small 17 

individuals this year.  The caveat with that is really we start 18 

picking them up in high concentrations in the June and July 19 

trawl samples and not in the spring trawl samples, but we saw 20 

general increases for a lot of fish, both non-targeted and 21 

targeted, but for the red snapper, grouper, amberjack, we really 22 

didn’t see much of a decrease. 23 

 24 

DR. ABELE:  I have two questions.  One, do you think you got 25 

more sharks because they moved from offshore into shallower 26 

water? 27 

 28 

DR. POWERS:  That’s the debate we have right now within our 29 

group.  The tiger shark, the increase was all small.  Most of 30 

the sharks were small that you get on the longline.  The tiger 31 

shark increase was all relatively small sharks and so that could 32 

be just essentially they were being caught as bycatch and we 33 

don’t have the mortality. 34 

 35 

The one that interests us the most is the sandbar sharks.  We 36 

did have a lot higher catches on those.  That’s a prohibited 37 

species, although whether anglers are good enough to identify 38 

them or not, but that’s one that we think actually moved.  We 39 

did see some concentration of sharks moving over to our area is 40 

we think what’s driving that, plus higher juvenile survival. 41 

 42 

Again, some of those shark numbers were 300 or 400 percent.  We 43 

also saw it in the small coastal sharks, the sharpnose.  There 44 

were more modest increases, but essentially increases, which, 45 

again, is not surprising when you cease fishing activity. 46 

 47 

DR. ABELE:  I don’t know how bottom longline and vertical 48 
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longline work.  What is the difference and why do you think the 1 

species composition difference? 2 

 3 

DR. POWERS:  I’m sorry and I should have explained that a little 4 

better.  Vertical longline fishes essentially right off the 5 

bottom, about two meters is our lowest hook, up to twenty 6 

meters.  The bottom longline is actually all on the bottom.  7 

Now, the gangions float up a little bit and you’re probably 8 

fishing the upper two meters of water. 9 

 10 

Essentially, we have higher catches on the vertical longline, 11 

essentially because if you just work it out, those are just 12 

five-minute sets and so you actually have more hooks per hour in 13 

the water than on the bottom longline. 14 

 15 

Secondly, you’re right next to the reef or right next to the 16 

structure that’s there.  The bottom longline is spread over a 17 

whole mile and so it’s a hundred hooks spread out over a whole 18 

mile. 19 

 20 

MR. ANSON:  Thank you, Dr. Powers, for the presentation.  Just a 21 

point of clarification.  On the deeper zones, greater than 180 22 

feet, as I recall, where you had some natural bottom features, 23 

did you avoid those or did you include those in the sampling 24 

area if it had some artificial structure nearby? 25 

 26 

DR. POWERS:  In Alabama, whenever we have natural structure in 27 

it, we include it in the grid and we also include artificial 28 

whenever we have it.  Actually, I thought that we would always 29 

have some artificial reef, but the last one actually showed us a 30 

large ridge of natural structure at about seventy meters that 31 

wasn’t on the charts and then there was no artificial structure. 32 

 33 

We always sample artificial and we always sample natural when we 34 

have it, because we want that comparison, obviously, and when we 35 

sampled the natural reef, we did catch a lot more scamp and 36 

things like that.  How much of that is depth versus habitat 37 

related, we’ll see, but the thing is that there’s essentially no 38 

secrets once we have side scan.  We have everybody’s secret reef 39 

spot.  It’s all confidential though. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anybody else?  Thank you, Sean.  That was 42 

excellent, excellent.  The next presentation is by Mr. Baker. 43 

 44 

OIL SPILL RECOVERY IN THE GULF OF MEXICO PRESENTATION 45 

 46 

MR. TROY BAKER:  Good morning, everybody.  My name is Troy Baker 47 

and I’m with the NOAA Assessment and Restoration Division.  I am 48 
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one of the folks that is working on the natural resource damage 1 

assessment for the BP oil spill.  I was invited here to talk a 2 

little bit about where we are in the process, where we are 3 

specifically in terms of the science and our activities, and how 4 

we’re inviting public comment currently and into the future. 5 

 6 

I want to also mention that I’m based in Baton Rouge and I’m 7 

working collaboratively with all the states across the region.  8 

I’m a member of the trustee council that is providing a regional 9 

oversight on the legal case against BP and will ultimately help 10 

decide, in conjunction with the public, how restoration funds 11 

resulting from the settlement with BP will be distributed. 12 

 13 

Today, I wanted to just talk a little bit about where we are, as 14 

I said, talk about our status for the public participation, and 15 

invite your questions on how we can be beneficial to this group 16 

in any way. 17 

 18 

Our goal in this legal framework under the Oil Pollution Act is 19 

to compensate the public for all of the natural resource 20 

injuries and human use injuries that have occurred as a result 21 

of the spill from the responsible parties. 22 

 23 

We are undertaking a series of studies to assess those injuries, 24 

with the goal of establishing a number in terms of a restoration 25 

equivalency, and then we will be preparing a restoration plan 26 

and bringing that to the public for their review and comment. 27 

 28 

I know that there’s a lot of science going on associated with 29 

assessing the injuries to the spill.  Much of it is marine 30 

focused and would be of interest to this group.  However, there 31 

is interplay with the fact that we are building a legal case 32 

against BP. 33 

 34 

As we go through, I can talk a little bit about what things 35 

we’ve released to the public and what things that we are just 36 

not there yet in terms of our quality assurance and quality 37 

control and then there are some other aspects of our case that 38 

we will keep a close hold on, because it reflects on how we 39 

would prepare a case against the responsible parties. 40 

 41 

In a nutshell, we’re preparing a case that is relied upon, from 42 

a scientific perspective, for causation.  Correlation is not 43 

good enough if we’re going to go into a court of law and try to 44 

defend the measurable injuries from the pre-spill condition that 45 

we’ve seen out in the Gulf of Mexico. 46 

 47 

On the left side of the chart here, this is just a quick 48 



82 

 

schematic to show that we need good information on the release, 1 

which includes all of the components of the oil and it includes 2 

everything that was going on subsurface, as well as all of the 3 

response activities. 4 

 5 

We need really good information about how oil moved through the 6 

Gulf of Mexico to the shorelines and so we need quantity, what 7 

the chemical characteristics of the contaminants were, including 8 

dispersants.   9 

 10 

We need really good information to the receptors in the resource 11 

and so what animals and habitats are getting exposed to the oil 12 

and dispersants or other compounds and how can we tease out 13 

those effects from other naturally-occurring effects?  14 

Ultimately, we’re trying to have a cause-and-effect-based 15 

relationship to injury as we go through our process. 16 

 17 

On the right side of the framework here is just basically a 18 

three-step schematic of our natural resource damage assessment, 19 

or NRDA, process.  We go out once a release happens and we 20 

collect data, as much as we can, while, in this case, oil was in 21 

the environment, because we want to be able to get good 22 

information that allows us to draw the link between the release 23 

and the effect. 24 

 25 

Essentially, we’re almost a year after the incident and we are 26 

almost at the tail-end of this phase in terms of collecting 27 

information in the environment where oil is present.  Oil is 28 

still out there, but it’s in a very much smaller area than it 29 

used to be, of course. 30 

 31 

However, the effects on those resources in some cases are 32 

unknown and may be more longer term and so we are undertaking 33 

studies to address that aspect as well. 34 

 35 

The second phase of the process is restoration planning and part 36 

of the reason why I’m here today is because I wanted to let you 37 

know where we are in this process and essentially we’re trying 38 

to develop a restoration plan that in terms of restoration and 39 

implementing it is equivalent to the injuries across the Gulf 40 

Coast, across the entire Gulf of Mexico, whether it’s deep-sea 41 

communities to injuries to shorelines. 42 

 43 

All of our field studies and our data evaluations, modeling, and 44 

injury quantification, all of that goes into how we would 45 

develop a restoration plan and ultimately determine the 46 

magnitude of that plan and then finally, the most obvious, is 47 

when are we going to get to the point when we restore the 48 
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environment and implement restoration with settlement funds from 1 

the responsible parties? 2 

 3 

The group that is assisting in this effort is a regional group 4 

composed of all five states from Texas to Florida.  The 5 

Department of Commerce is involved through NOAA and I’m on the 6 

representatives to the trustee council. 7 

 8 

The Department of Interior is also involved, as well as many of 9 

their bureaus, and the Department of Defense with the Navy is 10 

involved, because their habitats at the NAS Pensacola were oiled 11 

and so they have been also attending our process. 12 

 13 

Anybody can be a trustee if they’re designated by the governor 14 

or by the President at the federal level and so trustees may 15 

include other federal agencies or tribes.  It can be quite a few 16 

trustees, especially with an event on this regional scale. 17 

 18 

Our goal here is to work cooperatively to really determine the 19 

magnitude and the extent of the injury compared to what the pre-20 

spill condition was.  That’s our charge under the law and we 21 

want to fully restore the public for those injuries. 22 

 23 

I wanted to have you all, if you don’t know anything about 24 

natural resource damage assessment, to walk away with three 25 

important things with our process.  One is that we are a 26 

restoration-focused process.  We’re not an assessment-focused 27 

process.  We’re working on the science with the endpoint in mind 28 

in terms of making the public whole. 29 

 30 

We’re a cooperative process among the regional set of agencies 31 

that are involved.  It does not mean that we are cooperative 32 

with the responsible parties, although in some cases we do work 33 

together to maximize resources and in some cases, it is 34 

beneficial. 35 

 36 

However, the important thing in our framework is that the 37 

trustees have a common vision for how we are pursuing the 38 

thematic elements of restoration as we move forward, so that we 39 

all are reaching a common milestone in the future. 40 

 41 

The third facet here is that NRDA is a legal process.  Under the 42 

Oil Pollution Act, we are bringing a claim, potentially, against 43 

the responsible parties, of which BP is one of them, into court 44 

and we will have to support that claim and our assertions with 45 

really high quality science. 46 

 47 

The other factor here is that the polluter is paying for the 48 
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assessment and the restoration activities of not only NOAA, but 1 

of the rest of the trustees as well through our process and 2 

they’re doing that in a way that’s not where they have their 3 

hands in.  They’re doing that in a way of the trustees do what’s 4 

necessary.  We develop the science and then we submit cost 5 

packages to the responsible parties and so I want to make that 6 

point really clear. 7 

 8 

I could talk all day about the science on this assessment and 9 

that is really, for me as a biologist, that’s the most 10 

interesting piece, but today, I’m going to provide short shrift 11 

of it and instead, maybe defer questions to the Q&A if we have 12 

time.  I would welcome the opportunity to talk offline with any 13 

of you about the science that we are undertaking. 14 

 15 

Essentially, the Gulf of Mexico, all of the Gulf of Mexico, has 16 

been affected and so we are undertaking more than sixty study 17 

plans across the Gulf for a variety of resources, including 18 

waters and sediments, fish tissue, deep-sea communities, 19 

anywhere from the well head and offshore in the blue water all 20 

the way to the shore and to terrestrial species.  The trustees 21 

are undertaking these studies. 22 

 23 

Our work also includes the potential negative impacts from the 24 

response.  For example, beaches have been cleaned dramatically 25 

using mechanized equipment and that may have affected habitat.  26 

We are undertaking studies to look at that to make sure that the 27 

public is fully compensated for any of the associated injuries 28 

that happened because of the spill. 29 

 30 

This is not going to show up well in this room, but this really 31 

just reiterates the points that we’re undertaking studies in a 32 

lot of different resource areas and with this group, I think 33 

it’s important to note a couple of things. 34 

 35 

Deep-sea communities, we have plankton studies going on that are 36 

correlated with some of the SEAMAP stations.  In some cases, 37 

we’ve expanded on SEAMAP stations to try to incorporate our data 38 

into these longer-term datasets. 39 

 40 

We’re looking at turtles and marine mammals, of course, and the 41 

other endangered species and there’s just a wide variety of work 42 

that I can describe in more detail during Q&A or offline that 43 

we’re undertaking throughout the Gulf of Mexico. 44 

 45 

Where we are in the process, we’ve tried to distill it down to 46 

nine steps and we’re really at the end of step four here.  We 47 

had a series of ten public meetings across the Gulf and we have 48 
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an open public comment period until May 18 on our -- Basically, 1 

we’re inviting public comment on anything that’s going on in 2 

terms of the assessment, but also if there are ideas about how 3 

we should be thinking about restoration or compensating the 4 

public for the injuries that have occurred, we are taking all of 5 

those ideas, whether they are specific or whether they are 6 

thematic. 7 

 8 

We’re taking those ideas into our process under the legal 9 

framework of a programmatic environmental impact assessment, a 10 

PEIS.  I wanted to let this group know that May 18 is kind of 11 

our formal deadline for the PEIS comments and we welcome 12 

comments on how we should be approaching, both thematically or 13 

specifically, the restoration of our Gulf coast. 14 

 15 

Where we are going to go in the future is that at the end of 16 

this year, we will have a formal document, a formal PEIS, that 17 

lays out in more detail what the trustee agencies feel needs to 18 

be done and that document will be a precursor to a very specific 19 

restoration plan that will be paired with settlement dollars. 20 

 21 

At the end of the day, we will have a final restoration plan, 22 

after it’s been vetted through the public, and we will implement 23 

the projects. 24 

 25 

Public scoping is public scoping.  All ideas are on the table at 26 

this point and we are interested in hearing from a wide variety 27 

of folks about what we should be thinking about in terms of 28 

restoring our Gulf coast and it’s not just the ecology here.  I 29 

want to make a point that part of our work, and a very important 30 

part of our work, is establishing human use injuries. 31 

 32 

All of the recreational aspects of the Gulf that was diminished 33 

because of the spill, we are evaluating that with economists and 34 

scientists and attorneys to put a price tag on that total 35 

recreational loss and that can be wildlife viewing, that could 36 

be fishing, use of the beaches.   37 

 38 

That can take many forms and so primarily the types of studies 39 

that we’re doing is we’re using existing datasets before the 40 

spill and comparing the information post-spill and then there 41 

will be some kind of value associated with a trip. 42 

 43 

Also, there are standardized surveys, both from the air and on 44 

the ground, that are being undertaking across the region for a 45 

variety of recreational activities and so the question is what 46 

restoration should we do that’s equivalent to all of the 47 

injuries? 48 
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 1 

Just a few things up here that I put up just to put some 2 

examples.  I want to emphasize to this group and to maybe some 3 

of your constituencies or people that you talk to that 4 

everything is on the table right now.  There’s been no choices 5 

made about what type of restoration at the end of this process 6 

needs to happen.  We’re very much in a scoping phase and so we 7 

want to hear your ideas. 8 

 9 

I’m not going to spend a lot of time on this, because this is 10 

just describing the programmatic environmental impact statement 11 

as a document.  The important thing here is that this is the way 12 

that we’re going to organize feedback from the entire Gulf of 13 

Mexico region and provide a mechanism for formal public 14 

involvement, but there’s always ways to have informal and 15 

offline involvement as well and we welcome that. 16 

 17 

Like everybody else, we do have our website and it describes our 18 

process in more detail, but what I really want to point out is 19 

that all of our scientific study plans are online at this 20 

address, gulfspillrestoration.noaa.gov, and that can be 21 

important for many reasons, because all of you are involved in 22 

the science of the Gulf of Mexico and you may be able to see 23 

areas where there may be overlap or that you may be interested 24 

in and we can foster discussion offline. 25 

 26 

I encourage you to go there if you haven’t and there’s a nice 27 

tabular display that you can sort by resource category of all 28 

the study plans. 29 

 30 

Data, everybody is always asking about data.  We have so much 31 

data that we can’t even process it all right now, because we 32 

have so much work going on in the Gulf.  We have over 30,000 33 

environmental samples and over sixty studies going 34 

simultaneously and we only have several chemical labs that are 35 

processing these samples, because they have to be set up in a 36 

certain way and monitored because we’re creating a court case. 37 

 38 

There’s a little bit of a backlog in terms of getting sample 39 

analysis out, but once the sample analysis gets out and once the 40 

third party validation occurs, we’re putting all that 41 

information online and making it available to the public. 42 

 43 

Of course, because we are in a legal case, we’re going to shy 44 

away from making conclusions or interpretations of that data for 45 

a little while longer, but we think it’s important to get as 46 

much data out as possible, as soon as possible, so that people 47 

can start to look at it. 48 
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 1 

This is just an example of the type of screen that you would see 2 

if you were to go in and look for our study plans and it’s not 3 

showing up well here and so I’m not going to spend a lot of time 4 

on it. 5 

 6 

The other source for information that you may be interested in 7 

or your constituencies may be interested in is geoplatform.gov.  8 

It is basically a server that presents data spatially and 9 

there’s a lot of layers, data layers, from the response that may 10 

be of interest, oiled shorelines, where they’ve collected marine 11 

mammals.   12 

 13 

The amount of data is really extensive and so I don’t want to go 14 

into it all here, but I wanted to point you to this place if you 15 

are looking for information about the spill, specifically from 16 

the response, which most, if not all, of the response data has 17 

been made publicly available and this is the place to go.  Thank 18 

you for your time. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you very much.  Are there questions? 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Troy.  Assessments of this type take a 23 

great deal of time, as you and many of us are very well aware, 24 

but yet your schedule seems very ambitious to be providing a 25 

report, a final document or whatever you want to call it.  I 26 

think you were on Step 4 and you have other steps and I assume 27 

you’re on schedule. 28 

 29 

The group completes their assessment within that schedule, which 30 

I think is a year or two, a couple of years, off and the 31 

responsible parties or party agrees that this is a good number 32 

and this is what we put in, how will long-term future damages, 33 

if any, come into play? 34 

 35 

MR. BAKER:  Thanks for raising the issue of schedule.  This, of 36 

course, is the biggest pollution incident that we’ve ever had 37 

and because of that, we’ve had to work -- Because of the public 38 

interest and the visibility and all of the normal things that 39 

come with a huge incident of national significance, we’ve had to 40 

work in parallel in our process. 41 

 42 

Typically, the assessment occurs first and then there’s a 43 

handoff that occurs to the restoration folks after the 44 

assessment is known.  In this case, it’s so vital to implement 45 

restoration as soon as possible in the Gulf coast while 46 

balancing the need for that information from the assessment that 47 

may be longer term. 48 
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 1 

The way that we’re approaching that is we’re tacking the problem 2 

in parallel.  We’re performing the assessment with litigation-3 

quality science as quick as we can and doing the appropriate 4 

things and then simultaneously, we’re starting the public 5 

process, so that what we don’t have happen is we don’t get to 6 

the end of the assessment, which may be multi-year, and then say 7 

now we’re going to restore.  We don’t want to do that. 8 

 9 

We want to start inviting comments from the public about how to 10 

restore the Gulf, because many of us know what types of injuries 11 

have happened.  We know that our shorelines have been oiled and 12 

we know that we’re seeing increased numbers of strandings, 13 

whether it’s from the oil or not. 14 

 15 

We know that resources have been affected by the enormous volume 16 

of oil that’s been in our Gulf and so we want to start that 17 

common sense process of getting the restoration types on the 18 

table and then as the science matures from the assessment, we 19 

can drill down into the more specific projects that are 20 

appropriate.  I hope that answers your question. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Harlon, do you want to go ahead? 23 

 24 

MR. PEARCE:  Real quick, can we put my motion up on the board, 25 

please?  While she’s doing that, really quickly, the council has 26 

the opportunity to recommend general restoration strategies 27 

through this process and so I would like to start trying to do 28 

that. 29 

 30 

Corky mentioned we need long-term projects and we need to look 31 

into the future for everything we’re doing right now.  With 32 

that, I would like to try to pass this motion and I’ll read it 33 

to you.  The motion is that council staff compose a comment 34 

letter to NOAA for purposes of the Natural Resource Damage 35 

Assessment Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement scoping 36 

process, recommending that the following BP spill restoration 37 

themes or strategies for marine fisheries be included in the 38 

PEIS: 1)a long-term, for example twenty years, Gulf of Mexico 39 

fisheries data collection and ecosystem monitoring program to 40 

help improve management of fisheries and for detecting delayed 41 

changes in abundance or condition of fishery resources.  We all 42 

know we need better data and we need it into the future.  43 

2)meaningful financial investments in fisheries science and 44 

decision support tools to aid management; 3)meaningful financial 45 

investments in developing and promoting the use of more 46 

selective and habitat-friendly fishing gear to benefit 47 

fisheries; 4)compensating the public for lost fishing time due 48 
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to the 2010 federal oil-related closures by investing in data 1 

collection tools or new management systems that would help 2 

manage the fishery better for all user groups; and 5)restore and 3 

monitor essential fish habitat in the Gulf of Mexico to improve 4 

management. 5 

 6 

All these things will help us move our fishery in the future and 7 

through the NRDA process, we’re hoping that they can pay 8 

attention to that so that we as a council can do a better job 9 

for everyone in the country with the fisheries we have here and 10 

our national treasure, the Gulf of Mexico. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ll need a second. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  Second. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion has been moved and seconded.  Any 17 

discussion? 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  Just a comment.  I don’t know if BP will be the 20 

sole responsible party and so BP/Deepwater Horizon.  There were 21 

other countries and so a little bit more generic.  Who knows 22 

what the liabilities are going to be against each company.  23 

That’s just a comment and we might want to in some kind of way 24 

modify “BP” to “Deepwater Horizon spill” because there are at 25 

least three or four companies involved. 26 

 27 

MR. PEARCE:  Can we change “BP” to the “Deepwater Horizon 28 

spill”? 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The seconder will accept that friendly 31 

amendment.  Any further discussion on the motion?  Hearing none, 32 

all in favor of the motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  The 33 

motion carries.  Thank you.  Steve, did you have a comment? 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Just a brief comment.  Thanks, 36 

Troy, for coming and giving that talk.  As you may now, Ryan 37 

Rindone has been hired through efforts of Bonnie and Larry 38 

Simpson and specifically to aid SEDAR efforts relative to the 39 

oil spill. 40 

 41 

There’s two tasks specifically this year we want to tackle 42 

besides the assessments and that is what data are available in 43 

fisheries related to the spill that we can use in that SEDAR 44 

assessment and the second thing is after we’ve figured out what 45 

data are available, how do we actually put it into the 46 

assessment? 47 

 48 
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Ryan will be contacting you and your office and hopefully we’ll 1 

start that process going.  I assume we’re going to have some 2 

kind of a get together, at least on the data part, in the next 3 

few months.  Thanks. 4 

 5 

MR. BAKER:  Great.  Thanks, Steve. 6 

 7 

MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you, Troy.  That was a great presentation 8 

and you’re doing good work and it’s hard.  Would you see this 9 

guy right here and give your contact information to him?  My 10 

question is, has the total release of oil in barrels been 11 

finalized and determined as of yet? 12 

 13 

MR. BAKER:  Not for the legal case.  What I’ve seen is there’s a 14 

convergence of a range of discharge estimates that came out of 15 

the joint working group at the federal level.  I know there were 16 

many people involved in that joint federal group that was 17 

enabled by the President and others after the spill. 18 

 19 

We don’t have a final number for the case yet, but I have seen 20 

various depictions of how the release volume has changed over 21 

time, as more information has become known, and I am starting to 22 

see a convergence around some of those latest estimates.  Sorry 23 

for the vague answer. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any other questions or comments for 26 

Troy?  Thank you very much.  That was excellent.  We had two 27 

great presentations this morning.  I think we need to carry on.  28 

Again, we’re under a time constraint and so if you need to take 29 

a break, make it a private one. 30 

 31 

I would like your indulgence on how to proceed.  Yesterday, we 32 

did not quite finish the Reef Fish Committee meeting.  My 33 

preference would be to continue with that, but do it in full 34 

council.  I know that Nick has to head back to Tallahassee and 35 

he has some comments that he would like to make.   36 

 37 

If there are no objections to that, I’m going to turn it back 38 

over to Mr. Gill to finish the committee action, but we will 39 

consider it full council action, since we’re all here. 40 

 41 

CONTINUATION OF REEF FISH COMMITTEE BUSINESS 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Relative to the Reef Fish 44 

Management Committee agenda, we were in the tail-end of Reef 45 

Fish Limited Access Privilege Program Advisory Panel Report and 46 

we had some questions.  However, Ms. Williams has stepped out 47 

and so I guess we’ll proceed without that. 48 
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 1 

The next item on the agenda was Item VIII, Other Business.  The 2 

first item under that topic was Red Snapper Underage Discussion 3 

and Mr. Teehan. 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  Coming up on the first anniversary of the Deepwater 6 

Horizon Oil explosion and the associated oil spill, which 7 

resulted in tens of thousands of square miles of closures in 8 

both federal and state waters fisheries in the Gulf -- This 9 

included a closure in Florida state waters of approximately 230 10 

square miles off of Pensacola. 11 

 12 

These closures affected the recreational red snapper season in 13 

many areas of the Gulf and one consequence of these closures was 14 

that the 2010 recreational red snapper quota of 3.4 million 15 

pounds was not met. 16 

 17 

Preliminary estimates indicate that approximately 2.1 million 18 

pounds were caught by the recreational fishing community.  19 

Although these estimates are still preliminary, it would 20 

indicate that approximately one-million pounds of red snapper 21 

quota were not caught by the recreational sector in 2010. 22 

 23 

Florida realizes that the Gulf red snapper fishery is under a 24 

rebuilding plan and annual quotas to both commercial and 25 

recreational harvesters are strictly calculated.  Additionally, 26 

we understand that the fishery is rebuilt according to 27 

scientific model projections and we support this program. 28 

 29 

As it stands currently, there are no provisions within the 30 

rebuilding plan to carry over quota shortfalls from one season 31 

to the next, as this would require the SSC to readdress the red 32 

snapper ABC. 33 

 34 

However, in this instance, Florida feels that the addition of 35 

the 2011 season of the one-million-plus pounds that were not 36 

caught recreationally in 2010 would likely increase the length 37 

of that season or allow for a supplemental fall season, along 38 

with the economic benefits to the Gulf region. 39 

 40 

At this point, and I’m not aware of any others, but there may 41 

be, the Governor of Florida Scott, Governor of Texas Perry, and 42 

Governor of Louisiana Jindal have all submitted official letters 43 

requesting that the council consider carrying over this one-44 

million pounds. 45 

 46 

With that in mind, I would like to make a motion if I might, Mr. 47 

Chairman.  That would be to request that the SSC rerun the red 48 
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snapper model using 2009 landings data at their May 2011 meeting 1 

and that the results of the analysis be presented to the council 2 

no later than the June 2011 council meeting. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The 2009 data or 2010? 5 

 6 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m sorry.  2010.  I apologize and thank you, Dr. 7 

Shipp. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  We have multiple seconds.  10 

Is there discussion? 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Teehan, I think I understand the intent, but 13 

isn’t it more precise to ask the Science Center to rerun the 14 

model and provide it to the meeting? 15 

 16 

MR. TEEHAN:  For the Science Center to rerun the model and 17 

provide it to the SSC? 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  Correct. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes, I presume that’s correct and I’m certainly 22 

open to editing on this motion.  I think the intent is fairly 23 

clear. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think some editing is in order.  When the 26 

assessment was done and the projections were run -- The 27 

assessment had landings through 2008 and I believe the 28 

projections used preliminary estimates for 2009, but when they 29 

do the rerun, they ought to use actual landings for 2009 and 30 

recall we had a very large overrun in 2009.  If you’re going to 31 

redo the projections, I think you’ve got to incorporate all of 32 

the landings information that you have and not just 2010. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bonnie, is it doable to rerun in time for the 35 

SSC meeting? 36 

 37 

DR. PONWITH:  Yes, I believe that’s doable. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I will ask Sean -- Sean, the SSC, do you have 40 

time on I think it’s your May meeting to address this issue? 41 

 42 

DR. POWERS:  Given that Steven and I haven’t finished the 43 

agenda, I assume we can make time for it.  I would add though 44 

that the SSC would probably need a little more clarity on the 45 

direction.  I assume that you want us to examine the rerun and 46 

also decide whether we want to give you a new ABC 47 

recommendation? 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My understanding is that yes, the new ABC 2 

recommendations and any impact it might have on projections for 3 

the next couple of years. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  You’re setting a precedent here I hope you 6 

realize and when we have an overrun next time, you’re going to 7 

have to go into your SSC and ask them to rerun the projections 8 

with the overrun and readjust it.  I think if you’re cherry 9 

picking only to do this in years when you have an underage, that 10 

doesn’t seem very straight up to me.  That’s one thing that I 11 

think you need to bear in mind. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we do and with the action we took on 14 

amberjack, that seems to be the direction in which we’re moving. 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  But we’ve never done that with red snapper and so 17 

we’re setting a new precedent here and you need to think about 18 

that historically we’ve had far more overruns than we’ve had 19 

underruns. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Roy, we understand that and this is a one-time 22 

event that’s associated with an oil spill that had disastrous 23 

results on the economy of the Gulf of Mexico and I hope you’re 24 

viewing this in that context. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  Okay.  We probably ought to talk about what we do 27 

in June and how this works.  Really we’re talking -- Because 28 

there’s no provision to carry an underage forward and so what 29 

we’re talking about is increasing the TAC this year and, of 30 

course, we can’t exceed the fishing level recommendation from 31 

the SSC and so that would be dependent upon them actually giving 32 

us a higher ABC. 33 

 34 

If they do give us a higher ABC, then the question is how do we 35 

procedurally do this?  I see a couple of complications.  One is 36 

if they give you a higher ABC, then the allocation is 51 percent 37 

commercial and 49 percent recreational. 38 

 39 

If they did give you a million pound higher TAC, 51 percent 40 

would go the commercial fishery and 49 percent to the 41 

recreational fishery, unless you establish some different 42 

allocation to handle it. 43 

 44 

I see two regulatory ways, because it would take a rulemaking to 45 

adjust the TAC.  One would be a framework action, which would 46 

have to go out for notice and comment and if you requested that 47 

at the June meeting, I suspect we could finalize something by 48 
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September or so, but it would be after the red snapper fishery 1 

had closed. 2 

 3 

I guess the other avenue would be an emergency rule, which would 4 

be faster.  The Office of General Counsel may have some thoughts 5 

on whether this constitutes an emergency or not and I’ll leave 6 

that up to them, but in an emergency rule, you could, I suppose, 7 

potentially wave notice and comment and have it moved more 8 

quickly, but under any circumstance, it’s doubtful to me that a 9 

rulemaking would occur before the summer fishery had probably 10 

closed. 11 

 12 

Also, if you did it through a framework, I don’t believe your 13 

framework allows you to adjust the allocation and so I think if 14 

you went through a framework, you would have to allocate it 15 

51/49.  I’ll let Shepherd comment, but I think under an 16 

emergency rule that you could establish a different allocation, 17 

I guess, for this. 18 

 19 

I think what we’re looking at here is the season will run its 20 

course and I’m guessing that we’re likely looking at a season 21 

that will be somewhere between forty-five days and fifty-three 22 

days, somewhere in that neighborhood, but there’s a lot of 23 

uncertainty in estimating the season, because I think there’s a 24 

fair amount of uncertainty about what the effort levels will be 25 

this year. 26 

 27 

Probably what we’re looking at is if we get a higher ABC and if 28 

we’re able to do this, we would be having some sort of a fall 29 

fishery, like we did last year, and we could look -- Probably by 30 

August, we could look back and get a better idea of what was 31 

actually caught during the summer season and then if we were 32 

able to raise the TAC, we could try to do that. 33 

 34 

There are probably lots of different ways you could handle this, 35 

but that’s just a thought along the lines of what we did next 36 

year, but we probably ought to think this through, because to 37 

make this happen, I think staff needs to have a pretty good idea 38 

of where we would go, so that once they see what the SSC did, 39 

they could make the preliminary steps to put together the 40 

regulatory vehicle for our review in June. 41 

 42 

Under any circumstance, we would need to move quickly and while 43 

I’m sure to everyone sitting at the table here this seems like a 44 

good idea, I suspect this will be a quite controversial action 45 

and I expect there will be people who will oppose this and so we 46 

need to be careful with it. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I appreciate those comments, Roy, and I concur.  1 

I think the key is going to be what comes out of the SSC and 2 

I’ll recognize others, but I want to recognize Sean first as a 3 

member representing the SSC. 4 

 5 

DR. POWERS:  A couple of comments.  Realize that there’s some 6 

danger with just doing things on a rerun.  What you’re talking 7 

about is just updating the projections and not updating the 8 

model and the SSC in the last -- We’ve been asked to do this now 9 

two times with gag and with red grouper. 10 

 11 

The SSC is expressing some reservations about doing this path.  12 

We understand this is an emergency situation and the council 13 

wants us to do it, but essentially the scientific uncertainty 14 

that we have to deal with is much greater because you’re not 15 

updating the indices of abundance and you’re not updating the 16 

age composition.  The only thing you’re updating is the 17 

landings. 18 

 19 

Steven also mentioned that we have a new control rule in place 20 

that was not in place when we gave the ABC recommendations for 21 

red snapper and so that will probably result in a little 22 

difference of opinion as well. 23 

 24 

I guess overall I want to echo the SSC’s concern that we’re 25 

afraid that we’re setting a precedent here and realize that when 26 

you ask for a rerun, because of the time constraints the 27 

analysts are under, it is just a rerun of the projections.  It’s 28 

not a rerun of the indices. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just going to say I’m not certain how much 31 

quota was left over, if there was any, but if there was for the 32 

commercial industry -- They were also affected by the oil and so 33 

I would ask, especially if the SSC is going to address the ABC 34 

in any fashion or form or whatever, because he talked about it 35 

going to the SSC. 36 

 37 

Then I would want the commercial -- You’ve got to look at all of 38 

it.  You can’t just look at a piece of the pie when you’re 39 

looking at the total stock. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  The motion is to rerun the projections using the 42 

actual landings and so that will be commercial landings and 43 

recreational landings and we’ll get an ABC.  Then, as I said, 44 

you guys are going to have to figure out how to allocate that 45 

ABC. 46 

 47 

It would normally go to 51 percent commercial and 49 percent 48 
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recreational.  If that’s the case, then the commercial fishery 1 

is going to get 51 percent of the fish the recreational fishery 2 

failed to catch.  Otherwise, you’ll have to establish some other 3 

kind of allocation for it and you’ll have to explain why you’re 4 

choosing that and how it’s fair and equitable and all of those 5 

kinds of things. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep, did you have -- 8 

 9 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To that point, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, to Shep, please, and then I’ll come back to 12 

you, Kay. 13 

 14 

MR. GRIMES:  I always end up playing this role, but I just 15 

wanted, in the interest of full disclosure, to discuss our 16 

options and I think the options for emergency rule -- That’s 17 

going to be an uphill battle. 18 

 19 

Basing it on the oil spill, we’ve already done emergency rules 20 

related to the oil spill.  It was over a year ago and I don’t 21 

really view that as a recent, unforeseen circumstance that’s 22 

driving the need for this regulatory action and so in the 23 

interest of full disclosure, I just wanted to get that out 24 

there. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The discussion earlier was Roy said that this 27 

council may decide, after this rerun, that you didn’t 28 

necessarily have to split it the 51/49 and you may want to just 29 

allocate whatever the difference is just to the recreational 30 

sector and how you would go about doing that. 31 

 32 

I would ask that, him making that comment, that our attorneys 33 

look further into Magnuson, because there are different rules 34 

that applies into how you allocate on a fishery that is 35 

overfished or undergoing overfishing.  That has been my 36 

understanding. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep is ready to respond. 39 

 40 

MR. GRIMES:  Actually, I wasn’t going to respond to that and I 41 

was going to address something else that I think the council 42 

should consider.  I just heard Dr. Powers mention the fact that 43 

when you got the prior or the existing total allowable catch or 44 

ABC recommendation out of the SSC that they were not applying 45 

the control rule that’s now in your Generic ACL Amendment that 46 

they have been applying and that should they apply that in this 47 

case, you might end up with a very different outcome. 48 
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 1 

I think you ought to have some discussion or certainly awareness 2 

of that.  It may end up being a case of you being very careful 3 

what you ask for. 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  A couple of questions.  Shep, I don’t think the 6 

control rule has been adopted yet, has it? 7 

 8 

MR. GRIMES:  It hasn’t been officially adopted, but they’ve 9 

applied it in every circumstance that we’ve addressed since it’s 10 

been developed and it’s clearly being used as guidance and the 11 

handwriting is on the wall that that’s the way we’re headed 12 

towards doing things. 13 

 14 

MR. TEEHAN:  But it still hasn’t been officially adopted and 15 

that was my point.  You addressed the emergency issue and the 16 

emergency rule that might be an uphill climb.  We would like to 17 

see this go as quickly as bureaucratically possible, especially 18 

in light of the discussions of a weekend fall scenario, maybe 19 

revolving around Labor Day or beginning in Labor Day, which is 20 

early September. 21 

 22 

The quickest possible method is preferable.  It was my 23 

understanding, and I’m not pitching one user group against 24 

another.  We certainly got up and defended the commercial gag 25 

grouper quota release for the interim rule and I’m not trying to 26 

pitch recreational against commercial in this particular red 27 

snapper issue either, but it’s my understanding that the 28 

commercials were still able to catch 96 percent of their quota 29 

last year.  I don’t know how that figures into the allocation 30 

issues that Roy brought up. 31 

 32 

DR. PONWITH:  Without making any comment on the merits of the 33 

decisions that will be made and the aftermath, what I would ask 34 

is that the wording of the motion be considered for modification 35 

and that would be to refine it to say rather than “rerun the red 36 

snapper model using 2010 landings data”, to say “to update the 37 

red snapper projections using 2009 and 2010 landings data” to 38 

present to the SSC, so that we’re sure we’re incorporating both 39 

the 2009, which had the overage, and the 2010, which had the 40 

underage, in there to reflect the best data. 41 

 42 

The other thing is I don’t remember what the overage was in 43 

2009, but I guess it’s a question to the council and that is 44 

when you go over a quota, there’s sort of this compound interest 45 

notion that you’re not only removing that fish, but you’re 46 

removing their reproductive potential from the projections. 47 

 48 
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I can’t project in my mind, but it’s the question of if the 1 

result of this analysis showed that you actually diminished your 2 

trajectory to rebuilding, to think about what those consequences 3 

would be as well. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bonnie, because that’s one of the possible 6 

outcomes.  We may get a lower ABC than current, but to Bill’s 7 

point was where I was going originally and, Shep, you mentioned 8 

that emergency rule might be in fact problematic and Bill 9 

expressed the desire that we want to do this as fast as 10 

possible. 11 

 12 

Well, from Roy’s previous conversation, that leaves us with a 13 

framework if we can’t do an emergency rule and could we talk a 14 

little bit about that timeline, given that it’s longer than 15 

emergency, as to where we get to and what timeframe, so we can 16 

see what the picture is at the endpoint? 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think it’s a big time difference.  With 19 

an emergency rule, you can waive, if NOAA General Counsel was in 20 

agreement, you could waive the comment period.  I believe under 21 

the framework that we could go down to fifteen days in terms of 22 

a comment period. 23 

 24 

It’s not that much difference in and of itself.  We still will 25 

have to do a NEPA document and an analysis and go through all 26 

that process.  The difference I see is your framework, and I’m 27 

pretty sure this is true, doesn’t allow you to adjust the 28 

allocation and so if you did a framework, it seems to me if you 29 

increase the TAC in a framework then you’re going to have to 30 

allocate it 51/49, whereas I think in an emergency rule you 31 

could potentially deviate from that if you had justification. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  So if the ruling from GC is no emergency rule, then 34 

we’re locked into the existing allocation?  Is that correct?  I 35 

guess that kind of determination is going to be integral to this 36 

conversation. 37 

 38 

MR. GRIMES:  First, I don’t like the characterization that it’s 39 

entirely up to GC, but GC will weigh in on it and the agency 40 

will make a decision and should that be that an emergency rule 41 

is not an option, then you must abide by what’s in the FMP now 42 

relative to allocation and to the framework process, which would 43 

involve the comment period. 44 

 45 

I don’t believe the framework addresses the thirty-day cooling-46 

off period, which is the thirty days after we publish a final 47 

rule.  I think Dr. Crabtree is absolutely correct that there’s 48 
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probably minimal difference between the speed with which you 1 

could implement an emergency rule and a framework.  It’s more a 2 

question of when the council can get together and request it and 3 

the agency can have the analysis prepared.  That’s really what 4 

will drive the bus on this. 5 

 6 

DR. ABELE:  I would like to call the question, since these are 7 

issues that really need to be discussed after the motion and 8 

after the information is available.  We don’t know what’s going 9 

to happen and we have a long agenda today. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  You do need to modify your motion to say using 12 

2009 and 2010 landings. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’ll leave it to Bill to accept a friendly 15 

amendment. 16 

 17 

MR. TEEHAN:  I will and I want to make sure before we call the 18 

question, which I’m in favor of, that we make sure that this 19 

motion is lock tight and everybody that’s involved in it is 20 

happy with what the intent of it is.  I’m looking at Sean and 21 

I’m looking at everybody. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would replace the word “model” with 24 

“projections”, because that’s what you’re rerunning, are the 25 

projections. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The word “update” and the word “rerun”, there’s 28 

a big difference there, it appears to me, and I don’t know what 29 

the intent is. 30 

 31 

MR. TEEHAN:  I think rerun is what we were asking for. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think rerun is what we want.  Let’s move on 34 

it.  We’ve got a lot to do.  Sean, one last comment. 35 

 36 

DR. POWERS:  The SSC generally considers what you’re asking for 37 

a rerun and not to confuse it with the update language that 38 

SEDAR has.  The second thing is that, again, you’re going to 39 

have to specify that you want a new ABC recommendation in that 40 

motion, if that is what you want. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re just going to modify the wording here and 43 

then we’re going to vote on it. 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You have a list, Mr. Chairman. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The question was called by the next person on 48 
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the list. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Did you vote on the question? 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re going to vote on calling the question as 5 

soon as we get the wording correct. 6 

 7 

MR. TEEHAN:  We just need to put “update the ABC” or “readdress 8 

the ABC”?  Sean, I want to make sure that the intent is -- 9 

 10 

DR. POWERS:  Provide an ABC. 11 

 12 

MR. TEEHAN:  And provide an ABC recommendation to the council.  13 

Instead of the “results of the analysis”, put the “SSC at their 14 

May 2011 meeting and provide an ABC to the council no later than 15 

June of 2011”.  Does that sound good? 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The issue is to call the question.  All of 18 

those in favor of calling the question signify by saying aye; 19 

opposed.  Okay.  The next is the motion itself.  All in favor of 20 

the motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion passes 21 

with one objection. 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to state my objection. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Please do. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  My objection is the fact that we do not -- We’re 28 

asking for something that could impact the commercial red 29 

snapper IFQ without knowing any type of consequences.  We are.  30 

Thank you. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Go ahead, Mr. Gill. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The next item under Other 35 

Business is the Red Snapper IFQ Transfer Eligibility that I 36 

requested and I don’t intend this to be very long, but we’ve had 37 

several discussions in the last several meetings relative to an 38 

item in the red snapper IFQ program and I’ll read it for 39 

clarification. 40 

 41 

It says: IFQ shares or allocation can only be transferred to 42 

commercial reef fish permit holders during the first five years 43 

of the IFQ program and all U.S. citizens and permanent resident 44 

aliens thereafter.  Eligible individuals must be persons who are 45 

U.S. citizens or permanent resident aliens. 46 

 47 

We’ve had some discussions and we’ve danced around it, but I 48 
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don’t have the sense that the council wants to either reaffirm 1 

that or change that.  We’ve kind of left it in no-no land and so 2 

my thought is that we go on the record and either reaffirm it or 3 

change it as the council wishes.  I’m not trying to drive this 4 

wagon one direction or the other, but I would like to see it 5 

definitively in black and white.  Phyllis, if you could put up 6 

my motion. 7 

 8 

I’ve got a motion to beg this question and if the answer is if 9 

we turn the motion down, then we’re reaffirming that we like the 10 

way it was set up in the program originally.  If we vote the 11 

motion up, then we’re changing it.   12 

 13 

With that, then I make the motion on the board, to recommend 14 

that the council change the red snapper IFQ program to 15 

indefinitely extend the requirement to have a commercial reef 16 

fish permit in order to hold IFQ shares or allocation. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second to the motion?  There is a 19 

second.  Is there discussion?  20 

 21 

MR. SAPP:  Bob, I’m not exactly clear what the repercussions of 22 

doing this would be.  Are you suggesting that we pull this 23 

portion out of the five-year IFQ process so that it’s no longer 24 

a part of the discussions we’re going to have as we go through 25 

that review? 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  No, that this expires on 1 January 2012, as is 28 

currently set up.  The agency has to make preparations to make 29 

sure that happens and there’s problems either way we go on this 30 

one.  All I’m trying to do is reaffirm that the council would 31 

either like this or would not like this so that they can make 32 

the appropriate preparations to be ready for January 1, 2012. 33 

 34 

My understanding is that this is the last time that we can do 35 

that and if we leave it, that’s fine.  I’m not there, but I just 36 

want us on the record to reaffirm that that’s where we want to 37 

be or we want to change it. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think the motion is quite correct though, 40 

because I don’t believe you have to have a reef fish permit now 41 

to hold IFQ shares.  You have to have a reef fish permit to 42 

acquire IFQ shares.  We have people now who own IFQ shares and 43 

don’t have reef fish permits.  It’s just you can’t buy it, I 44 

think, Shep. 45 

 46 

MR. GRIMES:  Mr. Gill, I apologize, because I know I worked with 47 

you on this, but Dr. Crabtree is correct that we do have people 48 
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who currently hold the IFQ shares that received an initial 1 

allocation.  The restriction is on transfer and so I guess in 2 

order to acquire IFQ shares -- 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  So I’ll modify the motion “to extend the requirement 5 

to acquire”. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  Then if I could follow up.  I guess what we’re 8 

saying, Bob, is if the council wants to do this, then we would 9 

begin work on a plan amendment to reinstate the requirement to 10 

have reef fish permits and timing-wise, that’s not going to be 11 

done prior to the end of this year and so the requirement would 12 

lapse and then be put back in place, it seems to me. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  That was not my understanding and if that’s the case, 15 

then I’ll withdraw the motion.  My understanding was that either 16 

way you could achieve this by 1 January and I was just trying to 17 

reaffirm that we did in fact want to do this. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t believe we could process a plan 20 

amendment.  We would have to go to scoping and then probably the 21 

earliest we could take final action would be, I would think, the 22 

October meeting and then it would take six months for the 23 

Secretary to implement it and so my guess is we would be well 24 

into next year before we could implement this. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  I’ll withdraw the motion. 27 

 28 

MR. GRIMES:  If I may, before the motion is withdrawn, 29 

understand that that would not be the end of the world.  If it 30 

lapsed, there would be some period of time in which you would 31 

have the potential for new IFQ shareholders to come into the 32 

system without permits, but we have that now and unless you 33 

expected some huge influx to come in as soon as this became an 34 

option, which I don’t think anybody reasonably expects, the fact 35 

that there was some delay in it wouldn’t necessarily be a big 36 

deal, in my opinion. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion has been withdrawn and so we do not 39 

have a motion on the board. 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to make a motion that we have the 42 

Science Center evaluate the grouper, the shallow-water grouper, 43 

that was left. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s out of order. 46 

 47 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That’s out of order?  Aren’t we under Reef Fish? 48 



103 

 

 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, we’re finished Reef Fish and we’re getting 2 

ready to go into -- My apologies.  Mr. Gill, you handle that. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll hold it if you want me to. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  We are still in Reef Fish.  We were in Other 9 

Business.  We had skipped over Item VII, which was the Reef Fish 10 

LAPP Advisory Panel Report, which was in discussion yesterday.  11 

Is there any other business relative to the Reef Fish Committee? 12 

 13 

MR. TEEHAN:  Roy, do we have any idea what the red snapper 14 

season is going to be this summer, so that we can start getting 15 

the word out? 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  We are doing those analyses now.  I don’t have a 18 

final date, but our intent is to put that closure date in the 19 

final rule that increases the TAC and hopefully have that out in 20 

the next two or three weeks. 21 

 22 

Based on the numbers I’ve seen so far, I would say most likely 23 

the season is going to be somewhere in the neighborhood of 24 

forty-five to fifty-five or fifty-four days. 25 

 26 

MR. TEEHAN:  We still have the June 1 opening, correct? 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, it will be June 1 until you amend the plan 29 

or change it. 30 

 31 

MR. RAY:  Are we going to go back to Item VII and finish that?  32 

I have an item I would like to bring up that would be more 33 

appropriate in Item VII if we’re going back there. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  We are going back there and that’s the last remaining 36 

item on the Reef Fish Management Committee agenda.  We were at 37 

discussing the Reef Fish Limited Access Privilege Program 38 

Advisory Panel Report yesterday and we had to adjourn due to 39 

timing and at that point, Ms. Williams had a motion she would 40 

like to make and so I’ll recognize Ms. Williams. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a couple of questions and I’m a little bit 43 

confused.  I saw where my motion was ruled out of order on the 44 

grouper and then Bob says that no, it wasn’t, because we were 45 

still in Reef Fish.  Where are we relative to my making that 46 

motion? 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  You didn’t bring it up under Other Business. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That’s because I was not in the room when you all 3 

started that and I apologize. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Right now we’re on the LAPP report and so a separate 6 

motion not pertaining to that is not in order and so I’ll 7 

recognize Mr. Pearce. 8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  I’m not on the committee and are we in full council 10 

or just committee now? 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  We’re in full council. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  We’re on the LAPP? 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Yes, that’s correct. 17 

 18 

MR. PEARCE:  I would like to make a motion about the LAPP.  As 19 

requested by the LAPP AP, the council asks the LAPP AP to design 20 

a voluntary headboat IFQ pilot program for red snapper and gag 21 

grouper.  That’s the motion. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Could you repeat it so that Phyllis could put it on 24 

the board, please? 25 

 26 

MR. PEARCE:  As requested by the LAPP AP, the council asks the 27 

LAPP AP to design a voluntary headboat IFQ pilot program for red 28 

snapper and gag grouper. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  Harlon, if I understand what you’re trying to put up 31 

on the board, you’re functionally -- We’ve already asked them to 32 

do that and so what you’re really doing is adding gag grouper to 33 

the headboat IFQ pilot program request previously made.  Is that 34 

not correct? 35 

 36 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Now, relative to this motion, Ed, were your comments 39 

relative to this motion?  Then go ahead, Corky. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Are we asking the LAPP to design this program?  Are 42 

they the appropriate ones to design it? 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  I think the motion needs to be reworded, because 45 

we’ve already asked them to provide a paper and consider the 46 

objectives and how it might work and all he’s effectively doing 47 

is adding gag grouper. 48 
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 1 

MR. PEARCE:  All we want to do is add gag grouper to that 2 

process. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Could you reword your motion to do so, sir? 5 

 6 

MR. PEARCE:  That the council ask the LAPP AP to add gag grouper 7 

to their voluntary headboat IFQ pilot program. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  Does that express it, Mr. Pearce? 10 

 11 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Did we have a second?  Do I hear a second for the 14 

motion? 15 

 16 

MR. ANSON:  I’ll second it for discussion. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Is there discussion? 19 

 20 

MR. ANSON:  During public testimony and during some of our 21 

conversations during the Reef Fish meeting the other day, I 22 

thought there was some desire to establish an ad hoc headboat 23 

IFQ advisory panel that was also requested by the LAPP AP to 24 

kind of segregate out that particular -- They have some 25 

different issues that are different from the makeup of the LAPP.  26 

I was wondering if Mr. Pearce would possibly accept a friendly 27 

amendment. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, definitely. 30 

 31 

MR. ANSON:  It would say that -- It would be a little bit 32 

different.  The council would establish an ad hoc headboat IFQ 33 

advisory panel to investigate the development of a program for 34 

red snapper and gag grouper IFQ pilot program. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  That’s friendly, Harlon, and you accept? 37 

 38 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s fine. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Very good.  Now, there’s a couple of implications of 41 

this modification.  One is that we’re taking this pilot study 42 

out of the LAPP ad hoc panel and secondly, as discussed by Dr. 43 

Crabtree yesterday, that we’re adding a considerable 44 

complication in timing into doing that.  I want to point that 45 

out.  Ed, you had your hand up to the motion? 46 

 47 

MR. SAPP:  No, the changes that Kevin just recommended took care 48 
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of my objection.  My objection was that it wouldn’t be 1 

appropriate for us to act on a recommendation concerning 2 

headboat IFQ program that came to us from a panel that didn’t 3 

include anybody that was a headboat operator and this addresses 4 

that issue.   5 

 6 

I’ve still got some serious reservations about gag grouper being 7 

included as part of it and I would feel a whole lot better if 8 

these requests for us to establish this ad hoc advisory panel 9 

came from industry and not from this group. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  It did during public comment. 12 

 13 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s exactly right.  That’s where this is coming 14 

from, is public comments.  We heard from those guys that they 15 

wanted to do this and that’s why I’m trying to get it done.  We 16 

did hear from the headboat group that they wanted to have this 17 

done. 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  Further discussion on the motion? 20 

 21 

MR. RAY:  Roy, you did talk about yesterday adding gag would 22 

certainly increase the complication.  Can you just go over that 23 

just a bit more?  I guess he’s gone.  Shep, would you know? 24 

 25 

MR. GRIMES:  Actually, I think I had made reference to that and 26 

I just think -- My thinking was it related to trying to estimate 27 

what landings would occur, because we know for red snapper we’ve 28 

had a fairly stable management regime in place and so we have a 29 

greater ability to predict what the harvest would be for the 30 

participants if we did have a program basically under the same 31 

red snapper size, bag, season and all that, but for gag grouper, 32 

you’ll be doing this at the same time you implement dramatic 33 

management changes in the fishery and so it will be very 34 

difficult to predict what the individuals in the program would 35 

be harvesting. 36 

 37 

This is a problem, again, because you’re not setting aside any 38 

portion of the quota.  If you were doing that, then I think you 39 

would have to do a plan amendment, which would not be what folks 40 

were thinking when they discussed this issue. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Let me remind the council that we have an awful lot 43 

to do and so we need to wrap this thing up very rapidly.  I’ll 44 

recognize Mr. Anson and we’ll bring it to a vote. 45 

 46 

MR. ANSON:  I just wanted to make one more change to that or a 47 

change to this and state it’s a voluntary pilot program. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  On the last line, “voluntary IFQ pilot program”?  2 

 3 

MR. ANSON:  That’s correct. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Would the maker of the motion -- 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  All we’re asking them to do is investigate the 8 

possibility and so this doesn’t have a program in place.  It’s 9 

just working in that direction. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Kay and be brief, please. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It’s not your intent to remove the headboat 14 

operator that we placed on that LAPP, because they are also 15 

addressing, it was my understanding, the quotas or sector quotas 16 

relative to what Andy presented and so we would still need that 17 

particular headboat operator on that panel.  Is that correct, 18 

Mr. Chairman? 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  This doesn’t change that whatsoever. 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to make sure and thank you. 23 

 24 

MR. FISCHER:  Real quick, I’m just curious if anyone knows what 25 

the vote was when this was voted on by the LAPP AP, considering 26 

charterboats outnumber headboats whatever it is, ten to one.  I 27 

was just interested. 28 

 29 

MR. RAY:  The voluntary part of it, are we talking about the 30 

folks that are on the Beaufort list?  That’s kind of what I was 31 

getting at, too.  I just want to know how we’re defining the 32 

voluntary headboats. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  They’re to get together to try and consider what to 35 

do and how to do it, recognizing that it’s intended to be 36 

voluntary, and so they’re going to work out those details.  Dr. 37 

Diagne, did you have your hand up? 38 

 39 

DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  I think Mr. Fischer was inquiring about the 40 

vote when this motion was made.  I don’t recall the exact 41 

number.  There may have been on abstention or so, but it was a 42 

majority, a significant majority, of the panel members that 43 

approved this and they did recognize, as we mentioned in the 44 

report, the lack of headboat representation and they requested 45 

specifically that they have that for next time. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, sir.  We’re going to go ahead and vote on 48 
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the motion and the motion is as requested by the Ad Hoc Reef 1 

Fish LAPP Advisory Panel, the council would establish an ad hoc 2 

headboat IFQ advisory panel to investigate the development of a 3 

program for the red snapper and gag grouper voluntary IFQ pilot 4 

program.  All those in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  5 

The motion passes.  That concludes, unless someone has something 6 

-- Ms. Williams. 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m sorry to take up your time, Mr. Chairman, but 9 

I wanted everyone to know that I bought a brand new computer and 10 

I came here and when I wasn’t here at the beginning of the 11 

meeting, it’s because this hotel came and worked on my computer 12 

because it was making a high-pitched sound and I have been 13 

without a computer this whole meeting and I have been struggling 14 

in trying to keep up, because I don’t have my documents in front 15 

of me, but thank you for allowing this. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Any other discussion on the Reef Fish Item VII on the 18 

agenda? 19 

 20 

MR. RAY:  Trish, can you confirm that Mr. Smarr’s affidavits 21 

made it into the public record yesterday? 22 

 23 

MS. TRISH KENNEDY:  Yes. 24 

 25 

MR. RAY:  That’s what I was trying to figure out and thank you. 26 

 27 

MR. SAPP:  Just a procedural question.  Are you going to go back 28 

to Other Business so that Kay can have an opportunity to make 29 

her motion? 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  I was not intending to.  Seeing no further discussion 32 

on Item VII, the Reef Fish Committee work is complete and we 33 

will now move into Committee Reports.  Mr. McIlwain, are you 34 

ready with the Budget/Personnel Committee Report? 35 

 36 

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT 37 

 38 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’m ready, Mr. Chairman. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Please proceed. 41 

 42 

DR. MCILWAIN:  The Budget Committee was convened at 3:00 p.m. on 43 

Monday, April 11, 2011.  The agenda was adopted as written and 44 

the minutes of the February 8, 2011 meeting were approved as 45 

written. 46 

 47 

Dr. Bortone advised the committee that due to the lack of a 48 



109 

 

congressional budget, the council has not received notice of its 1 

2011 allocation.  He referenced the committee handout which 2 

lists council expenditures to date. 3 

 4 

Dr. Bortone advised members that in the next two weeks that he 5 

anticipates receiving 2011 funding amounts from NOAA.  There 6 

have been discussions indicating that the council’s allocation 7 

may be set anywhere from the 2008 funding levels to the 2010 8 

funding level. 9 

 10 

However, the exact number has not been determined.  At present, 11 

we have funds to operate until June of 2011.  We anticipate 12 

receiving another infusion of funds in the next few weeks, once 13 

the budget is determined.  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my 14 

report. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We appreciate it.  As the 17 

council chair mentioned, if the committee reports focus on the 18 

motions made within the committee report and we can move a 19 

little more expeditiously and save time for the hearty 20 

discussions which are fixing to follow.  The next committee 21 

report is Mackerel Management and that is Mr. Fischer. 22 

 23 

MACKEREL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and if we follow the 26 

agenda, I’ll defer to Mr. Sapp, as he’s listed on the agenda, 27 

but in his absence, I’ll take over.  We have a long way to go on 28 

this.  I was going to recommend getting to the motions. 29 

 30 

We’ve only accomplished about 40 percent of what this committee 31 

needs to do and now the council, because we deferred an hour to 32 

Andy so he could give that very good presentation on sector 33 

separation, and now we have to pay the price for donating our 34 

time. 35 

 36 

The Mackerel Committee, briefly, the agenda was written and 37 

adopted and the minutes were corrected by Shep and we moved on 38 

to the action items that we have to work on, Action Items 4 to I 39 

believe 13 or 14. 40 

 41 

Action Item 4, the committee recommends, and I so move, that the 42 

preferred alternative be Alternative 2, set the ACL equal to ABC 43 

for Gulf cobia, which would be 1.3 million pounds, the lower 44 

bound of the equilibrium MSY estimate based on the MSAP 2001, 45 

with Option a., to set a single ACL. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  48 
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Is there any objection to the committee motion?  The motion 1 

passes. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  On Action 5, the committee recommends, and I so 4 

move, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 3, set the 5 

ACT at 90 percent of the ABC/ACL, which is 1.17 million pounds 6 

for Gulf cobia, based on the MSAP 2001 and Option a, to set a 7 

single ACT. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a committee motion.  10 

Is there any discussion?  Is there any objection to the motion?  11 

The motion passes. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  On Action 6, the accountability measures for Gulf 14 

cobia, the committee recommends, and I so move, that the 15 

preferred alternative be Alternative 2, to create a new Option c 16 

as our preferred option.  Option c would be that when the 90 17 

percent annual catch target is reached that the bag limit be 18 

reduced to one fish per person per day until the annual catch 19 

limit is reached.  Once the ACL is reached, the fishery would be 20 

closed. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion 23 

on the committee motion?  Any objection to the committee motion?  24 

The motion is approved. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  On Action 7, to set the annual catch limit for 27 

Gulf migratory group king mackerel, the committee recommends, 28 

and I so move, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2 29 

as modified, Options b and c.  Alternative 2 is to set the ACL 30 

equal to the ABC, which is decreasing through the years, 13.5 31 

million pounds in 2011, 11.9 million pounds in 2012, 10.8 32 

million pounds in 2013 for Gulf group king mackerel, with Option 33 

b, to set a separate commercial and recreational ACL based on 34 

the current allocations, and c, for the commercial sector, set 35 

separate ACLs for hook and line and runaround gillnets. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a committee motion.  38 

Is there any discussion?  Is there any objection to the motion?  39 

The motion passes. 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  Do you want me to continue with Action 8 from the 42 

committee report or do you want to take this over, because we’ll 43 

need Dr. Leard to explain each action and hopefully we could get 44 

through them as quick as we just did these. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  No, I think proceed and continue on. 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  In Action 8, which is to set the annual catch 1 

target for Gulf migratory group king mackerel, I’ll defer to Dr. 2 

Leard to explain the options and hopefully we’ll model them off 3 

of what we’ve just done and get through this. 4 

 5 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  Action 8 is to set an annual catch target 6 

for Gulf group king mackerel.  The alternatives there are no 7 

action and there would be a little bit of a change there that 8 

the ACT for Gulf group king mackerel wouldn’t be equal to ACL, 9 

but if you wanted to leave it at the no action, then it would 10 

remain at 10.2 million pounds. 11 

 12 

Alternative 2 would be to set the ACT equal to what your 13 

preferred alternative for ABC and ACL is, at 13.5 million 14 

pounds, and again, with the options that we already had for 15 

ACLs. 16 

 17 

Option 3 would go back to the deterministic run from the SEDAR-18 

16 stock assessment and set ACT equal to the deterministic run 19 

for ABC based on OY, which is 13.215 million pounds for Gulf 20 

group king mackerel and again, with the same options.  Once 21 

again, I also threw in an option to set ACT at 90 percent of the 22 

ABC level, which would be 90 percent of 13.5 million pounds, 23 

which is 12.15 million pounds for Gulf group king mackerel, with 24 

the same slate of options. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Dr. Leard.  What’s before us is which 27 

alternative to choose and what we did on cobia was set the ACT 28 

at 90 percent of the ABC, so we had some flexibility of reaching 29 

the target. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  Rick, we have a previous action that specifies 32 

what the ACL is, right, for I think was for three years? 33 

 34 

DR. LEARD:  That’s correct. 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  Why then can’t we simplify this and just have ACT 37 

equals ACL or ACT equals some percentage of ACL and then the ACL 38 

would just be whatever we chose in the previous option?  Right 39 

now, we’ve got these just -- The difference between 2 and 3 is 40 

just the poundage for the ACL, but that’s being chosen in a 41 

previous action. 42 

 43 

DR. LEARD:  Correct.  This was the one year, based on the 44 

2011/2012 fishing year, when we first set it up.  What we just 45 

did with the ACL was to set like a three-year level and you 46 

could do the same thing here and probably that would be -- 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  My point is, Rick, we don’t need to.  All we’re 1 

deciding here is the ACT equal to the ACL or is it some fraction 2 

of the ACL and then whatever we previously decided with the ACL 3 

would apply here and it seems to me then you get down to a 4 

smaller number and it becomes much more simple. 5 

 6 

MR. FISCHER:  I believe our choice is, because we decided what 7 

Roy is saying, whether we want the ACT to equal the ACL or do we 8 

want to use some number of reduction where the ACT is equal to 9 

90 percent of the ACL. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  Right, but it’s just that’s not how it’s set up 12 

now.  It’s set up now in specific numbers and it’s only one 13 

number, whereas previously we had three. 14 

 15 

MR. FISCHER:  This whole motion -- I would recommend that this 16 

whole action be readdressed to remove the million pounds, 17 

because those were decided back in Action 7, I believe, and I 18 

think that’s the point you’re getting to, Roy. 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  That seems to me to be the only issue here, is 21 

like you said, is ACT equals ACL, and I don’t understand that, 22 

because that’s effectively not setting an ACT.  Really, the 23 

actions here ought to all be ACT how much lower than ACL.  I 24 

think the whole action needs to be totally restructured and I 25 

don’t think status quo is proper here either, because if we 26 

don’t take action, there is no ACT. 27 

 28 

MR. GRIMES:  Just to Dr. Crabtree’s point, as I mentioned in 29 

committee, this whole document really needs some tweaking with 30 

regards to status quo, because I think most of the status quos 31 

are inappropriately characterized as being an ACL or ACT or 32 

whatever else.  It will look different in whatever version we 33 

send out to the public or we send out as a DEIS. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  We made those points during committee.  I don’t 36 

know if it would be appropriate for myself to make a motion or 37 

if someone else wants to grab a hold of the motion, but I would 38 

feel we’re going into the direction of what we did with cobia, 39 

where the ACT would be equal to 90 percent of the ACL, if 40 

someone would like to structure that in a motion for discussion. 41 

 42 

MR. GREENE:  So moved. 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion by Johnny to set a new 45 

alternative and we’ll admit through this document that Rick will 46 

have to dress up all these motions to make them fit.  Basically, 47 

it would be Alternative 4, reducing the 12.15 million pounds.  48 
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Would that sound right, Dr. Leard? 1 

 2 

DR. LEARD:  Correct and if you went with Alternative -- I guess 3 

there’s two ways you could go.  You can go like Roy is talking 4 

about and you can decide to set ACL equal to ACT or you can 5 

decide to set ACT equal to ACL or equal to ABC or whatever, but 6 

you could also set -- You could go to the deterministic run as 7 

with Alternative 3 and then you can go to the table that came 8 

from the stock assessment and then for 2011, you would end up 9 

with 13.215 million pounds if you wanted to use that as an ACT, 10 

which is slightly below 13.5. 11 

 12 

For 2012, it would be 11.7 and for 2013, it would be 10.7.  At 13 

least that gives you another alternative other than equal to or 14 

90 percent.  You would at least get three alternatives in there 15 

if you wanted to go that route. 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me the way it’s set up now, there’s 18 

really just one alternative, 90 percent.  I think there have to 19 

be others.  The other problem I see here is if you chose 90 20 

percent, your OY is at -- I believe it’s 85 percent of ABC.  Is 21 

that correct, Rick? 22 

 23 

DR. LEARD:  That’s correct and that’s the numbers that I just 24 

read off. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t see how you can set your target different 27 

than OY and we may have already made a mistake with cobia when 28 

we set ACT at 90 percent, because I think there that OY is at 75 29 

percent. 30 

 31 

Really, the setting of the ACT in the document needs to pull in 32 

OY, because it’s hard for me to see how you can argue that if 33 

you set the target above or below OY, then how are you achieving 34 

optimum yield, which is what the statute requires you to do?  35 

Again, I think the alternatives need to be restructured.  They 36 

need to incorporate optimum yield and they need to have some 37 

additional alternatives. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  I have a question which either Shep or Dr. Leard 40 

could answer, but does this document positively have to go to 41 

public hearings in two weeks?  That’s right.  We already noticed 42 

them and so we have to work through these. 43 

 44 

I would recommend some motions come forward.  I think Johnny was 45 

in the process of making a motion.  Maybe with some insight from 46 

Roy, we could get it worded and get something on the board, but 47 

we also have to set the other alternatives. 48 
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 1 

MR. GREENE:  I’ll certainly take some help with it.  I wasn’t 2 

prepared for the OY argument.  On the cobia, I was thinking it 3 

was overfished and undergoing overfishing and I didn’t know 4 

where that OY fell in, just out of complete ignorance. 5 

 6 

With that being said, I would certainly like to see an ACT set 7 

at some level below the yield, but I will defer to the council 8 

here for a little help or assistance. 9 

 10 

MR. GRIMES:  It seems to me that you’ve already made -- In years 11 

past, you’ve already made policy decisions related to optimum 12 

yield.  You have established optimum yield targets.  All of your 13 

management is structured around already achieving those optimum 14 

yield targets. 15 

 16 

Unless you want to change those, your annual catch target 17 

decision is almost already made for you, because you should set 18 

it equal to your OY target, which was 85 percent here.  As I 19 

understand it, we made a mistake for cobia and it should 20 

actually be lower. 21 

 22 

We definitely need consistency there and we’re going to have to 23 

add alternatives to establish that, but it ought to make the 24 

decision process relatively easy, unless you want to go back in 25 

and change your existing optimum yield targets. 26 

 27 

DR. LEARD:  The real problem comes with cobia and Spanish 28 

mackerel, because the SSC changed their advice from their 29 

previous advice when they reviewed these old stock assessments, 30 

to set an ABC recommendation lower than the OY, whereas before, 31 

they had recommended ABC equal to OY.  Now, we’re in a quandary 32 

of having ABC set below the OY and so then we’ve got to set an 33 

ACL and/or an ACT at some level below that. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  Which means, Rick, you’ve got to incorporate OY 36 

into this, because it sounds like we’re going to have to change 37 

OY, but all that has got to be hashed out in the document and 38 

laid out with alternatives to reconcile all of them. 39 

 40 

MR. FISCHER:  We have to decide what direction we’re going with 41 

this document.  We have a long way to go and we’re going on 42 

eleven o’clock.  Rick, do you see any means that we can address 43 

the issues the council has to have addressed and let the team 44 

put together the document based on our deliberations, whatever 45 

motions we do pass, to give an assortment of alternatives under 46 

each action item? 47 

 48 
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DR. LEARD:  Yes, based on what you did with cobia, I think we’ve 1 

got that.  With king mackerel, like I said, we can come up with 2 

three different alternatives there, one being the OY and one 3 

being 90 percent of the ABC recommendation for those years.  4 

We’ve got the numbers and everything and it’s just a matter of 5 

plugging them in and kind of wordsmithing the alternatives. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay, because we have the ACL set in Action 7 for 8 

the next three years and so now all we’re really doing is 9 

finding out what percent -- Whether we’re going to have ACT 10 

equal to ACL or some percent of it and if maybe someone could 11 

craft that motion, we can have that and you all wordsmith it and 12 

would that be acceptable to the federal end? 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think, Myron, we just need staff to rework all 15 

of this and I don’t know if we need a motion to tell them that. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  I think we can get it out of the conversation. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not prepared to pick a preferred, because 20 

it’s just got so many problems with it. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  I think I’ll defer back to the motion where Mr. 23 

Sapp is leading this committee. 24 

 25 

MR. ANSON:  Mr. Grimes, if you can refresh my memory about 26 

preferred alternatives.  In light of the short timeframe here, 27 

we do not need to associate necessarily a preferred alternative? 28 

 29 

MR. GRIMES:  No, we don’t need preferred alternatives before we 30 

go out to public hearing with it.  Certainly if we have 31 

preferred alternatives, we should make sure we include them in 32 

the document, but I think Dr. Crabtree has got a good point that 33 

this could be reworked or will be reworked considerably and I 34 

think one of your options is not even setting an ACT. 35 

 36 

You already have optimum yield targets and so long as our annual 37 

catch limits are above our established optimum yield, management 38 

is already designed to achieve that optimum yield.  You could 39 

just set the ACL above it and leave things as they are and not 40 

set an ACT and as long as we didn’t go over the ACL, we would be 41 

achieving optimum yield and we would be golden. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  That is your motion? 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  Say that again? 46 

 47 

MR. FISCHER:  I said that is a motion? 48 
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 1 

MR. GRIMES:  I can’t make motions.  That’s a comment. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  We may not need motions.  I think staff knows the 4 

direction on where to go with this.  I think I’m struggling with 5 

where we’re going with this right now.  I’m looking forward -- 6 

Let me get back to Action 8.  I’m looking forward at the other 7 

actions to see what determinations are being made there. 8 

 9 

DR. LEARD:  I was just wondering if Shep was suggesting that if 10 

we don’t set an ACT that this Action 8 be moved to Considered 11 

but Rejected. 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  I guess I wouldn’t recommend doing that just yet, 14 

because I think things are too much in a state of flux and 15 

without a preferred alternative or any indication of which way 16 

the council is ultimately going to go on it, I guess I wouldn’t 17 

feel very comfortable. 18 

 19 

I think what we need to do now, given that things are changing, 20 

is we need to sit here and as Mr. Chairman mentioned, we need to 21 

go look at what actions we have in front of us.  Are those in 22 

the same state of flux, let’s say?  If they are, then let’s look 23 

at making the same changes to each of those other actions for 24 

Spanish mackerel and king mackerel. 25 

 26 

Maybe then we ought to go back and look at the decisions you’ve 27 

already made for cobia in light of what changes you’ll make and 28 

see if you need to do the same thing there. 29 

 30 

If everything is going to be the same as king mackerel, then I 31 

think we need to make those changes as fast as humanly possible 32 

and get what we can out to public hearing and then hopefully 33 

next time you see this document, in June, it will look very 34 

different from what you see today. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  With that, we’re on Action 8.  Does anyone have 37 

any motion or any idea how to dress it up or do you feel we gave 38 

staff enough information in these discussions? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we’ve given staff enough information, but 41 

I do think staff needs to go back and relook at the ACT sections 42 

for cobia and probably Spanish and that all of these same 43 

concerns apply there as well.  I think all those sections -- I 44 

don’t want to go back and rehash the preferreds over again, but 45 

I think all of those actions need to be reworked and I would 46 

encourage Rick to work with Shepherd and the other folks on my 47 

staff to do that. 48 



117 

 

 1 

MR. FISCHER:  So noted and let’s move on to the next action item 2 

and look at the dilemmas we have on Action 9.  Action 9 is to 3 

set accountability measures for the Gulf migratory group king 4 

mackerel.   5 

 6 

Presently, we have a fishery when the commercial quota is taken 7 

per subzone, the fishery is closed and recreational, even with 8 

captain and crew on the for-hire vessels, it reverts back to a 9 

bag limit of zero.  We do have accountability presently and does 10 

anyone see any reason to make that our preferred or move into 11 

something more complicated? 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think in this case that we already have in-14 

season closures of king mackerel, recreational and commercial.  15 

I don’t think the recreational has ever hit theirs, but it’s in 16 

the regulations and so it seems to me that we already have 17 

accountability measures for king mackerel. 18 

 19 

MR. FISCHER:  So you move that Alternative 1 be our preferred? 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I move Alternative 1 as preferred.  I would ask 22 

Shepherd -- Shepherd, if we’re satisfied with the existing 23 

accountability measures for king mackerel, do we even need this 24 

action or could we just have some explanation? 25 

 26 

MR. GRIMES:  No, I think you could remove this action entirely.  27 

The National Standard Guidelines envision certain instances 28 

where existing measures comply with the revised Magnuson Act 29 

requirements and all you’re required to do is publish in the 30 

Federal Register a notice and state your case and explain how 31 

existing measures meet those new requirements. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  The only concern I would have with that is I 34 

think we ought to consider an overage payback in the runaround 35 

gillnet fishery.  We have had years where we’ve had very large 36 

overruns in that fishery and I think we ought to consider a 37 

payback there. 38 

 39 

Could we, Shepherd, explain in here that we’re not going to 40 

change the accountability mechanisms, but have an alternative to 41 

put a payback provision in for the runaround gillnet fishery? 42 

 43 

MR. GRIMES:  Ultimately, I would say yes.  I think that’s 44 

setting up for a pretty narrow focus and a narrow range and I 45 

wouldn’t want you to consider it just for runaround gillnet.  46 

You would have options that looked at payback for every sector. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  I’m ready to make a motion, Mr. Chairman.  I move 1 

that we restructure Action 9 to indicate that we’re maintaining 2 

the existing accountability measures for king mackerel, but that 3 

we include alternatives to require overage paybacks for all of 4 

the various sectors. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  Did you get a second, Roy? 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  Not that I’m aware of. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  I’ll second it, but for clarification, is that not 11 

equivalent to Alternative 1 being preferred and also Alternative 12 

3, Option a, suboption i as a preferred?  Is that not identical, 13 

in which case it’s a little more simple to do it the latter way, 14 

I think. 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  It may be, Bob, although I don’t see an Action 3 17 

where it allows you to apply the payback to a particular 18 

category.  It seems it applies to everyone or no one. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  That, in effect, was what you were doing, an overage 21 

for everyone in every sector. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, I want to look at recreational, runaround 24 

gillnet, and the commercial hook and line separately.  We would 25 

choose payback or no payback for each part of the fishery and 26 

then the rest of the stuff in here would go away and that would 27 

be our decision to make. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  It would almost be the same as Option a commercial 30 

and then break commercial into runaround gillnet and hand line.   31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think so.  I think it would be a pretty simple 33 

action this. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  Either way, I think this gives staff what they 36 

need to reword the document.   37 

 38 

MR. GRIMES:  I would defer to your staff’s opinion on this 39 

certainly, but it seems to me that doing what Dr. Crabtree -- 40 

None of this has been analyzed yet and so doing what Dr. 41 

Crabtree is suggesting, it seems to me it would be much more 42 

easily analyzed than what you have now.  While it may result in 43 

the same final outcome, I think it will cut down on the 44 

workload. 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion and we do have a second on it.  47 

Do we have further discussion?  With no further discussion, do 48 



119 

 

we have opposition?  Seeing no opposition, the motion passes for 1 

this action and we’ll move down to Action 10.  Action 10 is to 2 

set the annual catch limit for Gulf migratory group Spanish 3 

mackerel. 4 

 5 

DR. LEARD:  This is similar to what we had with cobia, where the 6 

SSC went back and revisited this, looking at trying to apply the 7 

ABC control rule to Spanish mackerel.  Again, they had the same 8 

problems, with not a lot of confidence in the landings data. 9 

 10 

They considered going along with their previous advice from the 11 

stock assessment of setting ABC equal to the OY yield, at 6.3 12 

million pounds, but they went back and they did the same thing 13 

that they did with cobia and recommended the ABC be set at the 14 

lower point of the confidence range of 80/20, which would be 5.5 15 

million pounds. 16 

 17 

The alternatives there would be basically Alternative 1, to 18 

retain a 9.1 million pound TAC, which is not acceptable and 19 

needs, as we’ve been talking, to be reworked. 20 

 21 

Alternative 2 would be to set ACL equal to ABC for Spanish 22 

mackerel, at the 5.5 million pound level, and this is where it 23 

gets kind of complicated, because the 2003 stock assessment was 24 

greatly different from the 2001 stock assessment.  It was much 25 

lower and it was indicated that that was because of essentially 26 

changes in what they perceived the recruitment to be. 27 

 28 

I remembered that there were some problems with that and I went 29 

back and I asked Mauricio Ortiz to rerun portions of that 30 

assessment and hence, we ended up with Alternative 3 there and 31 

in the discussion, I had indicated -- This comes from a document 32 

from some time ago that I put in here. 33 

 34 

I actually contacted Mauricio and he reran some data and ended 35 

with an OY at 8.3 million pounds and I think MSY at 8.7 million 36 

pounds, but I can’t find that information and last week, Steve 37 

Atran had contacted Shannon Calay at the Center and Shannon was 38 

looking for that additional information or post-stock assessment 39 

information that Mauricio did. 40 

 41 

We’re still trying to find that, but currently, right now, what 42 

we have is an ABC recommendation of 5.5 million pounds and then, 43 

again, I did the 90 percent of ABC, which ends with an 44 

alternative for 4.95 million pounds. 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  Presently, we have two viable options.  One would 47 

be to set the ACL at ABC and the other would be to set the ACL 48 
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at 90 percent of ABC.  The Alternative 1 and 3 would not be 1 

viable, because they’re above the SSC’s recommendation.  Do we 2 

have any motions or any ideas towards a preferred alternative or 3 

any changes we want to make on this Action 10? 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  I guess I’m a little befuddled by the SSC’s 6 

recommendation.  My understanding is that this is a stock that 7 

appears to be in good shape and not overfished and overfishing 8 

is not occurring.   9 

 10 

They’re very fecund, et cetera, and yet we have this rather 11 

restrictive ABC level, which appears to be based on the fact 12 

that we haven’t had any assessment, et cetera, but it seems to 13 

me that given the nature of the beast, the scientific 14 

uncertainty is fairly low, because it’s a robust stock. 15 

 16 

I’m a little befuddled on how they came to that and why it 17 

wouldn’t be prudent to send it back to them and request that 18 

they reconsider their decision in light of the science 19 

associated with this stock. 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m a little befuddled as well, Bob, on it.  It 22 

seems to me what we could ask is why didn’t they apply the 23 

control rule that we’ve developed, which I think we at the last 24 

meeting asked to be incorporated in this document.  They didn’t 25 

do that and they went back to a very out-of-date stock 26 

assessment. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, I think Sean Powers is waiting to address 29 

that. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess that’s my question.  Sean, why didn’t 32 

they fall back to the control rules we’ve developed? 33 

 34 

DR. POWERS:  There’s a couple of issues with Spanish that we 35 

talked about.  One, it was a little out of place, in that you 36 

were well within your rights to ask the SSC to reconsider it, 37 

because essentially we dealt with the king mackerel issue all 38 

the time and so the Mackerel SSC was not there on the last day.  39 

We essentially ran out of the first day of time and so the 40 

Mackerel Standing SSC -- Only the Standing SSC talked about 41 

Spanish mackerel. 42 

 43 

If you wanted essentially a good rationale for sending it back, 44 

and some of us on the SSC didn’t want to bring it up, because 45 

essentially we ran out of time. 46 

 47 

With that said, there was the intent that essentially we 48 
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recognized that there was an assessment.  It was out of date and 1 

there was a lot of uncertainty with it and the feeling was 2 

essentially that we in some ways did use the control rule, in 3 

that there was an assessment, and so that does not put it into 4 

the Tier 3 type of landings.  That’s my comments on it. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess just to me, Sean, when your assessment is 7 

-- This was done in 2003 and so it’s eight, going on nine, years 8 

old and to me, when an assessment is that old, you don’t have an 9 

assessment anymore. 10 

 11 

I guess what you guys ought to decide -- It sounds like we’re 12 

being pretty ad hoc here and I think you could legitimately say, 13 

look, when an assessment is this old, we want to apply the 14 

control rule we’ve developed and I don’t know if the control 15 

rule gives you fewer fish or more fish or what it gives you in 16 

terms of fish, but I think you could do that if you want to. 17 

 18 

In the meantime though, I think this action needs to be 19 

restructured.  It has the same sorts of problems.  Right now, it 20 

really only has two alternatives, to set ACL equal to ABC or set 21 

it at 90 percent, and so probably Shepherd is going to say there 22 

are more reasonable alternatives and look at that. 23 

 24 

In the meantime, if you want to go back and ask the SSC to 25 

relook at this, I think you certainly have some grounds to do 26 

that and I think what Sean brought up about the Mackerel SSC not 27 

being there and all. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  I think that’s a more important point.  We’re 30 

taking an SSC’s recommendation with the mackerel component not 31 

present during this discussion. 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  In light of some of what’s in here, and I guess 34 

this had all gotten past me before, but we need to revisit -- If 35 

we have an MSY or a TAC of 9.1 million pounds, I presume that’s 36 

associated with an MSY value and we now have an ABC of 5.5 and 37 

we’ve got to adjust all the other parameters to make sure things 38 

are consistent.   39 

 40 

We can’t just come in and set this new ACL and ACT that’s 41 

totally not in line with the rest of our management parameters 42 

in the FMP.  I guess we’ll have to add alternatives that address 43 

everything else as well. 44 

 45 

DR. POWERS:  A couple of things.  One, there was supplemental 46 

analysis that NMFS has done that we did not have at the SSC and 47 

is that correct, Steven? 48 
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 1 

MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  That’s what I’m told. 2 

 3 

DR. POWERS:  The second part is if we did use the control rule, 4 

if my memory and Steven’s is correct, we would have come with a 5 

lower number to you and so essentially that’s why we used, for 6 

lack of a better word, a hybrid between the stock assessment and 7 

the ABC and a lower one that no one felt reflected the status of 8 

the stock. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  If you do look at the average landings, they are 11 

well below the ABC you have and so yes, you could come out with 12 

fewer fish.  That’s up to you guys whether you want to go back 13 

to the SSC or just move forward with what you have.  14 

 15 

It sounds like from what Sean is saying that you’re going to get 16 

either what you have or something lower than that.  I’m not 17 

going to engage in that discussion.  You can do what you want.  18 

Then we restructure this alternative, but I think you need to 19 

decide about the SSC. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s going to be interesting to send it to public 22 

comment.  Do we have any motions coming forward on how to 23 

restructure Action 10?  Alternative 2 and 4 are the only two 24 

viable alternatives.  Rick, do you have input on how you could 25 

dress this up? 26 

 27 

DR. LEARD:  Not really, Mr. Chairman.  We’ve got the public 28 

hearings set and I believe the public hearings are going to be 29 

running at the same time as the SSC and so if you ask the SSC to 30 

relook at it and we get some additional information that 31 

indicates that perhaps we can have a higher ABC than 5.5 and 32 

they would recommend it -- The only thing I know that I could do 33 

right now is to have ACL equal to the ABC at 5.5 million pounds 34 

or have an ACL equal to an ABC at 6.3, which was the optimum 35 

yield estimate. 36 

 37 

That’s above the SSC’s recommendation and if you had that 38 

alternative, you would have to be assuming that the SSC is going 39 

to change their advice to what they actually considered but 40 

rejected in their deliberations at this last meeting. 41 

 42 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me what you’re talking about, Rick, 43 

is ACL equal to ABC or ACL equal to some fraction of ABC and so 44 

you could have an alternative of ACL equals ABC and another 45 

alternative of ABC equals 90 and another 80 and another 70.  46 

There are lots of alternatives in here. 47 

 48 
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I don’t want to go back to the SSC and say can’t you give us 1 

something higher.  I don’t think that’s really appropriate.  If 2 

we wanted to go back and make sure the Mackerel SSC looked at 3 

this or whatever happened there, I think that’s okay. 4 

 5 

It sounds like they did consider the control rule, but they felt 6 

like that was going to give us an unrealistically low number and 7 

so they stayed with this.  I guess I’m not sure that going back 8 

to them is going to be productive at this point and so that 9 

leaves us setting this alternative up as a series of 10 

alternatives that would reduce the ACL to some level below the 11 

ABC.  I think that’s pretty straightforward to do. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  I have Dr. Powers and I have Steve and I have Rick 14 

and before they speak, I think that would be the motion that 15 

should be coming, is Alternative 2, Alternative 4, and then one 16 

or two options under that, where ACL is equal to 85 or 80 17 

percent of ABC. 18 

 19 

DR. POWERS:  Steven just reminded me of one other thing that we 20 

discussed.  There are new stock assessments for these species 21 

coming out next year, for Spanish in 2012, for all of the 22 

coastal pelagics. 23 

 24 

MR. FISCHER:  That way, if the ABC is increased, we’re still 25 

using the same percents as our catch limit. 26 

 27 

DR. LEARD:  What you just said, Mr. Chairman, is what I was 28 

going to suggest.  If we need additional alternatives than 90 29 

percent or equal to, then let’s just do a couple at 85 or 80 30 

percent and then pick a preferred from that and like Sean said, 31 

next year we’ll have another stock assessment and we can do a 32 

regulatory amendment under the framework to make whatever 33 

adjustments are needed. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you for that advice.  Do we have a motion 36 

coming forward to reflect the recent discussion? 37 

 38 

MR. ANSON:  I would like to make a motion that staff add some 39 

additional alternatives to Action 10 that would reflect two more 40 

alternatives, one at setting the ACL equal to 85 percent of ABC 41 

and another at setting the ACL at 80 percent of ABC, with the 42 

same option of Option a, b, and c, as set forth in Alternatives 43 

2, 3, and 4 currently. 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  Do you feel we should be pulling out Alternative 1 46 

and 3? 47 

 48 
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MR. ANSON:  Yes, I didn’t know if that would be included and 1 

yes, we should go ahead and remove Alternative 1 and 3 from the 2 

current action alternatives. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion on the floor to change the 5 

alternatives in Action 10.  Do we have a second?  I sense some 6 

dissatisfaction on where we stand with Spanish mackerel. 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  For one, we’re talking ACL equals some percentage 9 

of ABC and not ACT.  Rather than specifying 85 percent or 80, I 10 

would just ask staff to construct a reasonable range of 11 

alternatives that express ACL as some fraction of ABC.  Are you 12 

okay with that? 13 

 14 

MR. ANSON:  No, not particularly.  I think 80 percent should be 15 

the threshold. 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll withdraw my second then. 18 

 19 

MR. FISCHER:  Do we have anyone else to second Kevin’s motion?   20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Are you needing a second, Mr. Chairman?  I’ll second 22 

it. 23 

 24 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s seconded by Bob Gill.  Is there discussion? 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  You can’t remove Alternative 1.  That’s no action 27 

and you have to have no action. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  That would be fine, but no action would be setting 30 

the 9.1 million pound TAC, which -- 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  I understand that, but you have to have no 33 

action.  In this case, you can’t remove Alternative 1.  You 34 

still have to have no action. 35 

 36 

MR. ANSON:  I’ll accept that modification. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  Alternative 1 is removed from this motion. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  It’s to remove Alternative 3 from Action 10. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes, just change that to 3. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  That was my point, Mr. Chairman.  I knew we had to do 45 

something relative to the no action. 46 

 47 

MR. ANSON:  Just to make sure that the same suite of options 48 
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that exist in Alternatives 2 and 4 are carried forward. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  That Option a, b, and c be included. 3 

 4 

MR. ANSON:  That Option a, b, and c are included in the new 5 

alternatives. 6 

 7 

MR. GRIMES:  I guess I would just comment that I’m not making a 8 

pronouncement either way, but we need a reasonable range of 9 

alternatives and 75 percent, that 25 percent reduction from our 10 

ABC recommendation seems to be kind of a good generic standard 11 

and this, to me, only looks at things on the higher end of that.   12 

 13 

I’m not saying it’s something that you would have to choose, but 14 

not considering 75 percent might result in your range of 15 

alternatives not being reasonable and so it would be my 16 

preference that you at least include an alternative of 75 17 

percent. 18 

 19 

MR. FISCHER:  Would the maker of the motion consider this? 20 

 21 

MR. ANSON:  Yes, I’ll consider 75 percent. 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  This is just going out for public hearing and this 24 

is not the final. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  I know, but look.  We don’t want to come back in 27 

after we go through all this and then we don’t have a reasonable 28 

range of alternatives, which is where I was coming from to begin 29 

with, just ask staff to come up with a reasonable range of 30 

alternatives. 31 

 32 

We have traditionally used 75 percent and so to say that’s not 33 

reasonable here, it seems a difficult argument to make, to me.  34 

I know it’s just going out to public hearings, but we’re already 35 

running late on this and we haven’t made much progress on it. 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes, you’re right.  Kevin did modify it to add 75 38 

percent to the motion.  Do we have any further discussion?  39 

Seeing no discussion, we shall vote.  Is anyone opposed to this 40 

motion?  Seeing no opposition, the motion carries and we’ll move 41 

on to Action 11. 42 

 43 

Action 11 is to set the annual catch target for Gulf migratory 44 

group Spanish mackerel.  This is a target and if I’m not 45 

mistaken, this is not required.  Is that right, Rick? 46 

 47 

DR. LEARD:  That’s correct.  It’s not required by the 48 
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Guidelines. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  We will have to rewrite this entire document.  If 3 

anyone had a slate of options they wanted to put under Action 11 4 

as a target or have the target equal the catch limit. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, given what we just did in Action 10, we 7 

have to structure, it would seem to me, Action 11 similarly, so 8 

that the two follow one another.  If we need a motion to do 9 

that, then I’ll do that. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  We need the same percent breakdown, if that’s what 12 

you’re getting to. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  Yes, the same kind of alternatives and follow the 15 

same roadmap in Action 10. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  The process if you want to come up with a 18 

preferred alternative at the same time. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  Do you need a motion?  I move that we request staff 21 

to structure Action 11 similar to the structure of Action 10. 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion on the floor.  Do we have a 24 

second? 25 

 26 

MR. ANSON:  Second. 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a second by Kevin.  Do we have further 29 

discussion?   30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  What you’re saying is you want alternatives to 32 

set ACT equal to 75, 80, and 85 percent of ACL? 33 

 34 

MR. FISCHER:  No, I don’t believe that was it.  I think it was 35 

to use the figures of -- Let me go back where we were.  Mr. 36 

Gill, I’ll let you rephrase it. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  We just set up alternatives for an ACL.  Now, I don’t 39 

know that we’re going to an ACT, but we set that up and so the 40 

structure, it seems to me for consideration of ACT, if that’s 41 

the way we go, has to be consistent with how we were considering 42 

structuring the ACL portion. 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess I don’t see that, because to me -- Now 45 

you’re setting the -- Look at the alternative on the board, 46 

because in my view, that’s not correct.  We’re not setting ACT 47 

as a fraction of ABC.   48 
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 1 

We’re setting ACT as a fraction of the ACL and there’s no reason 2 

in the world why we would necessarily have to use the same 3 

percentages, because it’s a different thing.  One is setting a 4 

limit and one is setting a target.  You could use the same 5 

numbers and it might be fine, but I don’t think it necessarily 6 

has to be the same numbers. 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  For public comment, we could have the ACT equal to 9 

ACL and then just some fractions just below that. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  Again, ACT equal to ACL is not an option.  That 12 

means we’re not going to have an ACT.  You can’t set the ACT 13 

equal to ACL. 14 

 15 

MR. FISCHER:  99 percent wouldn’t be acceptable. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  I’ll withdraw the motion. 18 

 19 

MR. FISCHER:  We’re at zero on Action 11.  What we’re trying to 20 

do is set our target somewhere below our catch limit and come up 21 

with a slate of alternatives that reflect that. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think in the discussion of ACTs for king 24 

mackerel, we asked staff to go back through the document for 25 

cobia and Spanish mackerel and restructure the action along the 26 

lines of the discussion we have.   27 

 28 

This should be structured in a way that ACT is equal to some 29 

fraction of ACL and then you’ve got to pull the OY into it.  I 30 

think all the comments we just went through apply here and apply 31 

to cobia.  They apply to all the actions setting ACTs. 32 

 33 

DR. LEARD:  What Roy just said is basically what I was going to 34 

say.  We understand what we need to do.  ACT is going to be a 35 

fraction of ACL and we can build in whatever is an appropriate 36 

range of alternatives to do that.  We know what we need to do. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay and you don’t need a motion to move forward? 39 

 40 

DR. LEARD:  No. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay and then let us move on.  We only have three 43 

more to go, if I’m not mistaken.  The accountability measures 44 

would be the next thing we discuss.  We’ll be setting the 45 

accountability measures for Spanish mackerel.  Rick, do you want 46 

to explain where we are and what the alternatives are? 47 

 48 
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DR. LEARD:  I think that we’re pretty much at the same juncture 1 

that we were with king mackerel.  We have set allocations for 2 

the commercial and recreational sector.  I think we have 3 

accountability measures in place at least for the commercial 4 

sector, where we’ve closed the fishery whenever they reach their 5 

share of the quota, although the shares at 57 percent commercial 6 

and 43 percent recreational haven’t been what the catches have 7 

been for a long time. 8 

 9 

I believe, as I mentioned yesterday, the catches have been about 10 

sixty-something percent recreational and about thirty-something 11 

percent to 40 percent commercial, but I think that probably you 12 

may not invoke any of these accountability measures, but the 13 

ones that are in place currently, if the National Marine 14 

Fisheries Service is going to monitor the recreational bag 15 

limit, then I don’t know what we might need other than some 16 

action to reduce the bag limit to some portion, as with 17 

Alternative 2, if ever the recreational ACL was reached. 18 

 19 

I’m not sure if that’s in the framework.  I know king mackerel 20 

is in the framework, but I’m not sure whether or not the Spanish 21 

mackerel is.  I may be able to check here. 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  Alternative 1, 2, and 3 would almost work as they 24 

are.  We just have to come up with some figures on the 25 

recreational portion of Alternative 2. 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we have AMs commercially and so I don’t 28 

think we need to address those.  We just explain it that we have 29 

them and they’re in-season closures and we’re done there.  Then 30 

recreationally, we really don’t have an AM, because I don’t 31 

really think of a bag limit as an AM. 32 

 33 

We could have alternatives in here and I guess you could look at 34 

closing the recreational fishery in season if you wanted to.  35 

You could have an alternative that reduces the bag limit if some 36 

fraction of the quota is caught or you could have an alternative 37 

that if you exceeded the ACT, then the following year the bag 38 

limit is reduced and so I think those kinds of things. 39 

 40 

I don’t really see a payback as something that we need to look 41 

at here.  It seems to me a conservative ABC will work on it.  42 

Shepherd may say we need to consider the payback, but I doubt 43 

that’s where we’re going to wind up on it. 44 

 45 

I think you could restructure this just to focus on the 46 

recreational fishery and look at some alternatives that would 47 

have retrospective closure, in-season closure, bag limit 48 
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reduction kinds of things. 1 

 2 

MR. ANSON:  Just looking at Alternative 2, Option a and b, and 3 

since there’s been some discussion in trying to clean up the 4 

document for previous action items, I don’t know if the ACT and 5 

ACL are interchangeable at this point, based on where we’re 6 

going to go with the future document, as far as closures when 7 

ACT is reached, since we’re looking at an ACT that’s lower than 8 

ACL.  I’m wondering if closure when ACL is reached and not ACT 9 

and likewise for the rest of the suboptions within Alternative 10 

2. 11 

 12 

DR. LEARD:  In the existing framework, it says authority is also 13 

granted to the RA to close any fishery, reverting the bag limit 14 

to zero, and close and reopen any commercial fishery once a 15 

quota has been established through the procedure described above 16 

and such quota has been filled. 17 

 18 

When such action is necessary, the RA will recommend that the 19 

Secretary publish a notice in the Federal Register as soon as 20 

possible.  I think, with that language, that we already have 21 

accountability measures for both the commercial and the 22 

recreational sector, because we’ve, through the framework, given 23 

the RA authority to close any of these commercial quotas or to 24 

revert any bag limit to zero. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Rick.  Did you understand Kevin’s 27 

issues with the ACL/ACT, so that could be corrected in the 28 

document? 29 

 30 

DR. LEARD:  What were those?  I was looking at the framework. 31 

 32 

MR. GRIMES:  To that point though, I think you should leave it 33 

as it is until you make a decision on your prior alternatives, 34 

because that’s really what is going to dictate this.  I guess 35 

you could conceivably trigger it with the annual catch target, 36 

but the law requires it once the annual catch limit is reached. 37 

 38 

I think I’m going to go back to something Dr. Crabtree said 39 

that’s an option here and we discussed this in the king mackerel 40 

accountability measures section.  You have measures in place 41 

that are the same as any accountability measure you’re likely to 42 

select for the commercial sector and for the various components 43 

of the commercial sector. 44 

 45 

I think it’s reasonable to just lead off with a discussion that 46 

explains that.  We would put the same kind of discussion in the 47 

preamble for any rule and we’re not making any changes and so 48 
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this would be -- It would be accountability measures for Spanish 1 

mackerel and it would talk about what we have for commercial and 2 

we’re not changing anything and the options that we would have 3 

in the document would focus exclusively on recreational, 4 

because, as Dr. Crabtree mentioned, all we have is a bag limit. 5 

 6 

I don’t believe the Regional Administrator currently has 7 

authority to zero out that bag limit if it’s projected to be 8 

reached and so I wouldn’t consider it an existing accountability 9 

measure and we could work through this and come back with a new 10 

series of options, much like you’ve recommended that we do for 11 

king mackerel and cobia. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  Shepherd, what you’re essentially saying is then for 14 

the commercial, under Alternative 2, for example, those 15 

suboptions would essentially go away and then in Option b, 16 

recreational, I go back to my point earlier that closure when 17 

recreational stock ACL is reached or projected to be reached, 18 

potentially, and then Suboption ii would then be bag limit 19 

reduced when X percent of potentially ACT is reached, rather 20 

than just saying X percent.  We could do something like that, 21 

based on how the document is shaping up. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  Right, because we could decide to not even have 24 

an ACT and so I think staff has enough direction here to 25 

restructure this, it seems to me. 26 

 27 

MR. FISCHER:  Possibly no motion is necessary.  This should 28 

complete some of our Gulf options and it brings us to Action 13, 29 

which is Atlantic group king mackerel.  Rick, can you explain 30 

where we have to go with this? 31 

 32 

DR. LEARD:  Maybe David Cupka can explain it better than I, but 33 

this was just one of the alternatives that we didn’t get to.  It 34 

applies to the South Atlantic Council.  At the last meeting, we 35 

approved all of their actions, Actions 14 through 21, and I 36 

believe David mentioned yesterday that there were a couple or 37 

three minor adjustments that they made that he wanted to address 38 

also, so that we can go ahead and approve both 13 for them and 39 

approve those other minor changes.  I would ask David, and he 40 

can probably explain it better than me, as to what those actions 41 

and those changes are. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  David, if you would give us guidance on where the 44 

South Atlantic is. 45 

 46 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  There are three 47 

South Atlantic actions which we need the Gulf Council to 48 
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consider approval and the first of these is Action 13, which as 1 

Rick indicated, for some reason was skipped over at the last 2 

meeting. 3 

 4 

Action 13 deals with the Atlantic group king mackerel, the ABC 5 

control, ABC, ACL, and the commercial and recreational ACTs.  6 

This can be found on page 91 of your document.  The first one 7 

deals with the ABC control rule and the ABC and our preferred 8 

alternative is Alternative 2, which is to adopt the South 9 

Atlantic Council’s SSC recommended ABC control rule and 10 

establish ABC as 10.46 million pounds.  That’s dealing with the 11 

ABC and ABC control rule. 12 

 13 

I can run through the other parts of this action if you want to 14 

and you can maybe consider approving them as a whole or we can 15 

take them individually, but however you want to do it, Mr. 16 

Chairman. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  I think at this time that we should hear all three 19 

of them and we’ll just pool them together as one motion. 20 

 21 

MR. CUPKA:  There’s four parts to this first action and I just 22 

went over the first part.  The second part of Action 13 is on 23 

PDF page 92 and deals with the ACL, the annual catch limit.  Our 24 

preferred alternative at this point is to have the ACL as 25 

Preferred Alternative 2, ACL is equal to OY, which is equal to 26 

ABC, which is the 10.46 million pounds.  That’s our preferred 27 

alternative on that part. 28 

 29 

If you go to PDF page 95, this deals with the ACT.  For the 30 

commercial ACT, you’ll see our preferred alternative is 31 

Alternative 1, no action, which is do not specify a commercial 32 

sector ACT for Atlantic group king mackerel. 33 

 34 

Then on the following page, it deals with the recreational 35 

sector ACT and our preferred alternative there was Preferred 36 

Alternative 4, the recreational sector ACT equals the sector ACL 37 

times one minus the proportional standard error or 0.05, 38 

whichever is greater.   39 

 40 

Those are our current four preferred alternatives under Action 41 

13.  We either need you all to approve those or do something 42 

otherwise. 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, David.  My page numbers didn’t match up 45 

at all and so I don’t have these numbers and I don’t know if we 46 

can approve them by consensus or if we need a motion on the 47 

board.  I know it’s something we should have a -- If we could 48 
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possibly make a motion that reflects the Gulf Council agrees 1 

with the issues that David just brought up on changes to the 2 

South Atlantic document and how we’re going to proceed on this. 3 

 4 

MR. CUPKA:  These aren’t really changes.  They’ve been our 5 

preferred all along.  It’s just that this action got skipped 6 

when you all considered them at your last meeting, but there’s 7 

no change. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  We have to more or less -- I don’t want to use the 10 

phrase rubber stamp, but we do have to approve any South 11 

Atlantic issues. 12 

 13 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  I would move that we approve the South 14 

Atlantic sections entirely. 15 

 16 

MR. FISCHER:  There’s a motion on the board to approve the South 17 

Atlantic sections that David just brought up.  Do we have a 18 

second? 19 

 20 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’ll second it. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s seconded by Tom.  Do we have further 23 

discussion?  Seeing no further discussion, the motion passes.  24 

Dr. Leard, where do we stand on the document? 25 

 26 

MR. CUPKA:  We’ve got two other actions that actually did change 27 

at our last meeting that we need for you all to consider 28 

approval.  The first deals with the ABC control rule and ABC for 29 

Atlantic group cobia and this is on PDF page 110 of your 30 

document or page 91 if you’re using the page numbers. 31 

 32 

Our preferred alternative, we’ve changed this now.  Our 33 

preferred alternative is Alternative 5, which is to adopt the 34 

Gulf Council’s ABC control rule as an interim control rule and 35 

establish an ABC equal to the mean plus 1.5 times the standard 36 

deviation of the most recent ten years of landings data.  This 37 

is for Atlantic group cobia.  That is a change that we made at 38 

our last meeting and will need for you all to concur with that 39 

change, if you are so inclined. 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  You did have one other change? 42 

 43 

MR. CUPKA:  Yes, we had one other change under Action 21, which 44 

is on PDF page 118, which deals, again, with Atlantic group 45 

cobia and it’s the management measures.  Given that our 46 

preferred alternative now and our ABC, if we look at our 47 

landings, recent landings, those are all below the ABC level and 48 
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so we changed our preferred under management actions to no 1 

action, that we would not change what the current management 2 

actions are for South Atlantic group cobia. 3 

 4 

The current management actions would remain in place and there’s 5 

no need to change them, since our landings are below the new ABC 6 

level. 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, David.  The motion on the board was 9 

approved and I think now we’re at a point where we need to have 10 

a motion to accept the changes the South Atlantic made to their 11 

document, which were just illustrated by David. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  I’ll make a motion that we accept the changes the 14 

South Atlantic Council made in the document. 15 

 16 

MR. FISCHER:  We have multiple seconds.  Any further discussion 17 

on the changes?  With no further discussion, then we’ll vote.  18 

Is anyone opposed to the changes?  Seeing no opposition, the 19 

motion carries. 20 

 21 

MR. CUPKA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  There’s one other issue 22 

that the staff asked us to do and that’s in regard to the public 23 

hearings.  It’s my understanding that for whatever reason that 24 

there weren’t any hearings scheduled by the Gulf down in the 25 

Keys. 26 

 27 

Our staff was going to make the offer that when we hold our 28 

public hearings there that we could do the entire public hearing 29 

document, including the Gulf portion, but based on all the 30 

actions that you all have done today, I don’t think that 31 

document -- That document probably won’t be ready in time for 32 

our hearings in the Keys, which are next week. 33 

 34 

I don’t guess there’s any need to do anything, other than to 35 

make sure that you all consider holding some hearings down 36 

there. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  Your hearings are ahead of ours and our hearings 39 

have been noticed already.  Is it too late to get a meeting down 40 

there within the timeframe, Rick? 41 

 42 

DR. LEARD:  I’ll let Shep speak to this.  I was conferring with 43 

Gregg back in November, Gregg Waugh with the South Atlantic 44 

Council staff, and as David said, they were going to do those 45 

hearings. 46 

 47 

Recently, just last week, I found out that Gregg wasn’t 48 
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intending to do the Gulf sections down there and so we were 1 

considering whether or not to have public hearings down there in 2 

May, in conjunction with our other public hearings, but in 3 

talking with Mr. Grimes, since we will be meeting in Key West to 4 

take final action in June, that meeting should suffice for 5 

having public comment in the Keys area.  At this particular 6 

time, we don’t plan on holding any additional hearings in the 7 

Keys area at this time. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  Shep, you feel the public comment at the meeting 10 

is sufficient or we should possibly have a separate afternoon 11 

meeting on this? 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s entirely up to you.  The only legal 14 

requirement is that you hold public hearings in the development 15 

of FMPs and plan amendments.  If you had a hearing down there, 16 

you’ve satisfied the requirements of the law. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  I think all we have to do is remind staff that we 19 

might have to allow a little extra time for this public comment 20 

period if it’s going to encompass this document with it and 21 

explanation of the document.  Rick, do we have much else to do 22 

with this document? 23 

 24 

DR. LEARD:  We’ve got a lot to do with it, but I don’t think 25 

anything for you to do right now. 26 

 27 

MR. FISCHER:  For this council.  We don’t have to accept it as a 28 

public hearing draft and we just recommend that you all work in 29 

an expedient manner? 30 

 31 

DR. LEARD:  I think you need to pass a motion that would allow 32 

staff to make the changes and to complete the document and take 33 

it public hearings as scheduled. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  We’ll entertain a motion, based on these 36 

recommendations. 37 

 38 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’ll make that motion. 39 

 40 

MR. FISCHER:  Tom has made that motion.  He used pretty much 41 

verbatim what Rick said, to give staff latitude in getting this 42 

done, based on a lot of our consensus decisions.  This is 43 

seconded by Joe. 44 

 45 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, I feel compelled to comment.  It seems 46 

to me this document is going to undergo significant changes from 47 

what we saw.  We had enough difficulty trying to struggle 48 
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through as to how to handle the portions going in and I’m not 1 

even sure I understand those.  My reaction is that it’s not 2 

ready for public hearings and so I’m going to vote against the 3 

motion. 4 

 5 

MR. FISCHER:  The document is not ready for public hearing.  I 6 

was hoping with Rick working with the entire team that it is 7 

ready within a few weeks. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  The public hearings are something on the order of two 10 

weeks away. 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  That is correct.  Rick, do you realistically think 13 

you could have it ready? 14 

 15 

DR. LEARD:  I believe so.  We can have it in to where the 16 

alternatives are scaled out.  We may not have all of the social 17 

and economic and other impacts fully completed and whatnot, but 18 

I think we will have a sufficient document that the public can 19 

comment on as to what the impacts would be. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  Based on that, we do have a motion on the board.  22 

Do we have any further discussion on it? 23 

 24 

MR. ANSON:  Mr. Grimes, is there any requirement for getting the 25 

document out to the public in advance of these meetings?  Is 26 

there any certain timeline or restrictions on that? 27 

 28 

MR. GRIMES:  No and to sort of get to Mr. Gill’s inquiry, 29 

traditionally you have waited to go to public hearings -- Most 30 

often you have waited to go to public hearings until you had a 31 

very final draft of the document, but that is not something 32 

that’s legally required.  You’re just required to have these 33 

hearings to help in the development of them, which is exactly 34 

what we would be doing.   35 

 36 

I don’t have any particular problem with going out with this, 37 

but I would also add that I was just in discussions with Dr. 38 

Branstetter and Dr. Crabtree and we’re looking back over the 39 

Mackerel Committee Report from last time and there are a bunch 40 

of actions and decisions that were made in there that just 41 

didn’t get into the document that’s before us at this meeting. 42 

 43 

Some of the decisions made in that committee are different than 44 

the decisions that we made at this meeting and my position is 45 

going to be these are the most recent ones.  The decisions we 46 

made this time are going to take precedence over those, but we 47 

have a lot of the rewritten alternatives and restructured things 48 
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that should be fairly easy to just plug into the existing draft 1 

of the mackerel document. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s my understanding as well.  There’s been 4 

quite a bit of work done that’s just not in here and so I’m 5 

going to vote for the motion, because the statute requires us to 6 

get this done.   7 

 8 

Steve, I’m going to ask you to please herd on this.  This 9 

document should not be in the shape it’s in.  This should be 10 

much further along than it is and so I would urge you to make 11 

sure the IPT convenes next week in a face-to-face meeting and 12 

that we get this thing straightened out. 13 

 14 

I don’t know what’s happened here, but this is just -- It’s just 15 

unacceptable at this status and I’ll talk to my own staff too, 16 

but we’ve got to make sure this gets done.  I’m going to support 17 

the motion, because I think we need to get this done and move on 18 

with it and hopefully staff can get this into much better shape 19 

than it is now for these hearings. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m uncomfortable sending this out to public 22 

hearing at this moment.  Public scoping maybe, but that’s 23 

already been done, but public hearing on a document that we have 24 

not even seen with all the nuances and additions added on to it 25 

in text, I’m really uncomfortable with it myself.  Trying to 26 

explain this to the public when we don’t even know what it is is 27 

going to be very difficult. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  Roy, are we at the very end of our timeline and 30 

can we go back two months on this, to the next meeting? 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  If we don’t take final action on this until the 33 

August meeting, it will be very difficult to ensure that it’s 34 

implemented by the end of this year, which I believe is what the 35 

statute requires us to do.  36 

 37 

Maybe that is just the way it’s going to be, but I think we need 38 

to make every effort to take action on this in June, which is 39 

why -- I understand and I don’t disagree with you, Bill, but I 40 

think we ought to go ahead and have the public hearings and 41 

hopefully staff gets this straightened out and we can come in 42 

and finish it up in June.   43 

 44 

If that’s not possible, then we can wait until August and if we 45 

want to do another round of public hearings between the June 46 

meeting and the August meeting, we can do that. 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to make the remark that I was at 1 

the SSC meeting.  I was only there for part of it, but the 2 

Mackerel SSC had actually already left or the greatest majority 3 

of them had and they actually wanted to have some time to digest 4 

all the information. 5 

 6 

It was my understanding that there was a lot of things that they 7 

still had some concerns with.  Steve later received a phone call 8 

and Rick said that was not an option, that they had to take 9 

action.  Therefore, whoever was left actually went ahead and set 10 

the ABC on king and Spanish, but I think they really -- They 11 

chose what they chose.  12 

 13 

They was forced pretty much to do it, because of the time 14 

constraints, and I don’t know how we adjust for that or if 15 

there’s anything that you can -- When you’re setting TACs and 16 

ABCs and ACLs and AMs, our SSC really should have enough time 17 

scheduled and the information before them so that they can 18 

review all of this information before they then send it forward 19 

to us. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  Do we have any other discussion? 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  I call the question, Mr. Chairman. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  The question is called.  We’ll vote on calling the 26 

question.  Is anyone opposed to calling the question?  No one is 27 

opposed to it and the question is called.  The motion is on the 28 

board and we’re going to vote on the motion as is, whether we 29 

take this to the public with changes that will be made over the 30 

next two weeks.  Do we have anyone opposed to taking this out to 31 

the public?  All in favor.  Do we have a head count?  All in 32 

favor.  The motion passes by a vote of eight to seven. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Fischer, does that complete your committee 35 

action? 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  Does anyone want a revote on this?  Okay. 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  Do you want me to simplify it?  I didn’t vote. 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  Neither did Damon and that’s why we had fifteen 42 

votes.  We will vote in the normal method. 43 

 44 

MR. GRIMES:  I had to throw this in, but procedurally though, I 45 

think you should have a motion to reconsider, because you have 46 

announced that it carried and all of that. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I will move to reconsider, because I was on the 1 

prevailing side. 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’ll second it. 4 

 5 

MR. FISCHER:  It is seconded and we shall vote on reconsidering 6 

this motion.  All in favor of reconsidering; opposed.  The 7 

motion carries.   8 

 9 

We are now voting on the motion.  All in favor of sending 10 

Amendment 18 to public hearings with the changes that the 11 

council made and editorial license to staff, raise your hand; 12 

all opposed to sending this to public hearing.   13 

 14 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s an eight-to-eight tie. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion fails. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  The motion fails. 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  I thought under Roberts Rules that the chair would 21 

vote to break a tie or make a tie. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I did.  I voted and made a tie. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  I finally voted, because this document is certainly 26 

not ready to go anywhere to the public.  If it’s in the shape 27 

it’s in today, I don’t think it’s going to be where it needs to 28 

be in two weeks. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The council has voted. 31 

 32 

MR. CUPKA:  I assume then there’s no need for a joint committee 33 

meeting at our June council meeting then?  We will for Spiny 34 

Lobster, I hope, but not for Mackerel then, correct? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ll still do it for Spiny Lobster.  Mr. 37 

Fischer, does that complete your committee action? 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  I will go back to the agenda and hopefully -- We 40 

discussed the South Atlantic and we discussed the SSC and we 41 

gave our recommendations and we did not have any Other Business. 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  If we’re not going to have the joint committee 44 

meeting in June, I assume we will have a joint committee meeting 45 

in August, at our August meeting, and vote this up then? 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would need to ask David. 48 
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 1 

MR. CUPKA:  Our next earliest meeting would be September and so 2 

August would be the earliest that I guess we could get both 3 

councils together. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  Otherwise, if we don’t have a joint -- I don’t 6 

know if we have any disagreements at this point.  Otherwise, we 7 

end up voting this up to submit separately, which I guess we 8 

could do, but if there any things that need to be reconciled, we 9 

would have to do that in August and then we would vote it up -- 10 

I think the South Atlantic can vote this up at their June 11 

meeting and be finished with it and then the Gulf could vote it 12 

up in August.  Would that work, Shepherd? 13 

 14 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, I think that’s fine.  I guess maybe I’m a 15 

little confused on this, but it’s my understanding that the 16 

joint committee meeting was just to resolve some of the issues, 17 

which outstanding were the cobia dividing line and maybe that 18 

issue has been resolved now, but you can meet and discuss that. 19 

 20 

You’re going to have to do it before everybody takes final 21 

action and you’ve agreed on it and just because you haven’t gone 22 

to public hearing, it certainly does not preclude meeting with 23 

the South Atlantic committee and making a decision or discussing 24 

those issues in advance.  Since you both meet back to back in 25 

the Keys in the month of June, it seems like a very opportune 26 

time to do that. 27 

 28 

MR. CUPKA:  That’s exactly why we set it up that way, so that we 29 

could meet jointly.  My only concern would be if we go ahead and 30 

approve it in June and then for some reason when you all get 31 

ready to approve it if there are any differences to be 32 

reconciled, then it doesn’t seem like it could be approved.  Is 33 

that right, Roy? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  That is right and that’s an argument that we go 36 

forward with the joint meeting in June, to make sure that we’ve 37 

ironed out and reconciled all these differences and then the 38 

South Atlantic could vote it up at their June meeting and we 39 

would come back and vote it up in August. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Sounds like a plan.  I guess at this moment in 42 

time we are still planning to have the joint meeting, unless 43 

something changes between now and then.  We are going to 44 

continue on through lunch.  It is twelve o’clock and when is 45 

lunch going to be available?  Let’s take about a ten or fifteen-46 

minute break just to get our lunch and come back in here and 47 

then we’ll start in with Sustainable Fisheries. 48 
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 1 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 2 

 3 

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES/ECOSYSTEM COMMITTEE REPORT 4 

 5 

DR. ABELE:  I am acting chair for this committee and I want to 6 

thank Carrie and Steven for organizing and getting all the 7 

information together.  It’s a very long document.  It’s about 8 

275 pages dealing with the Generic Annual Catch Limit and 9 

Accountability Measures. 10 

 11 

Rather than, as Chairman Shipp said, go through a lot of the 12 

discussion, which most of you were here for, I was going to 13 

focus on the committee recommendations and then finish with 14 

Action Item VIII for consideration by the full council. 15 

 16 

If I can now begin, in Actions 1.4 and 1.5, by unanimous voice 17 

vote, the committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 18 

1.4 the preferred alternative be Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 19 

is to remove yellowtail snapper from the Reef Fish Fishery 20 

Management Plan. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 23 

discussion?  Any objections?  The motion passes. 24 

 25 

DR. ABELE:  By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 26 

and I so move, that in Action 1.5 that the preferred alternative 27 

be Alternative 2, remove mutton snapper from the Reef Fish 28 

Fishery Management Plan. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 31 

discussion?  Is there any objection?  I hear none and the motion 32 

passes. 33 

 34 

DR. ABELE:  By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 35 

and I so move, that in Action 2, Alternative 3, Option c be an 36 

additional preferred alternative.  Alternative 3 is remove 37 

species in the list below that have average annual landings of 38 

15,000 pounds or less, except for those that, and this is Option 39 

c, have a discernable trend in landings that may indicate a 40 

change in status.  Chairman Shipp, do I read the species? 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, go ahead and read the species for the 43 

record, Dr. Abele. 44 

 45 

DR. ABELE:  Fourteen species qualify for removal under the above 46 

motion: anchor tilefish, goldface tilefish, blackline tilefish, 47 

red hind, rock hind, yellowfin grouper, yellowmouth grouper, 48 



141 

 

misty grouper, schoolmaster, dog snapper, mahogany snapper, 1 

cubera snapper, blackfin snapper, and queen snapper. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  A couple of things.  First of all, Trish forwarded 6 

via email an input from Carrie relative to these species 7 

suggested for removal and what it did to the species groupings 8 

and so I would recommend that to your consideration, so you can 9 

see that impact. 10 

 11 

Secondly, during committee, Dr. Crabtree raised the issue of the 12 

identification difficulties with some species and so we wanted 13 

to address at council whether we wanted to consider that.  14 

Looking at that from my point of view, Alternative 3b, which is 15 

the companion to 3c under consideration, apparently affects two, 16 

yellowmouth and cubera.  We talked about in committee what they 17 

might be confused with. 18 

 19 

I would like to propose an amendment that we amend the committee 20 

motion by including Alternative 3, Option b as a preferred 21 

alternative. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Can we get someone to put that on the board? 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  It’s amendment that we add Alternative 3, Option b as 26 

a preferred alternative. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would that be instead of Option c or in 29 

addition to? 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  It’s add Option b and so we would have two preferred 32 

alternatives, Option b and Option c. 33 

 34 

DR. ABELE:  While that is being put up there, Carrie has given 35 

us a couple of options on the sub-complex and I don’t know if 36 

this will take care of them or not. 37 

 38 

MR. ATRAN:  I was going to wait until we get to the species 39 

grouping section to go over those slides that Andy Strelcheck 40 

put together, but if you want, we can do those now. 41 

 42 

DR. ABELE:  No. 43 

 44 

MR. GRIMES:  I think Dr. Crabtree is going to make this same 45 

point, but I think we ought to elaborate on what species we 46 

think may be misidentified, because it seems like --  47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We mentioned cubera and yellowmouth grouper. 1 

 2 

MR. GRIMES:  Those are the only ones? 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think those are the only two.  The 5 

yellowmouth grouper, some people don’t even consider it a 6 

separate species and cubera, it’s confused with gray snapper 7 

when they’re juveniles. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  Those are the two in Alternative 3, Option b. 10 

 11 

DR. ABELE:  Are we going to put those species listed under 12 

Option b?  I thought that was the recommendation. 13 

 14 

MR. GRIMES:  I would recommend that we do that. 15 

 16 

DR. ABELE:  Would you accept a friendly amendment? 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  I just think it helps identify what the amendment is. 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  Under the Option b, if you would add cubera snapper 21 

and was it yellowmouth grouper? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yellowmouth grouper.  24 

 25 

MR. GRIMES:  I guess we do realize that those are already 26 

included under the committee’s preferred alternative. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 29 

 30 

MR. GRIMES:  It’s my understanding that b was not going to be in 31 

lieu of, but it’s going to be in addition to, which effectively 32 

makes absolutely no change. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s redundant. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  I don’t see it that way.  Option b retains 37 

yellowmouth and cubera in the management unit and Option c would 38 

remove them.  The intent is that they’re two exceptions to 39 

Option c. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Why not just modify Option c by deleting the 42 

yellowmouth and cubera if you want to keep them in the 43 

management? 44 

 45 

DR. ABELE:  That would take an amendment to the motion.  It 46 

would say fourteen species qualify, although because of 47 

identification problems, yellowmouth and cubera -- I don’t know 48 
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how you want to phrase that, but it could be put into one 1 

motion. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let me make sure I understand your intent, Bob.  4 

You would like to retain cubera and yellowmouth grouper?  Is 5 

that correct? 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Correct. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It seems to me that we could easily do that, as 10 

Dr. Abele suggested, by changing the verbiage in Option c to 11 

twelve species qualify and delete yellowmouth and -- 12 

 13 

DR. ABELE:  No, fourteen qualify and then you would say, at the 14 

end, excluding those two, because of identification problems. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct and so let’s do it that way.  17 

Trish, just add at the very end, “due to identification 18 

problems, yellowmouth and cubera are excluded from this list”.  19 

Does that get us where we want to be? 20 

 21 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes and then just delete Mr. Gill’s motion. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct.  Basically, we have an amended 24 

committee motion which is on the board.  Steve, did you want to 25 

say something? 26 

 27 

MR. ATRAN:  There is a list of species in the middle of page 2 28 

on the committee report that were identified as species that are 29 

subject to misidentification.  It does include a few more, such 30 

as lesser amberjack, yellowfin grouper, and actually I guess 31 

those aren’t on the list of removal anyway. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Correct.  Let’s vote on the amended motion as 34 

on the board.  All in favor of the motion signify by saying aye; 35 

opposed.  Hearing none, the motion passes.  36 

 37 

DR. ABELE:  By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 38 

and I so move, that in Action 5 that Alternative 2 be the 39 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is to establish an initial 40 

estimate of ACL/ACT based on the spreadsheet method, followed by 41 

a review of the Socioeconomic Panel. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 44 

discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I wasn’t objecting, but we passed over the 47 

species grouping issue and we talked about coming back to that 48 
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and Trish sent out some -- Remember the IFQ program?  I think we 1 

need to go back to that before we go any further. 2 

 3 

DR. ABELE:  Steven, what is the recommended?  You sent it looks 4 

like three different species groups and is there one of those 5 

that is recommended? 6 

 7 

MR. ATRAN:  The first slide is the current preferred alternative 8 

for species groupings and you already have that in the briefing 9 

book.  The second slide, staff was asked to try to accommodate 10 

the IFQ species, group them together, and so the second group 11 

takes species that are in IFQ aggregations and puts them 12 

together.   13 

 14 

You can see shallow-water grouper has two additional species 15 

added to it, scamp and black grouper.  Deepwater grouper has 16 

yellowedge grouper added to it and the tilefish have the golden 17 

tilefish added to that group. 18 

 19 

Then the third slide is those modifications with the species 20 

removed that are in the motion that you just adopted.  I’m not 21 

sure if cubera snapper and yellowmouth will have to be put back 22 

into this.  I’m not sure where they stand.  I know blueline 23 

tilefish would still be in there.  I need to double check 24 

something with Steve in just a second. 25 

 26 

The other thing I wanted to point out though on this slide, if 27 

you look on the left-hand slide, each of those groupings now has 28 

a species that has or will have an assessment.  The previous 29 

council preferred alternative was that for groups that have an 30 

assessed species, the assessed species is the indicator species. 31 

 32 

Under this setup, for tilefish, for example, golden tilefish is 33 

going to have an assessment and so we would get an ACL only for 34 

the golden tilefish and the other species would be along for the 35 

ride.  They would be open when golden is open and closed when 36 

they are. 37 

 38 

Shallow-water grouper, black grouper has an assessment and so 39 

that would be the indicator for scamp and deepwater grouper will 40 

be getting an assessment on yellowedge and so we would only need 41 

an ACL for yellowedge and the other groupers there would just be 42 

along for the ride.  I think Steve Branstetter just said 43 

something about the tilefish grouping is not correct. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  Goldface we removed. 46 

 47 

MR. ATRAN:  Goldface would be removed and so that would just be 48 
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golden and blueline with the golden as the indicator species. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, what do you want to do with Action 3?  The 3 

last sentence says that council and NMFS staff were asked to 4 

develop alternatives to address this issue.  What do you wish us 5 

to do at this time? 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me that where that leaves is that to 8 

maintain the integrity of the IFQ program, we would choose 9 

Alternative 4 and I guess this third slide would be where we 10 

are, because it removes some species, with a couple of 11 

corrections, that goldface tilefish were removed and then under 12 

shallow-water grouper, we’re not removing yellowmouth and so it 13 

would be in there with black grouper and scamp. 14 

 15 

Then if we choose Alternative 4, that leaves the IFQ groupings 16 

intact, except that we’ve removed some species.  Is that 17 

correct, Steve? 18 

 19 

MR. ATRAN:  I believe so.  Cubera snapper will also go -- Well, 20 

cubera snapper will probably get an individual ACL.  It was part 21 

of the shallow-water snapper complex, which right now has 22 

disappeared completely. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  But I don’t think this changes any of that.  This 25 

just changes the ones that are part of the IFQ programs, right? 26 

 27 

MR. ATRAN:  That’s correct. 28 

 29 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me, Bob, that we would now change our 30 

preferred alternative to Alternative 4 in the handout that was 31 

distributed to us. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is this in Action 3? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  You say we’re choosing a preferred alternative 38 

and could we put it on the board as a motion? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll make the motion that we select Alternative 4 41 

under Action 3 as our preferred alternative, with the 42 

corrections that we just discussed. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  While we’re getting the motion up, did we not retain 45 

the Preferred Alternative 5, which was the indicator species 46 

thing that Steven addressed?   47 

 48 
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I think the intention of your motion is not to change that, if 1 

that’s still extant, but to just revise Alternative 4 and retain 2 

it as a preferred and retain the existing preferred Alternative 3 

5, Option b, as a preferred as well.  Is that correct or was the 4 

intent of your motion something different? 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  I believe I intend what you just said I intended. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Which basically is just having two preferred 9 

alternatives, if I understand it. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  I think what he’s saying is we revise Alternative 4 12 

to reflect the handout and that encompasses all that. 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think what I need to do is revise my motion and 15 

move that we revise Preferred Alternative 4 to reflect the 16 

groupings in the handout that Steven just went over with us, 17 

with the corrections that we noted.  Did I get it right with 18 

that one, Bob? 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Harlon and I didn’t get that handout, by the way, 21 

but I have a question for Steve.  Steve, there was some 22 

discussion on the tilefish and so since I don’t have that in 23 

front of me, did you all go in and break out -- Some tilefish 24 

lives in the mud bottom and some lives in the sand or do you all 25 

still have those all grouped together? 26 

 27 

MR. ATRAN:  The way this is set up, they’ll all be grouped 28 

together.  However, we’re going to end up with just two tilefish 29 

species, the golden tilefish and the blueline tilefish.  I do 30 

believe they have somewhat different habitats, as you indicated. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  Steve, am I correct that the real difference here 33 

is that we’re adding yellowedge back into the deepwater grouper 34 

group and golden tile back in with the tilefish?  That’s what I 35 

see as the real difference here. 36 

 37 

MR. ATRAN:  Yes and black grouper and scamp are being grouped 38 

together in shallow-water grouper. 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To that point, if I may, is yellowedge really a 41 

deepwater grouper and the reason I’m asking is because my first 42 

husband was a bandit fisherman and he caught them and he didn’t 43 

fish out like where you would expect longliners and all. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  They’re pretty deep water. 46 

 47 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Are they? 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes.  Roy, look on the board.  Is that what you 2 

want? 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, except that it’s with the modifications in 5 

the handout distributed and the corrections to that that we 6 

discussed, based on species removed from the FMU.  Does that 7 

seem clear?  Mr. Gill, feel free to edit this and help me here. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  It might be helpful, Roy, if we described the handout 10 

distributed as the title of “Alternative 4 Modified PowerPoint”.  11 

A week from now, I won’t have the foggiest idea what we did and 12 

it will point me in the right direction. 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess the main question is, is this clear to 15 

Steve?  Steve, is this clear to you what we’re doing? 16 

 17 

MR. ATRAN:  Yes, I understand exactly what you’re doing. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I haven’t heard that.  I think we’re ready to 20 

take action here.  I haven’t heard anything that definitive all 21 

day.  We have the motion on the board and Steven Atran 22 

understands it and any objections to the motion?  Hearing none, 23 

the motion passes.   24 

 25 

That takes care of Action 3.  I don’t think we have anything in 26 

Action 4 that we need to deal with and so that brings us back to 27 

where we were before and Dr. Abele. 28 

 29 

DR. ABELE:  Mr. Chair, I can’t remember, but I thought we might 30 

have voted on the spreadsheet method or we didn’t? 31 

 32 

MR. ATRAN:  There’s a note in here I had made to the committee 33 

chair and I guess I was reminding myself.  Under Action 4, the 34 

ABC control rule, in Tier 1, as you recall, the SSC, when they 35 

met, modified the range of percentages for uncertainty for Tier 36 

1 from 15 to 45 percent, the original values, to 30 to 50 37 

percent. 38 

 39 

Tier 2 is still set at 15 to 45 percent.  Do you want to leave 40 

that there or do you think it would be appropriate for us to go 41 

ahead and modify the options in Tier 2 to also represent the 42 

change? 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think the advice of the SSC was to be 45 

consistent and make them all 30 to 50.  Am I understanding your 46 

question correctly? 47 

 48 
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MR. ATRAN:  Yes, you are.  I didn’t really get a feel from the 1 

SSC about Tier 2.  They were focused on Tier 1.  Right now, Tier 2 

2 says that we would produce a probability distribution function 3 

and then select a risk level of either 15 percent, 25 percent, 4 

35 percent, or 45 percent.  What I would suggest is that we 5 

replace that with three options for 30, 40, or 50.  That would 6 

be consistent with the range that’s in Tier 1. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would accept that motion.  Mr. Gill, are you 9 

making that motion? 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  I didn’t listen that carefully.  I’ll make that 12 

motion and basically, we’re trying to do what the SSC 13 

recommended and make it consistent in all tiers. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct and according to Steve Atran, 16 

what we would do is have 30, 40, and 50 as the three 17 

alternatives.  Is that correct, Steve? 18 

 19 

MR. ATRAN:  That’s correct. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We need to get that motion on the board.  22 

Steven, can you help Trish?  I think that’s what we intended.  23 

Any discussion on this motion?  Any objections?  The motion 24 

passes.  We’ll try again on 5 and did we pass -- 25 

 26 

DR. ABELE:  According to the screen, it was passed and so we’re 27 

now on Action 6. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Steve, if you would, between now and the next 30 

council meeting, this -- I had a copy and I assume where it says 31 

Assessed Number 1 and Number 2, Most Vulnerable, that that’s the 32 

P* and could you provide all of us with a copy of what all is in 33 

those lists as to what’s under 1 and what’s under 2?  If you 34 

could, I would appreciate it. 35 

 36 

MR. ATRAN:  You’re asking for the values of the PSA analysis? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Can you do that, Steven? 39 

 40 

MR. ATRAN:  Yes, we can. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Dr. Abele. 43 

 44 

DR. ABELE:  Action 6 is by unanimous voice vote, the committee 45 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 6 that Alternative 2 46 

be the preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is adopt the base 47 

generic framework procedure as provided below. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 2 

discussion?  Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 3 

 4 

DR. ABELE:  Under Action 7.3.2, which was pointed out was 5 

mislabeled in the original document as 2.7, just for your 6 

information, by a unanimous voice vote, the committee 7 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 2.7.3.2 to merge 8 

subalternatives 2a and 2b.  Alternative 2a is South Atlantic 9 

equals 98 percent of ABC and Gulf equals 2 percent of ABC, 10 

established by using catch history from 1987 to 2001.  11 

Alternative 2b is South Atlantic equals 98 percent of ABC and 12 

Gulf equals 2 percent of ABC, established by using 50 percent of 13 

catch history from 1987 to 2001 and 50 percent of catch history 14 

from 1999 to 2001. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  This motion was subsequently outdone by removing 19 

Alternative 2 and so I don’t think we need to consider it, but 20 

I’m not quite sure how we do it procedurally.  There’s no sense 21 

in spending any time on this and we ought to move on to the next 22 

motion. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  You can always move to consider it and reject 25 

it. 26 

 27 

DR. ABELE:  It would then be considered and rejected, would it 28 

not? 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  I’ll offer a substitute motion that we move this 31 

motion to Considered but Rejected. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess I’m still somewhat confused and I guess 34 

Carrie is gone.  Steve, I guess my concern is we removed this 35 

one because the understanding was in this alternative that all 36 

of Monroe County recreational landings were put in the South 37 

Atlantic and so it may have overstated the South Atlantic 38 

landings. 39 

 40 

What I’m not exactly clear on is how it was handled in the other 41 

alternatives and whether they correctly partitioned this stuff, 42 

because it’s not clear to me whether they’re able to partition 43 

the recreational landings in Monroe County to the Gulf or South 44 

Atlantic.  Do you know the answer to this? 45 

 46 

MR. ATRAN:  It was my understanding -- I may be wrong, but I 47 

thought the MRFSS dataset provided enough resolution to be able 48 
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to determine where these were landed. 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m okay and we can go ahead with this, but when 3 

we get to June, to the next meeting, I would like to make sure 4 

we have clarity and so I’ll ask NMFS Steve and council staff 5 

Steve to make sure we know exactly how the landings were 6 

partitioned and what we’re looking at next time we come in, 7 

because I got confused with it. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  With that, the motion on the board to 10 

Considered but Rejected, any objections to that?  Hearing none, 11 

the motion passes. 12 

 13 

DR. ABELE:  Mr. Chairman, the next one is Alternative 2 to 14 

Considered and Rejected and so what I assume is that since both 15 

options were just considered and rejected that this next one is 16 

unnecessary.  No? 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Actually, it’s the other way around.  This one 19 

is necessary. 20 

 21 

DR. ABELE:  By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 22 

and I so move, that in Action 2.7.3.2 to move Alternative 2 to 23 

the Considered but Rejected section.  Alternative 2 is establish 24 

a jurisdictional allocation for yellowtail snapper based on the 25 

most recent stock assessment for the South Atlantic and Gulf of 26 

Mexico (SEDAR-3, 2003). 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  29 

Objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 30 

 31 

DR. ABELE:  Alternative 6, by a unanimous voice vote, the 32 

committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 2.7.3.2, to 33 

move Alternative 6 to the Considered but Rejected Section.  34 

Alternative 6 is to establish a jurisdictional apportionment 35 

based on the Florida Keys (Monroe County) jurisdictional 36 

boundary between the Gulf and South Atlantic Councils for 37 

yellowtail snapper acceptable biological catch, ABC, based on 38 

the following method:  South Atlantic equals 71 percent of ABC 39 

and Gulf equals 29 percent of ABC, established by using catch 40 

history from 2005 to 2009. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  43 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 44 

 45 

DR. ABELE:  Action 7.3.4, Recreational and Commercial Sector 46 

Allocations for Black Grouper in the Gulf of Mexico, by a 47 

unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so move, 48 
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that in Action 2.7.3.4 that Alternative 2 be the preferred 1 

alternative.  Alternative is using the Gulf Council’s allocated 2 

acceptable biological catch, ABC, and divide the annual catch 3 

limit between the commercial and recreational sector based on 4 

average landings from 1986 to 2008.  Recreational equals 18 5 

percent of ACL and commercial equals 82 percent of ACL. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Discussion?  8 

 9 

MR. SAPP:  I’ve got a couple of issues with this.  We’ve decided 10 

to move forward with our allocation discussions and included in 11 

the discussions are going to be black grouper and my other issue 12 

that I’ve got with this is, once again, we’re doing what we’ve 13 

been doing for the last five years and we’re agreeing to use 14 

historical catch data to determine what the allocation is going 15 

to be without referring to our principles and guidelines that 16 

suggest there are some other methodologies that might be 17 

appropriate. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I understand what you’re saying, Ed, but 20 

unfortunately, for black grouper for sure, we don’t have any of 21 

those other analyses before us and we’re taking action on this 22 

in one meeting and there’s no other way to do sector-specific 23 

ACLs without splitting it and so I don’t see that we have 24 

anything else to base it on at this time. 25 

 26 

MR. SAPP:  Is it required that we do the allocation within this 27 

amendment that I know is on a tight timeline and allow ourselves 28 

the time to go through the process where we can actually see if 29 

any of that other data is available that we might possibly use? 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  If you want to have sector-specific ACLs, it 32 

seems that you then have to decide how much each sector gets and 33 

so I think your only other alternative is to do a single ACL, 34 

but then that could result in the recreational fishery being 35 

shut down because the commercial fishery caught a lot of black 36 

grouper or vice versa. 37 

 38 

MR. SAPP:  If we go ahead and pass this the way that it’s been 39 

recommended here, will we have the opportunity to change that 40 

allocation as we go through the review process later in the 41 

council’s calendar? 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  Absolutely.  You can change any of these 44 

allocations. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Assane, do you still want to make a comment? 47 

 48 
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DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  Just a very quick, very brief one.  1 

Actually, the first one would be that these allocations here, 2 

given the relative speed of the amendments, will be used as the 3 

baseline when it comes the time for developing the allocation 4 

amendment. 5 

 6 

The second comment that I would like to make is that those other 7 

methods that you’ve outlined in the policy, you need to start 8 

somewhere.  You need some type of baseline to start from and 9 

that’s what this would provide to us. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Any objections?  12 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 13 

 14 

DR. ABELE:  By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 15 

and I so move, that in Action 7.4 that the preferred alternative 16 

be Alternative 2, Option a.  Alternative 2 is to set annual 17 

catch limits and optionally, annual catch targets, as indicated 18 

by the annual catch limit control rule selected in Section 2.5 19 

or as specified in Table 2.7.4.1.  Option a is the value 20 

specified in the ACL/ACT control rule will be the annual catch 21 

target and the annual catch limit equals ABC, unless otherwise 22 

specified by the council on a case-by-case basis.  23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 25 

discussion?  Objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 26 

 27 

DR. ABELE:  I’ll jump quickly to sector separation and then come 28 

back to the last item on Action 8 or do you want me to do Action 29 

8 first?   30 

 31 

On sector separation, there were a number of scenarios outlined 32 

and a spreadsheet provided that would allow user input to make 33 

any kind of shift that was desired and the committee felt that 34 

they wanted to hear input from the charterboat industry before 35 

making any recommendation. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We heard input and so does anyone want to make 38 

any motions? 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  I’m not looking to make a motion, Mr. Chairman, but I 41 

guess I would ask Dr. Bortone -- We had, at the last meeting, 42 

requested that this issue be -- We requested that it be put into 43 

a separate amendment and as Dr. Abele mentioned, there was 44 

considerable discussion at this meeting.  Could you advise 45 

whether or not there will be something coming back to relative 46 

to that issue at the next meeting relative to the amendment? 47 

 48 
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DR. DIAGNE:  As Mr. Gill mentioned, you passed a motion to have 1 

sector separation as a stand-alone amendment and obviously what 2 

Andy presented to you yesterday would supply some of the 3 

information that we need to develop this amendment. 4 

 5 

It is in development, but given the other deadlines in June, 6 

let’s say wanting to take final action on several amendments, as 7 

well as developing an options paper, if the council agrees, we 8 

would like to bring that in August, but if you absolutely want 9 

it in June, we will do our best. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  You’re heard Assane’s comments.  Unless we hear 12 

something further in the form of a motion, that will conclude 13 

your report and is that correct, Dr. Abele?  Does anyone want to 14 

discuss the timing of development of this separate plan 15 

amendment? 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We’ve heard from the industry and we have 18 

somewhat information and I think it’s time to put something in 19 

the document now, but I also think it’s time to have someone to 20 

have some type of -- That was a lot of information, very good 21 

information, from Andy and I just wish that there was some way 22 

that Andy could go up and down the coastline and give his 23 

presentation, because there’s going to be a lot of -- There’s a 24 

lot of people interested in this and I can see an awful lot of 25 

them being at the next council meeting. 26 

 27 

I would make a motion to go ahead and at least start your white 28 

paper or whatever, your options or scoping document or 29 

something, because it’s going to take a while.  You’re going to 30 

bring it to us and we’re going to look at it and we’re going to 31 

make some suggestions and it’s going to go back and forth.  I 32 

would just like to know how others feel about it around the 33 

table. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  I believe Andy has already been invited to attend 36 

a couple of charterboat association meetings and I expect he’ll 37 

be invited to attend some others and so he will do what he’s 38 

able to do.  I’m comfortable with coming back to this at the 39 

August meeting.  I think with the deadlines we have for June 40 

that that’s probably the best we can do. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Dr. Crabtree, I would suggest that he also 43 

accept invitations from recreational groups. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  We normally accept invitations from just about 46 

anyone to come meet and talk with them and so I’m sure he will. 47 

 48 
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MR. SAPP:  I agree that it’s a little bit premature for us to 1 

begin development of an amendment.  I want to first hear back -- 2 

Hopefully we’ve provided enough information to the charterboat 3 

industry that their membership can decide whether they think 4 

it’s a good idea or whether it’s not and we’ve gotten input back 5 

from the folks that were able to view the presentation here 6 

firsthand, but that’s a fairly big industry. 7 

 8 

The other thing is that I’ve heard that the way to logically 9 

proceed with this is to run the pilot program and see what the 10 

results of that are and then move forward from that point. 11 

 12 

I don’t know in terms of timing when you actually initiate the 13 

process of an amendment, but it seems like it’s pretty premature 14 

at this point and to the point that you just made about Andy 15 

making presentations to the charterboat guys, I would agree with 16 

what you said that somehow we need to extend that invitation to 17 

some of the private boat recreational guys.   18 

 19 

If we don’t, the word is going to get out to those forum folks 20 

that National Marine Fisheries Service is trying to sell this 21 

industry on sector separation and I would rather us not have to 22 

go down that path.  If there’s anything we can do for outreach 23 

towards the rest of that sector, I would encourage us to do 24 

that. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’re not going to be inviting the groups.  27 

They’re going to be inviting us and so, Ed, you’re an associate 28 

of CCA and if you would like Andy to come talk to CCA about 29 

this, I would encourage you to go back and talk to your folks 30 

and then call Andy and try to work something out. 31 

 32 

A couple other points.  We’ve already made a decision to start 33 

work on a plan amendment.  We passed that motion at the last 34 

meeting and so that’s done.  We’re going to develop a plan 35 

amendment and with respect to the pilot programs, those are to 36 

test days at sea and an IFQ program.  That’s wholly separate 37 

from sector separation and so the pilot programs aren’t testing 38 

sector separation.  They’re testing other things. 39 

 40 

MR. PERRET:  Sort of in line with what Ed was saying.  This 41 

meeting is in this Alabama/Florida area and the next council 42 

meeting is going to be in south Florida.  We’ve had 43 

representation at this meeting from all five states, but there 44 

are a lot of players involved in this potential measure that we 45 

may get into with this sector separation and I would hope we 46 

would have as much coverage as we can and as much outreach as we 47 

can to inform people. 48 
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 1 

Those of us that have been sitting around here for a while 2 

remember the moratorium on the charterboats.  The meeting I 3 

think was in Mobile and the Lieutenant Governor of a state, who 4 

became Governor, came and testified because charterboat 5 

fishermen in that state didn’t know anything about what we had 6 

done and we changed the rules for a while so others could 7 

qualify.  Hopefully we can get as much outreach as we can 8 

throughout the entire Gulf of Mexico to all the segments that 9 

are involved. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Remind me again, where are our meetings? 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next one is in Key West and then Austin. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Looking at for the industry, the least expensive 16 

and easiest to get to, is that going to be June or August? 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  August I would think would be the least 19 

expensive.  Key West is a little pricey and dicey.  I think that 20 

concludes that part of it and so we need to go back to Action 8, 21 

Accountability Measures.  Is that correct, Dr. Abele? 22 

 23 

DR. ABELE:  That’s correct.  Since I’m not chair -- 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  There was an email sent out a few minutes ago 26 

which has some work that staff did trying to simplify this 27 

section a little bit.  I haven’t had time to really look at it 28 

myself. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I haven’t either.  Steven, do you have 31 

something you can present to us? 32 

 33 

MR. ATRAN:  No, I haven’t seen that email.  However, Carrie and 34 

I were going over the alternatives in this section and given the 35 

confusion from yesterday’s discussion, although staff usually 36 

doesn’t make recommendations, we thought it might be useful, at 37 

least as a starting point, to provide some staff recommendations 38 

and so I provided some to Dr. Abele and I’m prepared to go over 39 

those on the screen if you would like. 40 

 41 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s one way we could go, but the email that was 42 

sent around or the file that was sent around in email is 43 

entitled “Simplified AM Alternatives, 411211” and this is 44 

something Peter Hood had sent to me last night. 45 

 46 

It just reworks everything in Action 8 and instead of distilling 47 

it into all those little separate parts that everybody has such 48 
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trouble comprehending, this just lays out some greatly 1 

simplified alternatives and I think, based on the way it’s gone 2 

the last couple of meetings, I think this is what you should be 3 

-- 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t have it either.  Is there some way you 6 

can get it projected on the board or a hard copy? 7 

 8 

MR. ATRAN:  I believe that’s a file I put together.  I need a 9 

few minutes to find it on my computer, but I have it somewhere 10 

here. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s take a minute or two to see if we can all 13 

find it. 14 

 15 

MR. GILL:  Steve or Roy or whomever, what this suggestion is to 16 

throw out everything in Alternative 8 that we have in the 17 

document currently and it replaces it with what we have here?  18 

Do I understand that correctly? 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  That is correct and this does not contain the full 21 

range of everything that was contained in all those prior 22 

actions and alternatives, but this distills it into just a few 23 

choices that have all of those elements put together. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Thank you for that, Shep.  Do you envision -- I 26 

haven’t read it yet.  I’ve got it, but I haven’t read it.  Do 27 

you envision that this will suffice without the need for an 28 

immediate go back and change it or is this a stop-gap measure?   29 

 30 

Are we looking at something that could be conceivably used as 31 

part of the document and I’m not talking the tweaking and 32 

modifying, but I’m talking about knowing that we have to go back 33 

in and change it and this will get us through the deadline.  I’m 34 

trying to establish the relevance of the new document. 35 

 36 

MR. GRIMES:  If I understand that correctly, I would say yes.  37 

By that, I mean I would take everything out that you have in the 38 

document now relative to accountability measures and the 39 

different actions and alternatives that are laid out and you can 40 

plug this in and this will do it, with certainly a little bit of 41 

tweaking.  I believe this is similar to what you have in Reef 42 

Fish Amendment 32 now and so you should be somewhat familiar 43 

with it. 44 

 45 

DR. BRANSTETTER:  One editorial change to this.  I thought I had 46 

caught all of these and I did not.  Under the Alternative 2, 47 

Option a, the next to the last line, it says “the average of 48 
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years one through three ACL” and just strike “average of years 1 

one through three”.  It’s under Alternative 2, Option a. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  Steve or Shep or whoever is familiar with this, 4 

would we be able to go in here and select one set of preferreds 5 

and apply it to a suite of species and then select something 6 

different to apply with a different suite of species? 7 

 8 

MR. GRIMES:  Not as it’s currently written.  Again, it was 9 

simplified to be a one-stop shop or one-size-fits-all.  I think 10 

you could add on another alternative that would apply this to -- 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  Why couldn’t we just put some text here that says 13 

for these species the preferreds are this, this, this, and this.  14 

For these species, the preferreds are this, this, and this. 15 

 16 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, I think you could definitely do that.  You 17 

could make the changes to it.  While I have the floor, I guess I 18 

would just add, if you look at Option 2 -- This is intended to 19 

be structured around the main choices you have, in-season 20 

accountability measures and post-season accountability measures 21 

and averaging and no averaging, overage adjustment and no 22 

overage adjustment.  Those are the kind of core choices that you 23 

have and those are how Alternative 2 and Alternative 3 vary. 24 

 25 

The only thing in here that I think we need to add, as has been 26 

commented already from people who have emailed me in the public, 27 

we need to have an alternative that looks at with no averaging, 28 

that compares this year’s landings to this year’s ACL and next 29 

year’s landings to next year’s ACL and that’s currently not 30 

represented in this action. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  This is kind of my thinking on this right now.  33 

Of the species we’re talking about in this amendment, none of 34 

them are undergoing overfishing or are overfished.  I think we 35 

probably ought to put an in-season adjustment on commercial 36 

vermilion snapper and we ought to have an ACL or a quota and 37 

when it’s caught, the fishery closes down. 38 

 39 

I’m concerned that vermilion is heading for trouble, because I 40 

think effort as we’ve closed so many other things down, but 41 

vermilion has remained open that there’s been a lot of effort 42 

shifting. 43 

 44 

I don’t really feel a need for a payback for any of the species 45 

in this document.  I guess I’m coming at paybacks in terms of if 46 

you’re in a rebuilding plan, then you ought to have a payback, 47 

but if you’re not, unless there’s evidence that you’ve created 48 
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some problem, I don’t think it’s a necessity. 1 

 2 

Then with the remainder of the fisheries, except for vermilion 3 

snapper commercial, I would suggest that we have post-season 4 

accountability measures, where if we exceed, we then take some 5 

sort of action.  That’s about how far my thinking has evolved, 6 

but I think if we could come to agreement on that, that at least 7 

gets us part of the way to where we’re heading. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t know how much time we have to go 10 

through all the details.  If this is a simplified version, it’s 11 

still fairly complex.  Let’s get some direction here, Roy.  12 

Where do you want to go on this? 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we probably want to replace what’s in the 15 

document now with the simplified version of this. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would agree, but do we need to choose 18 

preferreds? 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think you have to, but that puts a burden 21 

on us at the next meeting to be prepared to do that.  I think if 22 

we could come to some agreement about the kind of scenario I 23 

just laid out that these guys could point to us which preferreds 24 

get you there, but I don’t know if we can come to agreement on 25 

that or not and I know we’re running out of time today. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think with the help of staff that they could 28 

do just exactly what you expected and so I would entertain a 29 

motion that this draft replace what is in the document and we 30 

can address the preferreds at the next meeting.  I would 31 

entertain that motion. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  So moved. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  Second. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there discussion?  Hearing none, the motion 38 

passes.  We’ve punted on that one.   39 

 40 

MR. GRIMES:  I guess I would encourage you to have -- Not 41 

necessarily pick preferred alternatives, but every time we’ve 42 

discussed accountability mechanisms, it seems like we’ve had 43 

nothing but a chaotic discussion and mass confusion and so it 44 

seems like you have a little bit of time now and it would be a 45 

good idea for you to have some basic discussion about these 46 

alternatives and the elements there. 47 

 48 
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I think Dr. Crabtree provided a good segue for you in terms of 1 

what does it mean -- Since they’re not overfished or 2 

overfishing, with the exception of vermilion snapper, he saw no 3 

reason for in-season accountability measures. 4 

 5 

That means no sudden in-season closures like we’ve seen in the 6 

case of greater amberjack and like we’ve seen for other species 7 

and so I guess it would be good to have some discussion of do 8 

you agree with that and do you think it’s good to avoid that. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would contest one comment you made and that 11 

is that we have some time now.  We don’t.  We have to be out of 12 

here at five o’clock and we have Reef Fish and some others to go 13 

and so I will leave this with Roy having the last word on this 14 

and go from there. 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  I was just going to come back to if we had some 17 

consensus that in-season closure for commercial vermilion and 18 

post-season adjustments for the remainder of these stocks and no 19 

paybacks, that gives quite a bit of guidance to staff to 20 

identify a suite of preferreds to us at the next meeting that 21 

would get us to that. 22 

 23 

I think that takes us a long ways.  We would still have to make 24 

some decisions about are we going to use running averages or not 25 

and some other things, but if we could just come to a consensus 26 

on that, I think that gets us a chunk of the way there. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would certainly encourage that and I don’t 29 

think we need a motion to that effect, but is there anyone who 30 

would argue with that being our consensus?  Is that pretty much 31 

agreeable, so we can give staff some direction? 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  No, I’m not opposed to that, but it would help me 34 

feel more comfortable with that if I understood what the real 35 

distinction was between Alternative 2 and Alternative 3 other 36 

than Alternative 2 allows for in-season measures, to help 37 

understand that process a little better.  It seems to me that on 38 

a quick read that there isn’t a heck of a lot of difference 39 

other than that and so I probably don’t understand it. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  The difference between the two is we would apply 42 

Alternative 2 to commercial vermilion and then Alternative 3 to 43 

the remainder of the stocks. 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  I would say that you have all those suboptions 46 

under there and so if you chose to have an in-season 47 

accountability mechanism, you might do something different with 48 
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regard to those sub-options than if you only had a post-season 1 

accountability mechanism. 2 

 3 

There’s greater monitoring or protection involved with an in-4 

season and a post-season than just a post-season and so you 5 

might choose less conservative or less restrictive suboptions 6 

under Alternative 2 than you would under Alternative 3 and so I 7 

think it does provide you a good range, although those core 8 

differences are just whether or not there’s an in-season measure 9 

in it. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would be willing to make some motions for 12 

preferreds if people want to do that, but I think this is sudden 13 

and I don’t know that we want to do that right now. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I agree.  I think this requires more thought 16 

and time than we have today and so we’ve already made the motion 17 

to insert this language and substitution in the document and I 18 

think we’re okay with that.   19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  We’re proceeding along the lines that Dr. Crabtree 21 

suggested and direction to staff that vermilion is the only 22 

species that has in-season accountability and the others are all 23 

post-season and no overages apply and then if we’re consistent 24 

with that and staff understands that, I think that’s -- 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s the discussion and, Steven Atran, you’ve 27 

heard what we’ve said and again you understand? 28 

 29 

MR. ATRAN:  Not as well as the species groupings, but I 30 

understand and we’re going to have an IPT meeting with these 31 

people next week.  I just wanted to ask, since the alternative 32 

refers to royal red shrimp as well as reef fish, would royal red 33 

shrimp also fall under this or is that something we can discuss 34 

at the IPT? 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  It would fall under this, because we need it, 37 

accountability for royal red shrimp. 38 

 39 

MR. ATRAN:  We’ll get it in there. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The IPT can direct some of these.  Dr. Abele, I 42 

think that completes your committee report.  If that’s the case, 43 

the next -- 44 

 45 

MR. BOYD:  Could I just go back and make one request on the 46 

sector separation scenarios?  Don’t everybody pull this up.  47 

I’ll go quick.  In Scenario 12, there was a 60/40 split in the 48 
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sector separation model and it left out the state for-hire in 1 

there.  I don’t know if that was on purpose or not, but I would 2 

like to see that back in if it could be, if he reruns these. 3 

 4 

I would also like to, just for informational purposes, see 5 

another scenario that would show a 70/30 split, with 6 

recreational 70 and the other two, private for-hire and state 7 

for-hire, being the 30, if that’s possible.  8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re in the developmental stages and so, 10 

Assane, did you hear that request? 11 

 12 

DR. DIAGNE:  Yes, Mr. Chair, I heard it.  My understanding is 13 

also that Andy has provided the Excel spreadsheet that all of us 14 

could put on our computers and play with different scenarios if 15 

we so choose.  This is more something about making sure that he 16 

has the Excel spreadsheet to run those. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  Doug, if you have that spreadsheet and run into 19 

problems trying to figure out how to do that, just call Andy up 20 

and I’m sure he would be happy to help you, but if you have 21 

specific scenarios like that, Andy can easily do those. 22 

 23 

MR. BOYD:  I am sure that I will be calling Andy. 24 

 25 

ADVISORY PANEL/SSC SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That brings us to the Advisory Panel/Scientific 28 

and Statistical Committee Selection Committee Report and the 29 

selections and we have made those and I understand, Trish, that 30 

those have been distributed and made public and so I don’t think 31 

we need to do anything more here than that.  At that point, we 32 

are back on schedule, for the short time being.  That brings us 33 

to Joint Allocation/Reef Fish, Tab F. 34 

 35 

JOINT ALLOCATION/REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have the Tab F committee 38 

report.  There is one motion as a result of that joint committee 39 

meeting.  I so move to send the gag, red, and black grouper 40 

allocations to the Reef Fish Committee. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 43 

discussion? 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to make a substitute motion which is 46 

to send the gag, red, and black grouper review of allocations to 47 

the Reef Fish Committee.  The only reason I’m putting “review” 48 
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in there is so that the word doesn’t get out that we’re going to 1 

be reallocating or changing the allocations.  I want the public 2 

to understand it’s just a review. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  Bob.  Discussion?  Any 5 

objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 8 

 9 

DR. DIAGNE:  I would like to get some guidance as to what it is 10 

that is expected from staff then at this point, because starting 11 

the development of an amendment is pretty clear to me, but if it 12 

is a review, then perhaps we’ll just send then an analysis 13 

request to the Science Center and wait for their study.  I would 14 

like to get a little bit of guidance, if possible. 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Assane, it’s not just going to be an easy cut and 17 

dried.  It is a review and you’re correct.  It’s not just the 18 

Science Center.  You need to take every one of our guiding 19 

principles and compare them against A, B, C, D, E, F, and G 20 

through the whole plan.  That is the review and that’s what we 21 

need to look at and so it’s not just the Science Center.  It’s 22 

not just running numbers. 23 

 24 

MR. SAPP:  I agree with what Kay said, Assane.  The one thing 25 

that I would suggest, and I don’t know if the rest of the 26 

members agree, but I think it’s going to be pretty obvious as 27 

you go through the four different methodologies that you’ve got 28 

available to you that some of them aren’t going to be 29 

appropriate for the species that’s being addressed. 30 

 31 

I think instead of developing pages of information on those that 32 

are inappropriate if you’ll just summarize the reason why you 33 

think they’re inappropriate to use in those particular cases and 34 

concentrate your time on the methodologies that apparently are 35 

going to be best for each of the species. 36 

 37 

DR. DIAGNE:  Although it was in a very summarized format, but I 38 

thought that I provided exactly that at this meeting.  The Tab 39 

F-3 which we provided offered the landings by sectors and says 40 

clearly that negotiation-based methods, as well as market-based 41 

methods, would not be practicable at this time and we are then 42 

left with essentially historical catches, economic impacts, and 43 

net benefits. 44 

 45 

Given that we cannot allocate with economics as our sole 46 

purpose, that leaves us then with two choices, historical 47 

catches plus net benefit or historical catches plus economic 48 
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impacts.  I thought that we laid that out, but I can certainly 1 

expand on it for the next time. 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  That original motion was mine and I agree with 4 

Kay’s substitute motion to put the word “review” in there, 5 

because I think the word has already started to get out that 6 

we’re going to reallocate and that’s not the intent. 7 

 8 

Also, I think I had spoken with Assane and I had spoken with Dr. 9 

Bortone about the timing of the delivery of this item and I 10 

think we’re probably backed up pretty solid for June at this 11 

point and so maybe we should look for this in the August or 12 

later on, depending upon their workload schedule. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes.  It doesn’t require a motion, does it? 15 

 16 

MR. TEEHAN:  It’s just a comment. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s just your opinion. 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  My opinion as it has been given to me, yes. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re finished with Joint Allocation/Reef Fish 23 

and that moves us to the Reef Fish Committee Report, part of 24 

which we addressed earlier today, but we’ll turn it over to Mr. 25 

Gill for the remainder. 26 

 27 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The first item under the 30 

committee is the Gag Interim Rule.  By a unanimous voice vote, 31 

the committee recommends, and I so move, to request that the 32 

interim rule be published as included in Tab B, Number 5. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  35 

Any objection? 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s a roll call vote, I believe. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got a roll call vote. 40 

 41 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight.  Absent.  Mr. 42 

Fischer.   43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 47 

 48 
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MR. SAPP:  Yes. 1 

 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 5 

 6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 7 

 8 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 11 

 12 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 13 

 14 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 15 

 16 

MR. BOYD:  Yes. 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Ray. 19 

 20 

MR. RAY:  Yes. 21 

 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  No. 25 

 26 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 27 

 28 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 29 

 30 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 33 

 34 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 35 

 36 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret.  Absent.  Mr. Anson. 39 

 40 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 43 

 44 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain.  Absent.  Dr. Shipp. 47 

 48 
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DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 1 

 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Thirteen yes and one no and three 3 

absent. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just to quickly explain my no vote, I have 6 

instructions to vote no against emergency rules, to avoid a 7 

unanimous vote.  It doesn’t indicate that the agency opposes 8 

this or anything. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have heard that statement frequently in the 11 

past. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I know and unfortunately, you’ll probably here it 14 

again. 15 

 16 

MR. FISCHER:  I received an email a second ago that I really 17 

can’t assist the people with, but with this wide array of people 18 

in the room, I shared it with my colleague from Florida a second 19 

ago, but we had very serious call from Houma, Louisiana wanting 20 

to know if anyone knows how to resuscitate a squirrel.  I swear. 21 

 22 

MR. TEEHAN:  It’s too bad Nick is not here. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Gill, please proceed.  That sounds like 25 

something that Teehan would come up with. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  Moving on, on page 2 of the committee report, Section 28 

1.4, the committee recommends, and I so move, that the council 29 

modify the language in Section 1.4.3 on page 23 to read: If the 30 

annual catch limit is changed, the implementation sequence shown 31 

above is reinitiated. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?   34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  As we discussed in committee, and this -- I pass. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Any objections?  I 38 

hear none and the motion passes. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  In Action 2, Action 2.2.1, by a unanimous voice vote, 41 

the committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 2 that 42 

Alternative 4 be the preferred alternative.  Alternative 4 is 43 

set the longest season possible while meeting ACT target under 44 

at least one baseline: July 1 through October 31, twenty-two to 45 

thirty-inch slot size limit, two fish gag bag limit, four fish 46 

aggregate bag limit (123 days) 54 percent reduction from 2009 47 

baseline; 56 percent reduction from 2006 through 2008 baseline. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  2 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  On the top of page 4, Action 2.2.2, Red Grouper Bag 5 

Limit, by a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and 6 

I so move, that in Action 2.2.2 that the preferred alternative 7 

be Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 is to increase the red grouper 8 

bag limit to three fish per person.  If the recreational sector 9 

exceeds its ACL in 2012, the bag limit will revert back to two 10 

fish. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 13 

 14 

MR. SAPP:  I would like to offer a substitute motion that the 15 

preferred alternative be Alternative 3, which allows for a four 16 

fish bag limit. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Can we get Alternative 3 on the board? 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’ll second it for discussion.  21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Discussion? 23 

 24 

MR. SAPP:  We’ve heard that we can move the limit out to four 25 

fish without exceeding our portion of the quota and that if that 26 

did happen, there is a fallback provision that’s included in the 27 

alternative. 28 

 29 

We keep getting requests to give back some of the fish we’ve 30 

taken away and it looks like we’ve got an opportunity to do it 31 

here and I don’t see any reason why it wouldn’t behoove us to go 32 

ahead and do what we’re capable of doing. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  I didn’t notice this in committee, but looking at the 35 

Alternative 3, and I guess I would like some guidance from 36 

Steven, it seems to me that the way this is worded, if the 2012 37 

season does not exceed its ACL, the bag limit remains at four, 38 

but then it says if the recreational exceeds its bag limit again 39 

in 2013, it will revert to two. 40 

 41 

Under the scenario that the ACL is not exceeded in 2012, but it 42 

is exceeded in 2013, it remains four fish I think is the way 43 

this is written. 44 

 45 

MR. ATRAN:  That’s the intent.  If you set it to four fish and 46 

you stay inside the ACL in 2012, you stay at four fish unless 47 

the council decides to take action to change it. 48 
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 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Steve, how many red grouper are we at now?  2 

That’s the first question. 3 

 4 

MR. ATRAN:  We currently have a bag limit of two red grouper 5 

within a four grouper aggregate. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  So this would effectively -- We’re saying you can 8 

catch up to four red grouper and I guess a gag is in there 9 

somewhere, at some point in time.  Did we actually have the 10 

analysis to see what four would be? 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My understanding is if you caught four, that’s 13 

the bag limit.  There would be no gag. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No, I’m talking about in poundage.  Did we ever 16 

look to see how many four fish would equate to at the end of the 17 

year? 18 

 19 

MR. ATRAN:  No, I talked with Andy Strelcheck to see if we could 20 

get an analysis and the problem is that we don’t have a recent 21 

catch history at these higher bag limits, in order to evaluate 22 

what they might do if we went back to them.  That’s the whole 23 

reason behind having these conditional increases. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t like the way these conditional ones are 26 

set up, because what happens if we do this and then in 2014 we 27 

exceed the ACL?  Nothing happens.  It seems to me the way these 28 

should be structured, Steve, is that if in any given year the 29 

ACL is exceeded, then the bag limit reduction kicks in. 30 

 31 

MR. ATRAN:  To that point, we do have accountability measures 32 

that kick in that would, I believe, shorten the season. 33 

 34 

DR. CRABTREE:  I understand that, but I don’t want to shorten 35 

the season if reducing the bag limit is an option and I don’t 36 

think any of our constituents will want us to shorten the season 37 

if reducing the bag limit is an option.   38 

 39 

I don’t see why Alternative 2 can’t be rewritten to say if the 40 

recreational sector exceeds its ACL in any given year that the 41 

bag limit in the following year reverts to two fish and I don’t 42 

see why Alternative 3 couldn’t be written similarly, that if in 43 

any given year you exceed it, it reduces to three and then if it 44 

happens again, it reduces to two fish.  I don’t know why it has 45 

to be tied into specific years.  Am I missing something? 46 

 47 

MR. ATRAN:  No, we can do that if you would like.  It’s just 48 
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that now that becomes part of the overall accountability 1 

measures, whereas here it was -- The way it was set up, it was 2 

just going to be let’s try it initially and see what happens.  3 

You’re suggesting that it become a permanent accountability 4 

measure, which we can do. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  It is an accountability measure and it’s fine, I 7 

think, in this part of the document, but nonetheless, it is an 8 

accountability measure.  It’s just an accountability measure 9 

that goes away after the 2013 season and what I’m saying is I 10 

think it’s a good accountability measure and why don’t we have 11 

it persist? 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  As I recall during the Reef Fish Committee, there 14 

was some discussion about the potential effort shifting with the 15 

gag season being limited and that that could result in some more 16 

people targeting red grouper instead. 17 

 18 

I’m not too familiar with the red grouper fishery in Florida and 19 

I was wondering if Mr. Teehan could provide some insight as to 20 

whether or not that could be potentially a problem, going to a 21 

four fish bag. 22 

 23 

MR. TEEHAN:  I can’t really address that.  It was discussed.  I 24 

think with the provisions that if it’s exceeded -- You’re 25 

concerned about gag grouper and I think -- I don’t have an 26 

opinion and I’m sorry, Kevin.  Maybe Dr. Abele, who is a more 27 

avid fisherman than I am, could comment on that. 28 

 29 

MR. SAPP:  I can weigh in on that a little bit, I guess.  You 30 

catch some reds when you’re fishing for gags and you catch some 31 

gags when you’re fishing for reds, but you normally are 32 

targeting them in different areas. 33 

 34 

The gags are on the higher relief structure and the reds are 35 

typically on the hard bottom low-relief structures.  I can say 36 

from personal experience that as we’ve seen a big decline in the 37 

gag grouper on some of the offshore high-relief structures, 38 

we’ve got red grouper like we haven’t historically on those 39 

high-relief spots as well. 40 

 41 

Yes, I can see that it potentially would cause a little bit of a 42 

problem and to address the point that Roy was making, I agree 43 

that we ought to change the language, whether we adopt 44 

Alternative 3 or Alternative 2, so that it reflects a decrease 45 

in the bag limit on the next year, regardless of which year the 46 

overage occurs. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  I think the sequence should be let’s change the 1 

alternatives and then let’s talk about the preferred.  I’m going 2 

to make a substitute motion to modify Alternatives 2 and 3 and 3 

remove the specific year references. 4 

 5 

MR. SAPP:  Second. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded and it actually 8 

makes sense. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just so my intent is clear, my intent is that the 11 

provisions that reduce the bag limit if the ACL is exceeded 12 

would be ongoing and continuing. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any discussion on that?  Any objection to that?  15 

We have a substitute motion.  Now the decision is whether we 16 

start off with a three fish or a four fish bag limit.  Mr. Sapp, 17 

do you want to offer your preferred? 18 

 19 

MR. SAPP:  Do I need to remake the motion?  Are we starting over 20 

again here? 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, you would offer Alternative 3 with the 23 

modification that Roy offered. 24 

 25 

MR. SAPP:  Yes.  My recommendation is that we choose Alternative 26 

3 as our preferred alternative, with the corrections that we 27 

made. 28 

 29 

MS. KENNEDY:  Did you vote on your second substitute motion that 30 

Roy made up here? 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Without objections.  The motion now is the 33 

preferred alternative will be Alternative 3 as modified by the 34 

previous motion.  Does everyone understand what we’re voting on?  35 

Roy, do you want to help Phyllis with the remaining verbiage of 36 

that motion now? 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would just say that if at the end of any given 39 

season, the bag limit will be reduced by one fish and then I 40 

would strike the “for the 2013 season”, because that reduction 41 

is permanent, in my view, until the council changes it.  Then if 42 

the recreational sector exceeds its bag limit again, the bag 43 

limit would revert back to two fish.  It’s not the gag ACL.  It 44 

would be the red grouper ACL. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we’ve got it.  Any further discussion 47 

on this motion?   48 
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 1 

MR. GRIMES:  It should say if the recreational sector exceeds 2 

its ACL again, the bag limit will revert back to two fish.  We 3 

would have other accountability mechanisms, but the bag limit 4 

would stay at two fish. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think our motion was also to change Alternative 7 

2 in a similar fashion and I don’t know if we’re going to need 8 

to go through that, but I think they can figure that out. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  They can figure that out.  Any further 11 

discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  The next action is Action 3 on page 4 and by a voice 14 

vote with one nay, the committee recommends, and I so move, that 15 

in Action 3 that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2.  16 

Alternative 2 is to reduce the gag commercial quota to 86 17 

percent of the ACT to compensate for dead discards not being 18 

reduced to projected levels needed to achieve 100 percent of the 19 

ACT.  The commercial quotas, in million pounds gutted weight, 20 

will be as follows (subject to accountability measure 21 

adjustments): year 2012, gag 0.567 and red grouper 5.49 and 22 

shallow-water grouper 6.467; year 2013, gag 0.708 and red 23 

grouper 5.49 and shallow-water grouper 6.608; year 2014, gag 24 

0.835 and red grouper 5.49 and shallow-water grouper 6.735; year 25 

2015 plus, gag 0.939 and red grouper 5.49 and shallow-water 26 

grouper 6.839. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 29 

discussion? 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, I would like to speak in opposition to this 32 

motion because it’s saying reduce the gag commercial quota to 86 33 

percent of the ACT.  Number one, they’re already under an ITQ.  34 

If you were going to reduce something, I think you would perhaps 35 

maybe reduce it to the ACL, but I don’t understand why you want 36 

to go and reduce it to the ACT.  An ACT is a target.  It’s not a 37 

limit and so that’s double jeopardy. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  In this case, the amount of allocation released 40 

to the fishery is based on the ACT and not the ACL and so that’s 41 

how many fish they get.  If you want to reduce how many fish 42 

they’re going to catch, you have to reduce the ACT. 43 

 44 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Do you recall why we did that and we didn’t set 45 

it at the ACL, for the simple reason all of the presentations we 46 

were given, any time you were under an ITQ, you could actually 47 

set the ACL at the ABC. 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think the basis of all that was when we did all 2 

of these things, I think it was back in Amendment 30B, and it 3 

was based on that we defined optimum yield as the yield 4 

associated with fishing at 75 percent of FMSY and so we set the 5 

quotas at the optimum yield level and not at the limit level and 6 

we’ve continued with that under the IFQ program and I’m 7 

comfortable with that. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Any objections?  The 10 

motion passes with one objection.  Did you mean to say 11 

something, Kay, or is that just an objection? 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would just note for the record that I objected. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We did and go ahead, Mr. Gill. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Action 4, Adjustments to Multiuse IFQ Shares, the 18 

motion is on the top of page 5 and by a unanimous voice vote, 19 

the committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 4 that 20 

the preferred alternative be Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is 21 

while the rebuilding plan for gag is in effect, set the 22 

percentage of red grouper IFQ allocation converted into multiuse 23 

allocation equal to zero.  Upon completion of the rebuilding 24 

plan, set the red grouper multiuse percentage as follows: red 25 

grouper multiuse in percent equals 100 times the difference 26 

between the gag ACL and the gag allocation total quantity 27 

divided by red grouper allocation.  The red grouper multiuse 28 

percentage will be recalculated following adjustments in 29 

commercial gag ACL, gag allocation, or red grouper allocation. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  32 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Action 5, the middle of page 5, Commercial Gag Size 35 

Limit, by a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and 36 

I so move, that in Action 5 that Alternative 2 be the preferred 37 

alternative.  Alternative 2 is to reduce the commercial gag 38 

minimum size limit to twenty-two inches total length. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  41 

Any objection?  I hear none and the motion passes. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  The next action is Action 6, Time and Area Closures, 44 

and the motion is on page 6.  By a voice vote with one nay, the 45 

committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 6, that 46 

Alternative 3, Option c be the preferred alternative.  47 

Alternative 3 is to close an area bracketing the forty-fathom 48 
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contour between the current closed areas of Madison-Swanson and 1 

the Edges, approximately 244 square nautical miles, making one 2 

continuous area.  I won’t read the boundaries, but it basically 3 

goes from Madison-Swanson to the top north end of the Edges.  4 

Option c is all fishing is prohibited January 1 through April 30 5 

and all fishing is allowed May 1 through December 31 (identical 6 

to current Edges regulations). 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  In my discussions with industry members, the bulk of 11 

them that I talked to understood, and I think we heard public 12 

testimony to that effect, that closing this area yields them 13 

some credit in terms of quota.  I know we’ve talked about this 14 

at a previous meeting, but, Roy, for the record, would you 15 

identify whether or not the quota is affected by this action? 16 

 17 

I guess the ones that I talked to indicated they would withdraw 18 

that support should the quota not be impacted by this action, 19 

which changes what we heard in public testimony and so I’m 20 

trying to clear the air here, if you would. 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s a complicated one, because the magnitude of 23 

their quota right now for gag is really based on a judgment call 24 

by the council and if you’ll remember when we set the ACT, we 25 

chose -- The alternative we just approved was to reduce it to 86 26 

percent.  The quota was 86 percent of the ACT. 27 

 28 

We had other alternatives though that would have reduced it much 29 

more significantly than that and so my view is this alternative 30 

gives support to not doing any further reduction based on 31 

discards. 32 

 33 

I guess if you come in in June, you could make an argument, 34 

because you’ve selected this, that you want to alter your 35 

percent reduction for discards, but I think that’s the place 36 

where you would have to factor this in.   37 

 38 

I can go back and ask staff, given that we’ve chosen this as a 39 

preferred, to try and take a harder look at that, but at this 40 

time, I don’t have a number that’s plugged in there, because 41 

this has been something that was more of a judgment call.  42 

Remember we had different baselines and we knew we needed 43 

reductions in gag discards.  We knew that the actions we were 44 

taking were likely to increase gag discards, because we’re not 45 

allowing them to retain them. 46 

 47 

Mostly what we’ve done, I believe, is we’re making a leap of 48 
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faith, really, that these guys are going to be able to avoid 1 

gag.  I think to some extent they will avoid gag, but I think 2 

that closing this area bolsters that argument considerably and I 3 

think it makes it easier for us to avoid those deep reductions 4 

in the quota to compensate for our inability to reduce discards. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  I think anything we can do to clarify that, because 7 

my perception is that the industry is generally not of that 8 

understanding and that would help clarify for both revisiting 9 

this document in June, et cetera.  Anything we can do to help 10 

make that clear to industry so that they understand whether it’s 11 

a good thing or a bad thing in their own minds I think would be 12 

very helpful. 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’ll give that another look. 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  Roy, Teehan, someone, can you help me?  I wish we 17 

had the map of the area, but we’ve got Madison I think on the 18 

south and Swanson on the north or vice versa and we’ve got the 19 

four-month closure in between.  If we approve this, the effort 20 

that currently goes on in that general area will be forced to 21 

move elsewhere, I have to assume, if they’re going to keep 22 

fishing.  Is that going to create any conflicts with other 23 

fishing activities that go on north of the area?   24 

 25 

I assume they’re going to move north of the area to fish.  Is 26 

that a large charterboat area?  Are we putting people in the 27 

same place at the same time that could lead to some other 28 

issues? 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I actually caught this earlier.  On the document, 31 

if you’ll look I believe it’s on page 45, perhaps we were 32 

looking on 48, but I thought it was my understanding we were 33 

closing this little small area and we were just going to kind of 34 

smooth it out between -- You had the Steamboat Lump and you had 35 

the Edges and this open area and Madison-Swanson. 36 

 37 

If you take a look at that map on page 45, and I don’t know if 38 

we’ve got the first document or the second one that came out, 39 

but this smoothing on page 48, with all these percentages you’re 40 

showing you, you have -- If you look at the fathoms -- Now, the 41 

longline industry, I think, was moved to thirty-five fathoms. 42 

 43 

You just took all of their fishing ground and not only that, go 44 

past Madison-Swanson and you have extended it and made a big 45 

square block and now you’ve just shut out a bunch of 46 

charterboats and bandit boats, by looking at your map. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Is that the answer to my question? 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 3 

 4 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you. 5 

 6 

MR. PEARCE:  In discussions with the harvesting sector in the 7 

hall, this is going to affect quite a bit of bandit boats and 8 

quite a bit of the people that fish in that area already and Mr. 9 

Perret is correct that the pressure would move west and put a 10 

lot more pressure in areas where we have a lot of charterboats 11 

working right now. 12 

 13 

I don’t see the net gain to the industry by doing this and so 14 

I’m opposed to this.  I think we need that open and we need 15 

these guys to fish.  We don’t need to take any more away from 16 

them if we don’t have to and Roy doesn’t know if it’s going to 17 

help them anyway and so I’m opposed to this and I think we need 18 

to keep it as it is. 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  My concern is a little bit of everybody’s, but not 21 

quite.  We’re concerned that this is a closure to all fishing 22 

during that period and not just bottom fishing.  I do understand 23 

that there are spawning aggregations in mid-water of gag grouper 24 

and I would prefer not to try to change this at this point and 25 

wait to get public testimony to see how the public hearings 26 

shake out, but I just wanted to go on the record that we’re kind 27 

of opposed to losing the trolling ability on the surface. 28 

 29 

DR. CRABTREE:  A couple of things and I’ll start with Bill’s 30 

comment.  Bill, I recall with Madison and Swanson you’ll 31 

remember we had a big, big discussion and debate about surface 32 

trolling and we came to a compromise to allow surface trolling 33 

from May I think through October. 34 

 35 

The reason we came to that is nobody goes out there and surface 36 

trolls during January, February, March, and April.  I don’t 37 

think that’s a problem. 38 

 39 

What we are doing here, back to Corky’s issues, is we are 40 

deliberating trying to shift effort into other areas.  We’re 41 

trying to shift it out of the area where we think they’re going 42 

to catch a lot of gag in deep water and they’re going to have to 43 

throw it back because the quotas are so low and we’re going to 44 

have a lot of discard mortalities. 45 

 46 

Kay’s comment about the longliners, do we really want longliners 47 

out along the forty break fishing in areas where the gag are 48 
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concentrated during the time they’re spawning?  I recall when we 1 

went through the turtle issues with the longline vessels that we 2 

had at least one longliner, I remember, saying that about a 3 

quarter of his catch was gag. 4 

 5 

I don’t anyone is going to have enough quota for the next few 6 

years to be able to deal with that and I don’t think we want 7 

people setting longlines in these areas where it’s deep and 8 

there are a lot of gag out there.  Yes, we’re pushing people 9 

either to the south and maybe to the north, but that’s the point 10 

of it. 11 

 12 

Now, I guess I’m with Bill.  I would like to go ahead and go out 13 

to public hearings with this.  If this becomes something that 14 

folks have a lot of concerns about, then maybe we could tie it 15 

into the recovery of the stock and that we’re going to have this 16 

in place until gag is rebuilt and then it sunsets away or 17 

something like that. 18 

 19 

I do think there are benefits to Harlon’s comments.  There are 20 

benefits from doing this.  The analysis I think shows that.  21 

There’s very little impact on red grouper.  Less than 1 percent 22 

of the red grouper catch comes out of this area, but a much 23 

bigger proportion of the gag catch comes out of here. 24 

 25 

That’s the point of this and the point of all the analysis we 26 

went through, was to try and identify an area we could close to 27 

protect gag and have very little impact on the red grouper 28 

fishery.  If you look at it this way, right now the longline 29 

fishery is fishing for red grouper and not gag, because they’re 30 

not going to have enough quota allocation in the next couple of 31 

years and so I think we don’t want them fishing in this area. 32 

 33 

I think we could look in June at some sunsets on this.  Maybe we 34 

could get to when the quota has reached a certain level that it 35 

goes away or maybe something like that, but I think in these 36 

initial years that this would help out. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, Andy gave a presentation a couple years back 39 

and he actually put it on the board showing where the majority 40 

of the fishermen, the hi-liners, caught their fish.  Now, 41 

truthfully we weren’t supposed to do that and we did it and it 42 

was kind of an oh-oh, we shouldn’t have done that. 43 

 44 

That’s initially how we drew that box.  We made sure that we 45 

were going to take all those prime fishing grounds and it was to 46 

protect the spawning gag.  I support that area for that and why 47 

we did it and when we did it and what’s going on, but the way 48 
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that it was presented to us was it’s just kind of like a little 1 

smoothing out and it’s not really going to affect anybody and 2 

it’s just going to make it easier for enforcement. 3 

 4 

When I got to looking at the box and I got to looking at the 5 

fathoms and I saw that it’s going to affect a lot of people -- 6 

Actually, one of your little last boxes out there shows that 7 

it’s in about twenty-five fathoms of water and so all this dead 8 

gag that you’re talking about -- First of all, the longline 9 

fishery isn’t going to be fishing in that one particular area.  10 

It’s going to be your bandit fishermen, because they’re not 11 

allowed to fish in there. 12 

 13 

The other area is where they go tile fishing, Roy.  You just 14 

shut down the tile fishery and so before you all start doing 15 

this, you need to think about it. 16 

 17 

I talked to Libby and Libby said this isn’t going to do anything 18 

and it doesn’t matter to her and there’s no gag out there anyway 19 

and so I’m not going to support it. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  This obviously is 22 

going to call for a show of hands and all those in favor of the 23 

committee recommendation signify by raising your hand; all those 24 

opposed.  The motion fails.  What do we do, go with no 25 

preferred? 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  It’s up to the council, Mr. Chairman. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would anyone want to select a preferred or 30 

would you prefer to go to public hearing without a preferred?  31 

Since everybody is on the same page on this, I will refer back 32 

to you, Mr. Gill, to continue the committee report. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  In Action 7, 7.1, the 35 

bottom of page 6, by a unanimous voice vote, the committee 36 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 7.1 that Alternative 2 37 

be the preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is the 38 

accountability measures for the gag, red grouper, and shallow-39 

water grouper commercial sector will be the current individual 40 

fishing quota program. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 43 

discussion?  Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 44 

 45 

MR. GILL:  Action 7.2, Recreational Accountability Measures, the 46 

motion is on page 7.  By a unanimous voice vote, the committee 47 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 7.2 that the preferred 48 
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alternative be Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is add an overage 1 

adjustment to be applied when gag or red grouper are considered 2 

overfished and in-season accountability measures to the existing 3 

gag and red grouper accountability measures.  If the annual 4 

catch limit is exceeded and a stock is under a rebuilding plan, 5 

the overage adjustment will be equal to the full amount of the 6 

overage, unless the best scientific information available shows 7 

that a greater, lesser, or no overage adjustment is needed to 8 

mitigate the effects of the overage.  If gag or red grouper 9 

landings are projected to exceed the annual catch limit, as 10 

estimated by the Southeast Fisheries Science Center, the 11 

Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will file a notification 12 

closing the recreational harvest for the species projected to 13 

reach its annual catch limit for the rest of the fishing year on 14 

the date the annual catch limit is projected to be harvested.  15 

If the harvest, as estimated by the Southeast Fisheries Science 16 

Center, has been found to exceed the annual catch limit, the 17 

Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will file a notification 18 

closing the recreational harvest for the species whose annual 19 

catch limit was projected to be exceeded immediately for the 20 

rest of the fishing year. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 23 

 24 

MR. PERRET:  I have a question.  In that first paragraph, who 25 

determines the best scientific information?  Is it the Center or 26 

our SSC? 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would assume it’s our SSC, the way Magnuson 29 

is written.  Any further discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing 30 

none, the motion passes. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  By a voice vote with one nay, the committee 33 

recommends, and I so move, to approve Amendment 32 for public 34 

hearings. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I have a committee motion.  Any objections or 37 

discussion?  Hearing no objections, the motion passes.  Greater 38 

Amberjack Update Assessment, Mr. Gill. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The motion is on page 8.  41 

By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 42 

move, that the council request staff to begin development of a 43 

plan amendment to adjust the total allowable catch in the 44 

rebuilding plan for greater amberjack. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  47 

Any objections?  I hear none and the motion passes. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  The next section on the proposed rule for greater 2 

amberjack, June/July closed season, did not result in any 3 

motions.  There was considerable discussion and so I ask if 4 

there’s any discussion by the council. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’ll ask Roy, in view of public testimony and 7 

in view of your concerns from other comments earlier, do you 8 

have any further comments on the proposed rule? 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, I just would note that in the testimony I 11 

think most of what we heard yesterday supported the summertime 12 

closure.  At least it was evenly divided. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that’s right and in a number of cases, 15 

the speakers said they represented groups and so I think we’re 16 

kind of left with the rule as it is.  Any other discussion on 17 

that?  Hearing none, Mr. Gill. 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  The next section was Greater Amberjack Commercial 20 

Quota Overrun and no motions were made.  The next section after 21 

that was the LAPP Review.  By a unanimous vote, the committee 22 

recommends, and I so move, that the Reef Fish LAPP Advisory 23 

Panel be reconvened before the June 2011 council meeting to 24 

discuss the pilot days at sea program. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  27 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  There were no further motions made.  However, there 30 

was a motion proffered by Ms. Williams that did not get into the 31 

Reef Fish Committee portion and this would be the appropriate 32 

time to consider that. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ms. Williams, this is an opportunity for your 35 

motion. 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  I’ll take the motion for her.  We’ve gotten five 38 

letters from the governors of the states to reconsider the 39 

recreational red snapper underharvest.   40 

 41 

My motion would basically do the same thing for the harvesting 42 

sector, shallow-water grouper, deepwater grouper, red snapper 43 

and tilefish as well.  If we’re going to do it for the 44 

recreational sector with an underharvest, because of the oil 45 

spill and because of our inability to get to certain sections of 46 

the fish for the fish we have and our inability to fill our 47 

quotas, I would like to make the following motion. 48 
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 1 

The motion is to request the Southeast Fisheries Science Center 2 

to rerun the shallow-water grouper, deepwater grouper, tilefish, 3 

and red snapper projections using the 2009 and 2010 landings 4 

data and provide the ABC to the council before the June 2011 5 

council meeting. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second? 8 

 9 

MR. PERRET:  I’ll second it. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there discussion? 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess a couple of things.  One, there are no 14 

deepwater grouper projections to rerun and there is no tilefish 15 

projections to rerun.  There is a tilefish assessment underway 16 

and it will have the latest landings in it if it’s accepted. 17 

 18 

There’s no shallow-water grouper projection to rerun.  There’s 19 

just gag and red grouper, which I think we just reran.  Now, 20 

Bonnie could check and see what landings were used and so I 21 

think where that leaves us is I’m not sure there’s anything to 22 

rerun other than red snapper.  Harlon, we just got ABCs on red 23 

grouper.  The reason we’re raising the red grouper TAC now is 24 

because they reran the projections, I believe. 25 

 26 

MR. PEARCE:  What I’m trying to accomplish is to allow the 27 

harvesting sector that could not catch their IFQ totals, because 28 

of the oil spill, to be able to do it this year or next year. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  If I could, I don’t think the catch rates in the 31 

grouper fishery, particularly shallow water, had anything to do 32 

with the oil spill.  The areas where they predominantly fish 33 

were open and they couldn’t catch their allocations the previous 34 

year and so I don’t think that -- Now, the deepwater grouper 35 

fishery did have some bottom that was closed by the oil spill, 36 

but again, there aren’t projections to rerun. 37 

 38 

MR. PEARCE:  What catch totals do we have now -- What do they 39 

have left that they could take, just like the recreational 40 

could? 41 

 42 

DR. PONWITH:  The whole notion behind this motion prior to this 43 

adjustment was that we had a red snapper update that generated 44 

projections that were done using the contemporary data and with 45 

this underage, the request is to take that projection and rerun 46 

it. 47 

 48 
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By incorporating the 2009 and the 2010 data, it helps us to 1 

evaluate what the actual landings in those two years were versus 2 

what we used as a proxy for what we thought the landings would 3 

be, which was -- I believe they used the actual quota as the 4 

proxy. 5 

 6 

Now that we have actual, those projections can be updated to see 7 

where we are on the rebuilding schedule and so it’s a matter of 8 

having that assessment in hand with those projections and 9 

updating them to be able to answer those questions. 10 

 11 

MR. PEARCE:  I’m just being told by the harvesting sector that 12 

there was a lot of product that they could not catch because of 13 

the oil spill and I’m trying to recapture that just as the 14 

recreational sector should and wants to recapture their 15 

underharvest and so how do I do that? 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think there is a way to do that, because 18 

the SSC has just dealt with them.  Now, as I said, we do have a 19 

gag assessment and a red grouper assessment, but we don’t have 20 

assessments to rerun on any of those other stocks.  We have ABCs 21 

that are based on average landing and so what you’re really, I 22 

think, asking is for the SSC to take another look at them in 23 

light of the most recent landings. 24 

 25 

I think you could do that, if you want to ask the SSC to look at 26 

them, but I would point out that the SSC did just look at them.  27 

We just got the ABCs for shallow-water grouper and deepwater 28 

grouper and red grouper at this meeting and so we’re asking them 29 

to relook at what they just looked at. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, they didn’t have poundage for poundage 32 

there.  I was there.  They used their past data with the updates 33 

of the additional mortality and if you go back and you look, you 34 

will see not only did commercial not land theirs, but we just 35 

had a discussion about increasing the bag limit because 36 

recreational didn’t land theirs either. 37 

 38 

What would it look like if you went and used 2009 and 2010 39 

actual landings, because they did not look at those.  I know, 40 

Roy.  I was there and so that’s all we’re asking.  If it’s no 41 

big deal, then it’s no big deal, but it shouldn’t hurt to at 42 

least just look at it.  Perhaps we can increase the recreational 43 

aggregate bag limit to five.  I don’t know, but let’s look at 44 

it. 45 

 46 

MR. PEARCE:  It is both the recreational and harvesting sector 47 

I’m interested in.  I just want to be able to make sure they’re 48 
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able to catch the fish that they should have caught during the 1 

oil spill and that’s my goal and if this motion doesn’t 2 

accomplish it, I would sure like some help to try to accomplish 3 

that. 4 

 5 

MR. GRIMES:  I guess I would ask for clarification from your 6 

staff, because I had just asked if in the rerun of the gag and 7 

red grouper assessments they used actual landings for 2009 and 8 

2010 and I was told yes. 9 

 10 

MR. ATRAN:  They did use actual landings for 2009 and for 2010, 11 

it was estimated landings.  We didn’t have the final landings 12 

numbers yet and those were used in the projection.  The 13 

assessment itself still goes through 2008. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That’s what we’re asking and he said the 16 

assessment still is using 2008 and that’s what we would like 17 

them to just take a look at, Roy.  Look at 2009 and 2010 now 18 

that the actual landings has come in.  It’s not going to hurt 19 

anything and it’s not going to take that long to do it. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m still unclear whether -- 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  The point is that -- Really, all you’re talking 24 

about is gag and red grouper.  We’ve already asked for red 25 

snapper and there are no projections for the other shallow-water 26 

grouper and there are no projections for deepwater grouper and 27 

there are no projections for tilefish.   28 

 29 

If you want to modify the motion to ask them to rerun the 30 

projections for gag and red grouper, pulling in the 2010 31 

landings, then okay, but that’s what you’re talking about then. 32 

 33 

MR. PEARCE:  Then let’s modify the motion and get it done that 34 

way.  We’re going to change the motion to just gag and red 35 

grouper.  If we’ve already done the red snapper, that’s fine.  36 

My goal is basically to allow the recreational and harvesting 37 

sector to take grouper they did not take during the oil spill at 38 

some level. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  A friendly, Harlon, if I can.  We should say that 41 

using the 2010 projections and the SSC provide the ABC. 42 

 43 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s good and to ask the SSC to provide the ABC.  44 

That’s correct. 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  I just wanted to make sure the motion was correct, 47 

because I thought we had red snapper in there also. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve already done red snapper. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  We could add it to the motion.  It’s using the 4 

2010 landings. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to make sure they also use 2009, 7 

because I’m not totally convinced that they used 2009.  We 8 

talked an awful lot about all of the procedures they went 9 

through and what happened with the turtles and they still came 10 

way down, because they didn’t have all that in front of them. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Harlon, would you accept that as a friendly 13 

amendment? 14 

 15 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s fine. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  So 2009 and 2010.  I think we’re finally there.  18 

Any further discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the 19 

motion passes.   20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Just for a point of clarification, Mr. Pearce 22 

mentioned five governors and I believe we only received letters 23 

from three.  Alabama and Louisiana did not send letters. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  Louisiana has sent a letter. 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  It has?  I haven’t received it and so I’m not aware 28 

of it. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 31 

 32 

MR. ATRAN:  On Amendment 32, we’re going to public hearings with 33 

the current ABCs and the resulting ACLs and ACTs and so if this 34 

rerun gets done and it shows a change in those values, in June 35 

we’ll come back with those changed values in the amendment and 36 

is that correct? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct.  We are finally ahead of 39 

schedule and I think the pressure is off in terms of completion. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  One thing that I think that we omitted to do is I 42 

don’t believe we approved the ACL Amendment to go to public 43 

hearings in the Ecosystem Committee report.  Did we?  I don’t 44 

believe we did. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would you so move? 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  I move that we take the ACL Amendment to public 1 

hearings. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second? 4 

 5 

MR. RAY:  Second. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  Are we taking Amendment 32 to public hearings?  8 

We did pass that one? 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Where are we?  We just had the motion for the 11 

ACL. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  The assumption is that would happen between now 14 

and the June meeting. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  A friendly amendment to add Amendment 32 to this 17 

motion, to read to approve the ACL/AM Amendment and the 18 

Amendment 32 for public hearings. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  And Amendment 32. 21 

 22 

MR. ATRAN:  You’ve already approved Amendment 32 for public 23 

hearings.  It was a committee motion. 24 

 25 

MR. GREENE:  It’s not about this motion, but I just had one 26 

other thing before we left Reef Fish. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s finish this motion.  Is there any 29 

discussion on the motion?  Any objections?  The motion passes.  30 

Johnny, go ahead.  We’re not about to adjourn.  We’ve got other 31 

business, but I’m just going to take a little break here.  Go 32 

ahead if you have something. 33 

 34 

MR. GREENE:  We can wait.  I was just going to entertain the 35 

option of potentially moving red snapper season up to May and 36 

June, to go along with some of the other conversations we had 37 

had. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s take a break first and then we’ll come 40 

back.  Did you have something urgent? 41 

 42 

DR. CRABTREE:  I do have one more issue with the ACL Amendment.  43 

We can do it after the break. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s take a ten-minute break and reconvene at 46 

2:30. 47 

 48 
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(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I detect a real motivation to move and get out 3 

of here.  Joint Reef Fish/Shrimp and Mr. Perret. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  I have one more issue with the ACL Amendment that 6 

I need to talk about. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s do that one.  We’ve got a quorum. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  We have an ACL amendment in which many of the 11 

ABCs and ACLs are based on average landings and some of them are 12 

for fisheries that have a large recreational component.  13 

Sometime in late May or June, MRIP is going to re-estimate all 14 

of the recreational catches going back to 2003. 15 

 16 

That’s going to mean that the revised estimates aren’t going to 17 

be the same as the ones we’ve used in our ACL Amendment and so I 18 

think that, Steven, we need to add a discussion into the ACL 19 

Amendment that this is happening and we’re aware of it and we’ve 20 

discussed it, but that given the statutory requirements and the 21 

timelines we’re under, there’s no way for us to incorporate 22 

those landings into the amendment, because I assume we would 23 

have to go back to the SSC and have them take a look at it, et 24 

cetera, et cetera. 25 

 26 

I think, and Shepherd can advise us on it, but I think we’ve 27 

modified our framework and we’re laying out a formulaic approach 28 

where we’ve identified the years we’re going to use and the 29 

reductions that are going to be applied.   30 

 31 

It seems to me that once this is all settled down and we have 32 

the revised estimates that it’s a straightforward matter to go 33 

in and say, okay, if we just replace the old estimates with the 34 

new ones, here’s how all the numbers come out. 35 

 36 

Then we’ve laid out a framework that allows us to modify the 37 

ACLs with it and so I think what we’re going to want to do is in 38 

the fall, start a framework action that just essentially takes 39 

the formulas that we lay out in this amendment and recalculate 40 

some of the new estimates and then replaces them, so that we’re 41 

comparing apples with apples. 42 

 43 

Now, it’s only back to 2003 and some of our time series go back 44 

farther than that.  MRIP may, in the end, re-estimate all the 45 

way back to 1995, I’m told, but that’s going to be another 46 

period of time down the road and so it’s kind of awkward timing, 47 

but I don’t really have a better solution right now, other than 48 
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to just finish our work.   1 

 2 

We’re putting in place the formulas and then come in in a 3 

framework action and adjust the numbers.  Now, what I’ve been 4 

told about the new MRIP estimates, and let me say that I have 5 

not seen any of the estimates, but I’m told that there’s no 6 

pattern to them in that they’re higher or lower.  They’re just 7 

somewhat different, but the percent standard errors are greater, 8 

because it seems in the MRFSS in the past has underestimated the 9 

coefficient of variation on the catches. 10 

 11 

I think, as I said, staff needs to work a discussion into it.  I 12 

don’t know if by our June meeting the new numbers will have been 13 

released yet or not, but it’s possible.  If that’s the case, I 14 

guess we could have a little more informative discussion about 15 

how they compare. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think those are excellent points.  We do have 18 

a framework to work on, but are you suggesting that we include 19 

some language in the current document to that effect? 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, I think we ought to include in there that we 22 

know this is coming and that our intent would be to modify these 23 

ACLs using the formulas we’ve laid out as quickly as we can once 24 

we have the new estimates, so that before anything is triggered, 25 

we’ve updated the estimates. 26 

 27 

The estimates of catch we’re going to have now are going to be 28 

based on the new estimation methodology and so I think to have 29 

it done in a consistent way, we’re going to need to update those 30 

numbers. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Dr. Bortone, you’ll duly note that?  Okay. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Roy, if I understood what you said correctly, the 35 

averages might well be, hopefully, not significantly different 36 

than where they are today, so that the expectation would be that 37 

when the MRIP numbers come down, they’ll be somewhat different, 38 

but hopefully very modest, as we understand it right now.  Does 39 

that seem correct? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s my hope. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  That sounds highly uncertain. 44 

 45 

DR. PONWITH:  What I’m hearing on this is that the numbers are -46 

- There’s not a consistent bias in the direction of the numbers 47 

and that they move and so even if the number is significantly 48 
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larger than it was before, the next year it could be 1 

significantly lower and so for each of the species, it’s going 2 

to be kind of a different scenario, but there was no skewed bias 3 

one direction or the other, which would have been a bigger 4 

issue. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, if I’m understanding this correctly, 7 

whenever you come in and, of course, you would address the ACL 8 

based on the ABC and so that’s going to affect both commercial 9 

and recreational. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think this strictly affects the recreational 12 

fishery. 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Since the TAC is based on total landings when 15 

they run these assessments, how can that be? 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess if they made them based on total landings 18 

and then allocated it, it may, but I don’t know.  It would 19 

depend on how the calculations were exactly done.   20 

 21 

I think the other thing the document should reflect too is that 22 

before we use these new estimates, we want them to go to our SSC 23 

and have them review it all before we’re going to proclaim them 24 

as the best available.  We could hopefully do that sometime over 25 

the summer.  Kay, we’ll have to look at it.  I don’t know if 26 

it’s just one sector. 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I still have one other question.  I know back 29 

when I had asked for some landings once before and I couldn’t 30 

understand what happened and actually what happened, the 31 

recreational industry, depending on which way you looked at it -32 

- In one area in the very beginning, it looked like they had 33 

really high landings, but then after you all got through doing 34 

your new adjustments, based on a new method, the landings 35 

dropped considerably and so -- Then you all went back and you 36 

back-calculated those all the way back to the beginning of 37 

series of time, whenever you all started collecting data for the 38 

recreational industry, and applied those. 39 

 40 

Now we’ve got one method and now we’ve got another method and 41 

now we’ve got this method.  All some point in time, we probably 42 

ought to have all those methods peer reviewed to see which ones 43 

are the best. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s happening as part of this and the re-46 

estimation is not going to be applied until after it was peer 47 

reviewed and that’s what has been taking place and so all of 48 
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this stuff is being peer reviewed and has been peer reviewed. 1 

 2 

MR. ATRAN:  Two questions.  First of all, the black grouper 3 

allocations and the inter-council apportionments could also be 4 

affected by these recalculations and so is it your intent that 5 

we also revisit those? 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  I suppose we could. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ll just have to wait and see what they are. 10 

 11 

MR. ATRAN:  The other one is maybe more of a comment.  If the 12 

intent is to use the new generic framework procedure, we can 13 

start work on this, but I guess we have to wait for that 14 

framework procedure to actually be in place to submit it. 15 

 16 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just elaborate a little bit on something 17 

Dr. Crabtree said.  When we get all these new numbers, the new 18 

estimates from MRFSS, they’re clearly perceived by everyone and 19 

believed by the agency to be better information than the old 20 

estimates, but it’s not just a matter, as I’ve thought before, 21 

of just plugging this new information in. 22 

 23 

It’s going to have to be considered by the SSC and they’re going 24 

to have to look at how we’ve used landings in deriving whatever 25 

estimates we have and so until it’s vetted through the process 26 

and we’ve determined that it’s best available information -- At 27 

that point, we’ll be able to defend it and put it in a framework 28 

and then take action on it. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  With that, I think we’ll go back to 31 

Mr. Perret for the Joint Shrimp/Reef Fish Committee Report. 32 

 33 

JOINT SHRIMP/REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The joint committee met 36 

on April 11 and all members were present.  There were no action 37 

items.  The agenda item of discussion was the adjustment to the 38 

shrimp trawl red snapper bycatch mortality target goal. 39 

 40 

Dr. Crabtree reviewed the bycatch reduction requirements for the 41 

shrimp trawl fishery as approved in Amendment 27 to the Reef 42 

Fish FMP and Amendment 14 to the Shrimp FMP.  He stated that a 43 

rule would be developed this summer to reduce the requirement of 44 

a 74 percent reduction in effort from the baseline 2001 to 2003 45 

levels to 67 percent, as stipulated in this amendment. 46 

 47 

Dr. Branstetter reviewed the timing of the rulemaking package 48 
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and reported that they’ll initiate it in late June or early July 1 

and hopefully it will be completed in August or September of 2 

this year. 3 

 4 

Relative to the final estimates of effort reductions from the 5 

baseline for 2010, Dr. Ponwith reported that the estimate was 6 

74.47, which is still below the baseline that would trigger 7 

framework actions.  Mr. Chairman, thank you, and that concludes 8 

my report. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Perret.  Any questions?  The 11 

next agenda item is Other Business.  The first other business is 12 

our Meeting Reports and the first is a report of the South 13 

Atlantic Council meeting and Mr. Gill. 14 

 15 

OTHER BUSINESS 16 

MEETING REPORTS 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  There’s not much to report.  We did cover a lot of 19 

the items at this meeting relative to the South Atlantic and 20 

thanks to Mr. Cupka’s assistance, it went well.  In regards to 21 

spiny lobster, they fundamentally adopted virtually everything 22 

we did at our last meeting, so that the differences there now 23 

are, I think, non-existent, but at the very least minimal.  It 24 

was held on St. Simons Island and I can report that that’s a lot 25 

more beautiful than I thought. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  Report of the Council 28 

Coordinating Committee, which I believe was really a phone call 29 

that Dr. Leard listened in on and participated in. 30 

 31 

DR. LEARD:  There’s just a few items that they discussed, 32 

primarily that George LaPointe has been kind of appointed to 33 

kind of go around and look at allocation issues, the five-year 34 

allocation program, and he’s going to be scheduling interviews 35 

with the EDs and the chairs of the councils later on.  I think 36 

Dr. Bortone has been talking or corresponding with him on that. 37 

 38 

They also talked about the budget and, of course, at that time, 39 

and this was March 23, they didn’t know what was going on.  I 40 

just saw an article that the House has passed a budget to just 41 

extend the continuing resolution until the end of the year, with 42 

a $38 billion cut, which is about $78.5 billion less than what 43 

the President had wanted, but this article says that it’s going 44 

to the Senate and the President has said that he would sign it. 45 

 46 

It looks like, according to this, the budget cuts are primarily 47 

in community health programs, grants for local police 48 
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departments and the states and cuts to the Environmental 1 

Protection Agency and the Pentagon gets a little boost. 2 

 3 

They also talked about Executive Order 13563, which reduces, I 4 

guess, or more streamlines and removes stale activities and 5 

regulations and I think comments are due on it and if I remember 6 

right, I believe Dr. Bortone has already sent in comments and we 7 

had invited the council members to send in comments if they 8 

wished. 9 

 10 

Bob Mahood is going to be sending out the agenda for the May CCC 11 

meeting soon and as far as the Coastal Marine Sanctuary Program, 12 

there is going to be a national workshop on June 21 through 23, 13 

followed by regional workshops and regional planning bodies are 14 

scheduled to be appointed by mid-summer, after the national 15 

workshop.  That’s it. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Rick. 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  I was able to participate in that call and the first 20 

item that Rick mentioned, the survey that Mr. LaPointe is doing 21 

relative to allocation, generated a lot of concern about where 22 

that’s going. 23 

 24 

The response was that NMFS is looking into whether or not they 25 

should do anything in regards to allocation in helping councils 26 

or guidance or whatever.  Part of that is driven by the recent 27 

comments both from the recreational summit and the catch share 28 

policy. 29 

 30 

He is conducting that survey to feed back to NMFS his 31 

recommendations as a result of that survey, and he and I have 32 

talked, as to what he found and what he thinks ought to be done, 33 

and he’ll make a preliminary report to the CCC at the May 34 

meeting relative to what he has found thus far, because he 35 

expected to have all his interviews done by that time and start 36 

putting together his thoughts and his findings and his 37 

recommendations.  It’s ongoing and it’s a question of what it’s 38 

going to lead to and at this point, that’s unknown. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  Now that we know what 41 

ICCAT is, Ed, have you got a report on the ICCAT meeting? 42 

 43 

MR. SAPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Yes, I did do written 44 

reports from the two meetings that I’ve attended in the last 45 

month.  The first one was the ICCAT spring meeting and last 46 

week, I was back up in Washington for the Highly Migratory 47 

Species meeting. 48 
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 1 

The ICCAT spring meeting, I know that was distributed to all the 2 

council members and it’s included in the briefing book for you 3 

to look at.   4 

 5 

The HMS meeting report I’m reasonably sure wasn’t distributed to 6 

you, but it is in the briefing report and I would ask that you 7 

maybe take just a minute and read through it, because there are 8 

some things that are going on within HMS that are actually 9 

happening in the Gulf of Mexico.  It might be of at least a 10 

little bit of interest to you. 11 

 12 

What I would like to do is, as I promised when I did my ICCAT 13 

101, is to talk just a little bit about what’s going on within 14 

the swordfish fishery.  I know everybody is anxious to get going 15 

and so I’ll kind of give you the Cliff Notes version of it here. 16 

 17 

Let me start with just a little bit of history of swordfish 18 

management in the Atlantic Ocean.  If we look back to the 1980s 19 

and 1990s, we saw that swordfish were actually in a pretty 20 

severe decline. 21 

 22 

As a result, there was ICCAT’s version of a stock assessment 23 

done back in the late 1990s and what it showed was, in effect, 24 

the same thing that our stock assessments would show if we 25 

determined that something was overfished and undergoing 26 

overfishing. 27 

 28 

At that point, they put a ten-year plan in to recover the stocks 29 

of swordfish.  They reduced the quotas down for all of the 30 

member nations that participate, including the U.S.  Over the 31 

period of the next few years, the U.S. took quite a few steps to 32 

reduce our harvest of swordfish and at the same time, we took 33 

quite a few steps to reduce incidental bycatch of things like 34 

turtles and bluefin tuna. 35 

 36 

As a result, the sawfish effort was reduced enormously over the 37 

period of time and so fast forward a little bit to around 2008 38 

or 2007.  Another stock assessment was done on swordfish and 39 

what that stock assessment showed was that the swordfish fishery 40 

had completely recovered and that it’s healthy. 41 

 42 

At this point, the harvest can ramp back again.  The U.S. has 43 

been given its quota, but the problem we’ve got is that for the 44 

last four or five years, we have not been able to harvest our 45 

quota.  As a matter of a fact, we’ve only been able to catch 46 

about 60 or 70 percent of that quota. 47 

 48 
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You might think from a conservation standpoint that that’s a 1 

good thing, that there’s a little bit of a buffer in there, but 2 

remember we’re dealing with international fisheries management. 3 

 4 

What the reality of the situation is, it’s that as we go to the 5 

annual ICCAT meeting every year, other countries are coming 6 

after that quota for the fish that we’re not catching and all 7 

indications are that we’ve had to fight pretty big battles in 8 

order to retain our quota, even though we’re not harvesting it, 9 

and I think one of the arguments that we make is that we’re 10 

eventually going to get to the point where we’re utilizing all 11 

the fish that are available to us. 12 

 13 

Each year, that harvest level is not increasing by very much and 14 

there’s a very real chance that when we go to the next annual 15 

meeting in November that we’re going to lose some of it. 16 

 17 

With that as a backdrop, the U.S. has undertaken what they call 18 

a swordfish revitalization effort and there’s not a lot that 19 

they’ve done so far, but basically what they’re doing is they’re 20 

looking at every component of the fishery to see if there’s 21 

anything that we can do to increase our harvest so that we 22 

utilize what’s available to us. 23 

 24 

What the danger is -- You think, okay, we lose the harvest and 25 

it’s no big deal, but we’ve got an enormous conservation ethic 26 

here.  We fish in the cleanest way that we know how with the 27 

least amount of bycatch.  If we lose that quota to another 28 

country, and it doesn’t matter who it is, they don’t share that 29 

conservation ethic that we’ve got. 30 

 31 

There’s not the concern for the discard mortality and bycatch 32 

and small fish harvest that we share here in this country and so 33 

it’s pretty obvious that we need to do everything we can to try 34 

to retain that quota, because we know that the fishing is going 35 

to be done properly and in a sustainable way. 36 

 37 

The things that they’ve been looking at, all of them come with 38 

some controversy.  Nobody has got any real answers for how far 39 

we ought to go to allow these guys to catch the fish, but the 40 

big one that we addressed at the last meeting was the issue of 41 

reopening some of the areas that we closed down to pelagic 42 

longline fishing and there’s great big areas over off of the 43 

east coast. 44 

 45 

There’s been ongoing research over the last three years or so 46 

with pelagic longlines allowed into the closed areas to take a 47 

look at what the effects really are and what the bycatch levels 48 
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are. 1 

 2 

There’s a little bit of detail about the research in the report 3 

that I wrote, but basically, they did 192 longline sets, some of 4 

them inside and some of them just outside of the closed areas, 5 

and when you’re looking at the bycatch, there was one turtle 6 

caught that was released alive and there were no seabirds.   7 

 8 

The tuna bycatch was real minimal, but there was significant 9 

bycatch of sharks and there was significant bycatch of billfish.  10 

Whether anybody is going to be willing to go along with 11 

reopening some of those areas remains to be seen. 12 

 13 

Some of the other things that they’ve looked at and one that I 14 

think we’ll see implemented here real shortly is there is a 15 

squid trawl fishery up off of the New England coast and they 16 

occasionally catch broadbill swordfish in their squid trawls.  17 

Those fish primarily are discarded back dead at this point and 18 

so there’s an effort to allow these guys to be permitted so that 19 

they can retain that catch. 20 

 21 

There’s a couple relatively new fishing methods that they’ve 22 

experimented with and have pretty much perfected down in 23 

southeastern Florida and one of them is a buoy gear technique 24 

where they go out and set buoys adrift out on the edge of the 25 

Gulf Stream and they stay with the buoys and this is a nighttime 26 

fishery and they actually catch a pretty fair number of 27 

swordfish that way and so there is some talk of expanding that 28 

fishery or seeing if it’s possible to expand the fishery. 29 

 30 

The problem is that they’re going to have to redo some of the 31 

permitting that will allow some additional people to fish that 32 

way. 33 

 34 

One of the other things that’s been talked about, and this is 35 

contentious too, is there is a new sport fishing technique 36 

that’s been developed where guys go out into 1,700 or 1,800 feet 37 

of water during the day and they fish with regular hook and line 38 

gear. 39 

 40 

They do deep drops and they catch a lot of swordfish and they 41 

catch big swordfish that way.  This fishery has developed and 42 

what’s happened is we know pretty much for a fact that when 43 

these big swordfish come onto the boats and those swordfish are 44 

worth $2,000 on the market, that even though it’s not legal for 45 

those fishermen to sell those fish, they’re winding up sold and 46 

in the system anyway. 47 

 48 
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There’s talk of is it appropriate to allow some sort of 1 

permitting that will allow these fish to be legally sold and 2 

counted towards our quota. 3 

 4 

We’ve got some dilemmas and we’ve got some problems and nobody 5 

has got any real good answers, but I think it’s important that 6 

you understand that if somehow we along the way lose our quotas 7 

that they’re going to go someplace where the outcome is not 8 

going to be as good as if we manage to keep them here someplace.  9 

That concludes my report, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ed.  12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I know I’ve mentioned about the landings and if 14 

you just give me just one quick second, I just wanted to share 15 

something with you.  I finally found some papers and Roy keeps 16 

wanting to know where are these landings that I’m telling you 17 

all about and I appreciate the support of the last motion. 18 

 19 

It says recreational landings and annual catch limits and this 20 

came out from the NOAA Fisheries Service Southeast Regional 21 

Office and these estimates were last updated March 7.  I got it 22 

on April 10. 23 

 24 

On the gag, it shows that the recreational industry only landed 25 

59.3 percent of the gag.  They only landed 33.7 percent of the 26 

red grouper and 55 percent of the red snapper.  Then when you go 27 

to the commercial side, it shows that the commercial industry, 28 

under the shallow-water grouper, although I was told there’s no 29 

such thing, they landed 54.69 percent.  Under red, it was 56.76 30 

percent and gag was 43.39 percent.   31 

 32 

Every year you go down, it pretty much looks the same and so to 33 

me, if you use these landings and you update them, then I really 34 

couldn’t understand why the recreational industry and the 35 

commercial industry perhaps, perhaps, couldn’t get some more 36 

fish.  Thank you for allowing me to say that and I appreciate 37 

it. 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  Ed, thanks for your report.  What other countries, 40 

in your opinion, are high up the scale on conservation efforts 41 

with the highly migratory species? 42 

 43 

MR. SAPP:  Corky, instead of me guessing, how about if I let Dr. 44 

Nelson answer that?  He’s more involved in that process than I 45 

am. 46 

 47 

MR. PERRET:  Dr. Nelson, please, if you don’t mind.  I guess 48 
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while we’ve got you, tell us those, if you can recall, that are 1 

-- 2 

 3 

DR. NELSON:  Corky, I was paying absolutely no attention and so 4 

if you would repeat the question, it would help. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  In Ed’s presentation, he talked about our country 7 

being high on the conservation scale with highly migratory 8 

swordfish and so on, but I was just asking, what other countries 9 

are in that tier with us and then, while you’re up there, if you 10 

know which ones are on the lower scale, if you will, insofar as 11 

conservation minded. 12 

 13 

DR. NELSON:  Really, none of the other countries have moved as 14 

far as we have in terms of bycatch reduction and sea turtle 15 

avoidance and all that kind of thing, nor do they have as 16 

dedicated and adequate management plans and enforcement and 17 

accountability. 18 

 19 

In terms of conservation, Brazil, surprisingly, is pretty high 20 

up there and pretty forward thinking and they do have some 21 

circle hook requirements and stuff.  The European Union has 22 

continued to kind of pooh-pooh the circle hook idea.  In fact, 23 

it asserts that their research shows that it doesn’t help sea 24 

turtle interactions. 25 

 26 

In terms of the fisheries side of things, the Canadians, the 27 

U.S., Norway and Japan are very serious about fisheries.  Japan 28 

used to kind of be considered the bad guys.  They don’t care 29 

about bycatch and turtles and stuff, but when it comes to 30 

serious management measures to affect the abundance of stocks of 31 

swordfish and tunas, they’re pretty serious.  The European Union 32 

is not real great and a lot of the developing countries are just 33 

struggling in many respects. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Russ.  We have one more item that’s 36 

on the agenda in addition to new business and so that will be 37 

John and the Gulf States Fishery Management Commission Summary.  38 

Is John here?  He’s not here?  Okay.  That was a quick report. 39 

 40 

MR. SIMPSON:  You had some questions about data, as I remember, 41 

and they were shrimp data and so forth and they responded back 42 

to that and I think it’s in your briefing books toward the end.  43 

I can’t remember all the specifics, Bob, but they answered your 44 

questions that you had posed to them about shrimp, as I 45 

appreciate it.  If you want to look at it, there’s a written 46 

report down at the end of the briefing book and there’s a 47 

section in there, about two or three down, that relates to your 48 
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question. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Larry.  Was there any new business, 3 

Dr. Bortone? 4 

 5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We had two items I wanted to 6 

mention.  One was our app.  Believe it or not, there’s an app 7 

for all of this and I hope you’ve had a chance to look at it.  8 

We’ve had almost 2,000 hits to date and it’s only been out about 9 

three weeks. 10 

 11 

It only works for the iPhone right now.  We hope that it will be 12 

available, if we can make some changes and edits and please let 13 

me know if there’s any improvements you would like to see.  We 14 

hope we could do it for another system, like a Droid, but we’ll 15 

give that a few months trial to see how that goes. 16 

 17 

The second item is I want to report on my continuing and failed 18 

efforts to get us recognized by the Gulf of Mexico Alliance.  19 

I’ve met with most of the people and Bonnie and I were down in 20 

Mexico and attended a Living Marine Resources Section there. 21 

 22 

They do want us involved with them and I think the Mexican-23 

American community wants us involved and there’s something 24 

that’s holding all this up, but I’m promised that Corky will 25 

take care of it.  Thank you, Corky. 26 

 27 

MR. PERRET:  I think I promised you a year ago and nothing has 28 

happened, but I will continue to try. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are there any other items of business before we 31 

adjourn?   32 

 33 

MR. GREENE:  I was just listening to public testimony yesterday 34 

and just thinking about all the stuff that we’ve been battling 35 

with.  The snapper season being June and July, I know we’ve had 36 

testimony on that in the past, but we had a good bit of 37 

testimony yesterday about maybe moving red snapper season up 38 

into May and June, to maybe potentially get away from hurricane 39 

season and that kind of stuff.   40 

 41 

I didn’t know if anyone else would be interested in maybe having 42 

staff come up with a paper to send out to the public or whatever 43 

the procedure would be to see if there’s any future interest in 44 

that. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  As far as for this year, it’s too late, but I 47 

think certainly in public testimony -- We asked some of the 48 
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folks whether they would prefer an earlier season and I think 1 

it’s definitely something that we need to talk about.  I don’t 2 

know, Steve, whether the staff can work something up on that 3 

anytime in the near future or not. 4 

 5 

DR. BRANSTETTER:  You’re already directed staff to begin 6 

development of looking at alternative seasons for red snapper. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That is excellent.  Anything else?  We will see 9 

you all in Key West.  We are adjourned. 10 

 11 

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 3:10 p.m., April 14, 2011.) 12 

 13 

- - - 14 

15 
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TABLE OF MOTIONS 1 

 2 

PAGE 88:  Motion that council staff compose a comment letter to 3 

NOAA for purposes of the Natural Resource Damage Assessment 4 

Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement scoping process, 5 

recommending that the following BP spill restoration themes or 6 

strategies for marine fisheries be included in the PEIS: 1)a 7 

long-term, for example twenty years, Gulf of Mexico fisheries 8 

data collection and ecosystem monitoring program to help improve 9 

management of fisheries and for detecting delayed changes in 10 

abundance or condition of fishery resources; 2)meaningful 11 

financial investments in fisheries science and decision support 12 

tools to aid management; 3)meaningful financial investments in 13 

developing and promoting the use of more selective and habitat-14 

friendly fishing gear to benefit fisheries; 4)compensating the 15 

public for lost fishing time due to the 2010 federal oil-related 16 

closures by investing in data collection tools or new management 17 

systems that would help manage the fishery better for all user 18 

groups; and 5)restore and monitor essential fish habitat in the 19 

Gulf of Mexico to improve management.  The motion carried on 20 

page 89. 21 

 22 

PAGE 91:  Motion to request that the Southeast Fisheries Science 23 

Center rerun the gag and red grouper projections using the 2009 24 

and 2010 landings and the SSC provide the ABC to the council 25 

before the June 2011 Council meeting.  The motion carried on 26 

page 100. 27 

 28 

PAGE 104:  Motion that as requested by the Ad Hoc Reef Fish LAPP 29 

Advisory Panel, the council would establish an ad hoc headboat 30 

IFQ advisory panel to investigate the development of a program 31 

for the red snapper and gag grouper voluntary IFQ pilot program.  32 

The motion carried on page 108. 33 

 34 

PAGE 109:  Motion on Action Item 4 that the preferred 35 

alternative be Alternative 2, set the ACL equal to ABC for Gulf 36 

cobia, which would be 1.3 million pounds, the lower bound of the 37 

equilibrium MSY estimate based on the MSAP 2001, with Option a., 38 

to set a single ACL.  The motion carried on page 110. 39 

 40 

PAGE 110:  Motion on Action 5 that the preferred alternative be 41 

Alternative 3, set the ACT at 90 percent of the ABC/ACL, which 42 

is 1.17 million pounds for Gulf cobia, based on the MSAP 2001 43 

and Option a, to set a single ACT.  The motion carried on page 44 

110. 45 

 46 

PAGE 110:  Motion on Action 6, the accountability measures for 47 

Gulf cobia, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2, to 48 
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create a new Option c as the preferred option.  Option c would 1 

be that when the 90 percent annual catch target is reached that 2 

the bag limit be reduced to one fish per person per day until 3 

the annual catch limit is reached.  Once the ACL is reached, the 4 

fishery would be closed.  The motion carried on page 110. 5 

 6 

PAGE 110:  Motion on Action 7, to set the annual catch limit for 7 

Gulf migratory group king mackerel, that the preferred 8 

alternative be Alternative 2 as modified, Options b and c.  9 

Alternative 2 is to set the ACL equal to the ABC, which is 10 

decreasing through the years, 13.5 million pounds in 2011, 11.9 11 

million pounds in 2012, 10.8 million pounds in 2013 for Gulf 12 

group king mackerel, with Option b, to set a separate commercial 13 

and recreational ACL based on the current allocations, and c, 14 

for the commercial sector, set separate ACLs for hook and line 15 

and runaround gillnets.  The motion carried on page 110. 16 

 17 

PAGE 118:  Motion to restructure Action 9 to indicate that the 18 

council is maintaining the existing accountability measures for 19 

king mackerel, but to include alternatives to require overage 20 

paybacks for all of the various sectors.  The motion carried on 21 

page 119. 22 

 23 

PAGE 123:  Motion that staff add additional alternatives to 24 

Action 10 to set ACL at 85 percent of ABC, to set ACL at 80 25 

percent of ABC, and to set ACL at 75 percent of ABC and to 26 

remove Alternative 3 from Action 10 and that Options a, b, and c 27 

are included in the new alternatives.  The motion carried on 28 

page 125. 29 

 30 

PAGE 132:  Motion to approve the South Atlantic sections 31 

entirely.  The motion carried on page 132. 32 

 33 

PAGE 133:  Motion to accept the changes the South Atlantic 34 

Council made in the document.  The motion carried on page 133. 35 

 36 

PAGE 134:  Motion to approve Mackerel Amendment 18 for public 37 

hearings with the changes made by the council and with editorial 38 

license to staff.  The motion carried on page 137.  The motion 39 

was reconsidered on page 138.  The motion failed on page 138. 40 

 41 

PAGE 140:  Motion that in Action 1.4 the preferred alternative 42 

be Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 is to remove yellowtail snapper 43 

from the Reef Fish Fishery Management Plan.  The motion carried 44 

on page 140. 45 

 46 

PAGE 140:  Motion that in Action 1.5 that the preferred 47 

alternative be Alternative 2, remove mutton snapper from the 48 
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Reef Fish Fishery Management Plan.  The motion carried on page 1 

140. 2 

 3 

PAGE 140:  Motion to remove species in the list below that have 4 

average annual landings of 15,000 pounds or less, except for 5 

those that Option c, have a discernable trend in landings that 6 

may indicate a change in status.  Fourteen species qualify for 7 

removal under the above motion:  anchor tilefish, goldface 8 

tilefish, blackline tilefish, red hind, rock hind yellowfin 9 

grouper, misty grouper, schoolmaster, dog snapper, mahogany 10 

snapper, Cubera snapper, blackfin snapper, and queen snapper.  11 

Due to identification problems, yellowmouth and cubera are 12 

excluded from this list.  The motion carried on page 143. 13 

 14 

PAGE 143:  Motion that in Action 5 that Alternative 2 be the 15 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is to establish an initial 16 

estimate of ACL/ACT based on the spreadsheet method, followed by 17 

a review of the Socioeconomic Panel.  The motion carried on page 18 

143. 19 

 20 

PAGE 145:  Motion that in Action 3 that the preferred 21 

alternative be Alternative 4 with the modifications in the 22 

handout distributed and the corrections discussed based on 23 

species removed from the fishery management unit.  The motion 24 

carried on page 147. 25 

 26 

PAGE 148:  Motion that in Action 4, Acceptable Biological Catch 27 

Control Rule, to modify Tier 2 of the ABC Control Rule to have 28 

risk level options of 30 percent, 40 percent, and 50 percent.  29 

The motion carried on page 148. 30 

 31 

PAGE 148:  Motion that in Action 6 that Alternative 2 be the 32 

preferred alternative.  The motion carried on page 149. 33 

 34 

PAGE 149:  Motion to move Action 2.7.3.2 to the Considered but 35 

Rejected section.  The motion carried on page 150. 36 

 37 

PAGE 150:  Motion that in Action 2.7.3.2 to move Alternative 2 38 

to the Considered but Rejected section.  Alternative 2 is 39 

establish a jurisdictional allocation for yellowtail snapper 40 

based on the most recent stock assessment for the South Atlantic 41 

and Gulf of Mexico (SEDAR-3, 2003).  The motion carried on page 42 

150. 43 

 44 

PAGE 150:  Motion that in Action 2.7.3.2, to move Alternative 6 45 

to the Considered but Rejected Section.  Alternative 6 is to 46 

establish a jurisdictional apportionment based on the Florida 47 

Keys (Monroe County) jurisdictional boundary between the Gulf 48 
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and South Atlantic Councils for yellowtail snapper acceptable 1 

biological catch, ABC, based on the following method:  South 2 

Atlantic equals 71 percent of ABC and Gulf equals 29 percent of 3 

ABC, established by using catch history from 2005 to 2009.  The 4 

motion carried on page 150. 5 

 6 

PAGE 150:  Motion that in Action 2.7.3.4 that Alternative 2 be 7 

the preferred alternative.  Alternative is using the Gulf 8 

Council’s allocated acceptable biological catch, ABC, and divide 9 

the annual catch limit between the commercial and recreational 10 

sector based on average landings from 1986 to 2008.  11 

Recreational equals 18 percent of ACL and commercial equals 82 12 

percent of ACL.  The motion carried on page 152. 13 

 14 

PAGE 152:  Motion that in Action 7.4 that the preferred 15 

alternative be Alternative 2, Option a.  Alternative 2 is to set 16 

annual catch limits and optionally, annual catch targets, as 17 

indicated by the annual catch limit control rule selected in 18 

Section 2.5 or as specified in Table 2.7.4.1.  Option a is the 19 

value specified in the ACL/ACT control rule will be the annual 20 

catch target and the annual catch limit equals ABC, unless 21 

otherwise specified by the council on a case-by-case basis.  The 22 

motion carried on page 152. 23 

 24 

PAGE 158:  Motion to replace the alternatives in Action 8 with 25 

the alternatives as detailed in the handout “Simplified AM 26 

Alternatives 41211”.  The motion carried on page 158. 27 

 28 

PAGE 161: Motion to send the gag, red, and black grouper review 29 

of allocations to the Reef Fish Committee.  The motion carried 30 

on page 162. 31 

 32 

PAGE 163:  Motion to request that the interim rule be published 33 

as included in Tab B, Number 5.  The motion carried on page 165. 34 

 35 

PAGE 165:  Motion that the council modify the language in 36 

Section 1.4.3 on page 23 to read: If the annual catch limit is 37 

changed, the implementation sequence shown above is reinitiated.  38 

The motion carried on page 165. 39 

 40 

PAGE 165:  Motion that in Action 2 that Alternative 4 be the 41 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 4 is set the longest season 42 

possible while meeting ACT target under at least one baseline: 43 

July 1 through October 31, twenty-two to thirty-inch slot size 44 

limit, two fish gag bag limit, four fish aggregate bag limit 45 

(123 days) 54 percent reduction from 2009 baseline; 56 percent 46 

reduction from 2006 through 2008 baseline.  The motion carried 47 

on page 166. 48 
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 1 

PAGE 169:  Motion to modify Alternatives 2 and 3 and remove the 2 

specific year references.  The motion carried on page 169. 3 

 4 

PAGE 169:  Motion in Action 2.2.2 that the preferred alternative 5 

be Alternative 3.  Alternative 3 is to increase the red grouper 6 

bag limit to four fish per person.  If at the end of any given 7 

season it is determined that the recreational sector has 8 

exceeded its red grouper ACL, the bag limit will be reduced by 9 

one fish.  If the recreational sector exceeds its ACL again, the 10 

bag limit will revert back to two fish.  The motion carried on 11 

page 170. 12 

 13 

PAGE 170:  Motion that in Action 3 that the preferred 14 

alternative be Alternative 2.  Alternative 2 is to reduce the 15 

gag commercial quota to 86 percent of the ACT to compensate for 16 

dead discards not being reduced to projected levels needed to 17 

achieve 100 percent of the ACT.  The commercial quotas, in 18 

million pounds gutted weight, will be as follows (subject to 19 

accountability measure adjustments): year 2012, gag 0.567 and 20 

red grouper 5.49 and shallow-water grouper 6.467; year 2013, gag 21 

0.708 and red grouper 5.49 and shallow-water grouper 6.608; year 22 

2014, gag 0.835 and red grouper 5.49 and shallow-water grouper 23 

6.735; year 2015 plus, gag 0.939 and red grouper 5.49 and 24 

shallow-water grouper 6.839.  The motion carried on page 171. 25 

 26 

PAGE 171:  Motion that in Action 4 that the preferred 27 

alternative be Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is while the 28 

rebuilding plan for gag is in effect, set the percentage of red 29 

grouper IFQ allocation converted into multiuse allocation equal 30 

to zero.  Upon completion of the rebuilding plan, set the red 31 

grouper multiuse percentage as follows: red grouper multiuse in 32 

percent equals 100 times the difference between the gag ACL and 33 

the gag allocation total quantity divided by red grouper 34 

allocation.  The red grouper multiuse percentage will be 35 

recalculated following adjustments in commercial gag ACL, gag 36 

allocation, or red grouper allocation.  The motion carried on 37 

page 171. 38 

 39 

PAGE 171:  Motion that in Action 5 that Alternative 2 be the 40 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is to reduce the 41 

commercial gag minimum size limit to twenty-two inches total 42 

length.  The motion carried on page 171. 43 

 44 

PAGE 171:  Motion that in Action 6, that Alternative 3, Option c 45 

be the preferred alternative.  Alternative 3 is to close an area 46 

bracketing the forty-fathom contour between the current closed 47 

areas of Madison-Swanson and the Edges, approximately 244 square 48 
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nautical miles, making one continuous area.  Option c is all 1 

fishing is prohibited January 1 through April 30 and all fishing 2 

is allowed May 1 through December 31 (identical to current Edges 3 

regulations).  The motion failed on page 176. 4 

 5 

PAGE 176:  Motion that in Action 7.1 that Alternative 2 be the 6 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is the accountability 7 

measures for the gag, red grouper, and shallow-water grouper 8 

commercial sector will be the current individual fishing quota 9 

program.  The motion carried on page 176. 10 

 11 

PAGE 176:  Motion that in Action 7.2 that the preferred 12 

alternative be Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is add an overage 13 

adjustment to be applied when gag or red grouper are considered 14 

overfished and in-season accountability measures to the existing 15 

gag and red grouper accountability measures.  If the annual 16 

catch limit is exceeded and a stock is under a rebuilding plan, 17 

the overage adjustment will be equal to the full amount of the 18 

overage, unless the best scientific information available shows 19 

that a greater, lesser, or no overage adjustment is needed to 20 

mitigate the effects of the overage.  If gag or red grouper 21 

landings are projected to exceed the annual catch limit, as 22 

estimated by the Southeast Fisheries Science Center, the 23 

Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will file a notification 24 

closing the recreational harvest for the species projected to 25 

reach its annual catch limit for the rest of the fishing year on 26 

the date the annual catch limit is projected to be harvested.  27 

If the harvest, as estimated by the Southeast Fisheries Science 28 

Center, has been found to exceed the annual catch limit, the 29 

Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will file a notification 30 

closing the recreational harvest for the species whose annual 31 

catch limit was projected to be exceeded immediately for the 32 

rest of the fishing year.  The motion carried on page 177. 33 

 34 

PAGE 177:  Motion to approve Amendment 32 for public hearings.  35 

The motion carried on page 177. 36 

 37 

PAGE 177:  Motion that the council request staff to begin 38 

development of a plan amendment to adjust the total allowable 39 

catch in the rebuilding plan for greater amberjack.  The motion 40 

carried on page 177. 41 

 42 

PAGE 178:  Motion that the Reef Fish LAPP Advisory Panel be 43 

reconvened before the June 2011 council meeting to discuss the 44 

pilot days at sea program.  The motion carried on page 178. 45 

 46 

PAGE 179:  Motion to request that the Southeast Fisheries 47 

Science Center rerun the gag and red grouper projections, using 48 



204 

 

the 2009 and 2010 landings and the SSC provide the ABC to the 1 

council before the June 2011 council meeting.  The motion 2 

carried on page 182. 3 

 4 

PAGE 183:  Motion to take the ACL/AM Amendment to public 5 

hearings.  The motion carried on page 183. 6 

 7 
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